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NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING AND AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2022
9:00 A.M.

Las Vegas Convention Center — Board Room
3150 Paradise Road
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Councilman John Marz, Chair Mr. Brian Gullbrants

Mr. Anton Nikodemus, Vice Chair Ms. Jan Jones Blackhurst
Commissioner Jim Gibson, Secretary Mayor Kiernan McManus
Mr. Scott DeAngelo, Treasurer Commissioner Michael Naft
Councilwoman Michele Fiore Ms. Mary Beth Sewald
Mayor Carolyn Goodman Mr. Steve Thompson
Councilwoman Pamela Goynes-Brown Councilman Brian Wursten

THIS PUBLIC MEETING IS PROPERLY NOTICED AND POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (LVCVA) — 15t Floor Administration Offices
3150 Paradise Road, Las Vegas, NV 89109

LVCVA Website: www./lvcva.com/agenda
Nevada Public Notice Website:_Attps.//notice.nv.qov/

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD) MAY:

CONSIDER AGENDA ITEMS OUT OF ORDER;
COMBINE TWO OR MORE AGENDA ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION; AND
REMOVE OR DELAY DISCUSSION ON ANY AGENDA ITEM AT ANY TIME.

AGENDA

OPENING CEREMONIES
Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance
COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC

The first public comment period is limited to comments on items on the agenda. Items raised under this portion of the
agenda cannot be deliberated or acted upon until the notice provisions of the Nevada Open Meeting Law have been met.
If you wish to speak to the Board at this time, please step up to the podium and clearly state your name and spell your first
and last name for the record. COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES IN LENGTH.
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APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES

Approval of the Agenda.
For possible action.

Approval of the Minutes from the October 11, 2022, Regular Meeting of the Board.
For possible action.

PRESENTATIONS

Presentations by the LVCVA Staff

LVCVA staff will deliver presentations on Operations, Marketing and Sales achievements, People and Culture,
and General Government highlights.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

LVCVA STAFF REPORTS AND REQUESTED ACTIONS

OPERATIONS DIVISION

1.

American Express Advertising & Sponsorship Agreement Extension

That the Board consider authorizing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/President to execute an extension
to the Advertising and Sponsorship Agreement with American Express Open, in the amount of $875,000,
for the period from November 1, 2022 to December 31, 2023.

For possible action.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

2.

Public Hearing on the Proposed Modification to the Collective Bargaining Agreement with Service
Employees International Union (SEIU) Local 1107

That the Board consider, pursuant to NRS 288.153: 1) Conducting a public hearing on the proposed
modification to the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority (LVCVA) and SEIU, effective November 8, 2022 to add new titles, grades, and seniority
to the bargaining unit classifications of the CBA; and 2) Authorizing the CEO/President to execute the
CBA modification.

Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed modification to the CBA between the LVCVA and SEIU
Local 1107

Open Public Hearing on the proposed modification to the CBA between the LVCVA and SEIU
Local 1107

Discussion of proposed modification by any interested person.

Close Public Hearing on the proposed modification to the CBA between the LVCVA and SEIU
Local 1107

For possible action.

Purchase of Laptop Computers and Associated Peripherals - SHI International, Inc.

That the Board consider: 1) Awarding the contract for the purchase of laptop computers to be utilized by
LVCVA ambassadors to SHI, International, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $229,500; 2) Authorizing the
CEO/President to sign and execute the contract documents; and 3) Authorizing any residual unexpended
balances from this approved expenditure to revert to available general funds.

For possible action.
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4. Quarterly Budget & Statistical Report
The LVCVA Budget and Statistical Report for the quarter ending September 30, 2022, is presented to
the Board for its information and review.
This is an information item and does not require Board action.

5. Contracts Report
Pursuant to Board Policies (1.04 and 5.01) and Chapters 332 and 338 of the Nevada Revised Statutes,
the Contracts Report serves to notify the Board of Directors of the following: 1) Contractual commitments,
change orders, or amendments to contracts executed under the CEO’s Signature Authority that exceed
$50,000; 2) Contractual commitments and amendments to contracts related to the Las Vegas Convention
Center District (LVCCD) projects as executed under the delegated authority of the Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ)/President; and 3) Public works contracts awarded by the LVCVA.
This is an information item and does not require Board action.

COMMITTEES
6. Audit Committee Report and Recommendations

The Audit Committee met on November 7, 2022, to discuss items A-E below.

The Audit Committee Chair will present a report and give the Committee’s recommendations to
the Board of Directors.

Item A. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
That the Board review the fiscal year (FY) 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report,
including independent auditors’ reports.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

Item B. Resolution to Augment Fiscal Year 2023 Budget
That the Board consider approving the proposed budget augmentation and the adoption of the
associated Resolution 2022-05 to augment the FY 2023 General Fund, Capital Projects
Fund, and Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD) Capital Fund budgets.

For possible action.

Iltem C. Internal Audit Reports
That the Board receive a report on the LVCVA'’s internal audit program.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

Iltem D. Proposed 2023 Audit Plan
That the Board consider approval of the calendar year 2023 audit plan.

For possible action.

ltem E. Appointment of Internal Audit Firm

That the Board consider approving: 1) Reappointment of BDO USA, LLP as the internal audit
firm for the period from January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023, in the amount of $225,000;
2) Authorization for the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to exercise two optional one-year extensions
with BDO in the amount of $225,000 per year; and 3) Authorization for the CFO to execute the
agreements.

For possible action.
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COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC

This public comment period is for any matter that is within the jurisdiction of the Board. Items raised under this portion of
the agenda cannot be deliberated or acted upon until the notice provisions of the Nevada Open Meeting Law have been
met. If you wish to speak to the Board at this time, please step up to the podium and clearly state your name and spell
your first and last name for the record. COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO THREE (3) MINUTES IN LENGTH.

ADJOURNMENT

Persons are invited to submit written remarks for all matters, both on and off the agenda. Written remarks presented for inclusion in the
Board’s minutes must be flat, unfolded, on paper of standard quality, and 8%z by 11 inches in size. Written remarks shall not exceed five
(5) pages in length. The LVCVA will not accept for filing any submission that does not comply with this rule. On a case-by-case basis,
the Board may permit the filing of noncomplying [sic] written remarks, documents, and related exhibits pursuant to NRS 241.035(1)(e).

To submit ideas to the LVCVA, please visit https://www.lvcva.com/who-we-are/meetings-and-minutes/

The Board’s meeting rooms are accessible to persons with disabilities. If special arrangements are required, please contact the
Customer Safety Department at: 702-892-7400, which is a 24-hour Dispatch Control Center, or contact Silvia Perez in the Board Office

at: 702-892-2802 or sperez@|vcva.com

Members of the Board may participate in this meeting via telephone conference call.

For information or questions regarding this agenda please contact:
Silvia Perez, Executive Assistant to the Board

3150 Paradise Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

702-892-2802 or sperez@lvcva.com

Supporting materials for this meeting are available at 3150 Paradise Road, Las Vegas, NV 89109 or by contacting Silvia Perez at 702-
892-2802 or sperez@lvcva.com
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MINUTES

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 11, 2022
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Minutes

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors (Board) of the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
(LVCVA) was held on October 11, 2022 at the Las Vegas Convention Center, 3150 Paradise Road, Las Vegas,
Nevada 89109. This meeting was properly noticed and posted in compliance with the Nevada Open Meeting
Law.

Board of Directors (Board)
Present unless otherwise noted

Councilman John Marz, Chair Mr. Brian Gullbrants........cccccooeeeiiiiinl absent
Mr. Anton Nikodemus, Vice Chair................. absent Ms. Jan Jones Blackhurst

Commissioner Jim Gibson, Secretary Mayor Kiernan McManus

Mr. Scott DeAngelo, Treasurer Commissioner Michael Naft

Councilwoman Michele Fiore Ms. Mary Beth Sewald

Mayor Carolyn Goodman Mr. Steve Thompson

Councilwoman Pamela Goynes-Brown Councilman Brian Wursten

Steve Hill, CEO/President
Caroline Bateman, General Counsel
Ed Finger, Chief Financial Officer
LVCVA Executive Staff present Kate Wik, Chief Marketing Officer
Lisa Messina, Chief Sales Officer
Lori Nelson-Kraft, Senior Vice President of Communications
Nadine Jones, Senior Vice President of People & Culture

OPENING CEREMONIES — CALL TO ORDER
Chair John Marz called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

Caroline Bateman, General Counsel, acknowledged that all Board members were present either in person or
telephonically, except for Vice Chair Anton Nikodemus, Secretary Jim Gibson, and Member Brian Gullbrants.

Silvia Perez, Executive Assistant to the Board, confirmed that Members Carolyn Goodman and Michael Naft
would be joining the meeting telephonically.

Members Goodman and Naft joined the meeting telephonically at 9:01 a.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed.
Secretary Gibson entered the meeting at 9:10 a.m.

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC

Daniel Braisted referenced Agenda Item 1, Fiscal Year 2023 Marketing Update, and shared ideas about
encouraging college alumni associations to have their reunions in Las Vegas during large conventions and the
sharing of “master tickets” for trade shows.
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Ed Uehling provided his opinion on the work of Mr. Billy Vassiliadis of R&R Partners and commented on macro
vs. micro aspects of tourism, and shared tourism statistics of Las Vegas and other tourism destinations.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND MINUTES

APPROVAL OF Member Mary Beth Sewald moved, and it was carried by unanimous vote of the voting

THE AGENDA  members, to approve the October 11, 2022 Meeting of the Board of Directors agenda,

AND MINUTES = 31 to approve the minutes of the September 13, 2022 Reqular Meeting of the Board of
Directors.

PRESENTATIONS

Presentations by LVCVA Staff

Kate Wik, Chief Marketing Officer, highlighted marketing efforts including the following: Las Vegas’s milestone
of being the first destination to reach one million followers on the TikTok social media platform; Formula 1
partnership; the showcasing of football game viewing locations across the destination; Pro Bowl Games; the
destination’s first sports championship with the Las Vegas Aces winning the Women’s National Basketball
Association’s (WNBA) Championships; Hispanic Heritage Month; and Routes World 2022 in Las Vegas.

Lisa Messina, Chief Sales Officer, delivered a PowerPoint and video presentation on Las Vegas Convention
Center (LVCC) building highlights including the National Association of Convenience Stores, Printing United
Expo, GlassBuild America, and IMEX America.

Steve Hill, Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/President, commented on events surrounding the Routes World
conference and LVCVA sports marketing activities.

Mr. Hill provided an update on the planning of the future Super Bowl and Formula 1 race events in Las Vegas,
summarized his recent business trip to Singapore and Kuala Lumpur, and provided information from his
upcoming presentation to the Economic Forum.

LVCVA STAFF REPORTS AND REQUESTED ACTIONS
MARKETING DIVISION

ITEM 1. Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 Marketing Update
Ms. Wik introduced the R&R Partners team including Chief Creative Officer Guto Araki and
Executive Vice President of Strategy Gustavo De Mello. Ms. Wik recognized Arnie DiGeorge,
Executive Creative Director at R&R Partners, for recently being awarded a Lifetime
Achievement Award by the American Advertising Awards. Ms. Wik recognized the R&R
Partners leadership team in the audience and thanked them for their partnership.

Ms. Wik shared a video showcasing the LVCVA'’s advertising activities and commented on
the current need for consumers to “escape”.

Mr. Araki presented current marketing initiatives for FY 2023 including the following: new
television and radio spots; out of home wallscapes; and potential TikTok and social marketing
content.

R&R Partners Chief Executive Officer Billy Vassiliadis discussed the launch plan for paid
media and its accompanying challenges. Mr. Vassiliadis described research efforts in the
determination of the need for consumers to escape.

Member Sewald asked if the advertising could be characterized as “revenge travel” to which
Mr. Vassiliadis clarified it was considered “escape travel.”

Ms. Wik discussed the official campaign launch date and anticipated response.



Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
October 11, 2022

Minutes

Page 3 of 4

Mr. Hill emphasized the niche and timing for marketing the presented messaging and future
opportunities for modification.

This was an information item and did not require Board action.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION

ITEM 2. Amendment to Clark County Self-Funded Interlocal Medical and Dental Benefits Plan
Agreement
Ed Finger, Chief Financial Officer, provided background on the current Clark County Self-
Funded program and stated that the proposed amendment includes a 2% rate increase to the
Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) and a 1% increase to the Exclusive Provider
Organization (EPO). Mr. Finger described other amendments including a shorter qualifying
period for new employees to receive benefits and the provision of mental health benefits
through Teladoc. Mr. Finger requested that the Board approves and authorizes the Board
Chair to sign an amendment to the Interlocal Agreement for the Health, Accident, and Life
Benefit Program among Clark County, the LVCVA, the Clark County Water Reclamation
District, the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Las Vegas Valley Water
District, the Clark County Regional Flood Control District, the Regional Transportation
Commission of Southern Nevada, the Southern Nevada Health District, Henderson District
Public Libraries, Mount Charleston Fire Protection District, the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department, and the Moapa Valley Fire Protection District, to add the Eighth Judicial District
Court to the Interlocal Agreement and adopt an increase to rates for the Self-Funded PPO
and the EPO Medical and Dental Benefits Plans.

Fiscal Impact:
2% PPO rate increase - $60,000 for 2023 plan year
1% EPO rate increase - $21,000 for 2023 plan year

FY23 — $3.0 million total spend PPO
$2.1 million total spend EPO

FY24 - $3.1 million total spend PPO
$2.1 million total spend EPO

Member Jan Jones Blackhurst moved, and it was carried by unanimous vote of the
voting members to approve and authorize the Board Chair to sign an amendment to
the Interlocal Agreement for the Health, Accident, and Life Benefit Program among
Clark County, the LVCVA, the Clark County Water Reclamation District, the University
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Las Vegas Valley Water District, the Clark
County Regional Flood Control District, the Regional Transportation Commission of
Southern Nevada, the Southern Nevada Health District, Henderson District Public
Libraries, Mount Charleston Fire Protection District, the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department, and the Moapa Valley Fire Protection District, to add the Eighth Judicial
District Court to the Interlocal Agreement and adopt an increase to rates for the Self-
Funded PPO and the EPO Medical and Dental Benefits Plans.

COMMENTS FROM THE FLOOR BY THE PUBLIC

Mr. Braisted commented on crowd control fences that were tipped over during a recent convention he attended
at the LVCC and proposed a solution for monitoring fallen signs. Mr. Braisted provided information on the cost
of tickets for upcoming trade shows and recommended a moment of silence for a recent local tragedy.
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E.T. Snell apologized for expressing emotion during the previous Board meeting, provided information on an
upcoming California Nevada Highway Safety Corridor Authority meeting, shared thoughts on future traffic
concerns on the highway between Los Angeles and Las Vegas, and encouraged keeping rest stops open.

Shaundell Newsome of the Urban Chamber of Commerce and Trustee of the Vegas Chamber described his
experiences with the small business community and expressed excitement for the recent Committed to our
Business Community Event.

Mr. Uehling expressed disagreement with the presented advertising spots which he believes discourage
visitation to Las Vegas with children, and stated that several youth sporting events are held in Las Vegas and
bring visitors to the destination.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Marz adjourned the meeting at 10:10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted, Date Approved:  November 8, 2022

Silvia Perez John Marz
Executive Assistant to the Board Chair
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MARKETING LAS VEGAS

Summer advertising campaigns featuring “Boom
Boom Clap” and “Live in Vegas” garnered 102M
impressions.

The digital series “Vegas On" launched nine new
episodes that highlighted summer activities,
nightlife, dining, football season, and golf that
resulted in 13.1M impressions and 8M views.

Grew the "Visit Las Vegas” subscriber base by
23%, adding 43K new subscribers as a result of
partnered content with Formula 1.

Leveraged paid media partnerships with Expedia VAT N WS N
and Priceline that targeted 19 key cities and

resulted in more than 947K booked hotel room
nights.

A SUMMER ENTERTAINMENT
Utilized the paid media partnership with EXTRA DIGITAL CAMPAIGN ON

TV to feature summer entertainment, residencies,
dining and sports that generated
13.3M impressions.

Presented findings and insights of in-depth
interviews from meeting planners and corporate
executives to resort and destination partners to
assist them in their marketing and sales efforts.

GENERATED

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




MARKETING AND SALES EFFORTS FOR

EXTENDED DESTINATION

Promoted the extended destinations with paid
content with the Las Vegas Review Journal,
Southern California News Group and Travel Zoo
that received 5.8M impressions.

Produced new website content to promote
offerings for weekend or holiday getaways in
Laughlin and Mesquite.

Conducted sales calls to 23 AAA travel and tour
operator offices in Phoenix and Tucson.

Promoted “Neon to Nature Road Trip” attractions
available in rural Clark County to 27 Las Vegas
territory members.

Exhibited and presented at the American Society of
Travel Agents Desert show to 200 sales agents.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA 0



GREW LAS VEGAS' BRAND
ON SOCIAL MEDIA

d' TikTok

MOST FOLLOWED DESTINATION IN THE WORLD

Las Vegas shattered records serving as the most followed destination
in the world on TikTok with over 934K followers and more than 21 million views this quarter.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA
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LAS VEGAS’ AMPLIFIED ITS EFFORTS WITH ADVERTISING AND DIGITAL
ENGAGEMENT TACTICS THAT INCLUDED:

The launch of the “One Game” spot to support sponsorships for the upcoming PBR Team
Series and Pac-12 Football seasons.

Branded signage at NASCAR events in Nashville,
Atlanta, and Texas.

Digital high-impact take-overs of popular sports
channels “theScore” and “Fanatics” which generated
more than 44K sessions to the VisitLasVegas website
sports page.

Media placements within Amazon’s Thursday Night
Football programming, and digital takeovers on
MLBshop.com, NBAstore.com and NHLshop.com
resulted on more than 16M impressions.

Launched a variety of NFL season social media
content:

. . Formula 1 races down the Las Vegas Strip
Geo-targeted Twitter campaign targeted fans November 16-18, 2023

in Phoenix to come to Las Vegas for their team'’s
game against the Raiders that drove 1.2M impressions

Highlighted amazing locations to watch live sports including Stadium Swim, Beer
Park, and Top Golf generated nearly 5M social media impressions

Hosted 2 influencers to give them an authentic sports fan experience which
generated 286K engagements and 3.3M impressions

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA 0



THE GREATEST ARENA ON EARTH [CONTINUED]

Collaboration with Formula 1 to begin promoting
the Las Vegas Grand Prix with:

A Formula 1 driver tweet which generated
over 350K views

A paid social media campaign highlighting

Las Vegas as an ideal race destination
resulted in 3.3M impressions

Hosted and provided sponsorship support for three international soccer matches
in July that garnered 61,575 room nights.

Secured the National Invitational Men's Basketball Tournament for March 2023 that will
generate more than 8,500 room nights.

Secured and funded the 2023 NFL Pro Bowl! and East West Shrine Bowl| Games.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA 0



FOCUSED ON MARKETING
AND SALES EFFORTS TO DRIVE
INTERNATIONAL VISITATION

The Global Leisure Sales and Air Service Development teams traveled to Canada for a series
of sales and marketing planning meetings with Air Canada, WestJet, Swoop, and Flair.

The Canada sales office produced an awareness sales
mission with seven resort partners that reached more
than 350 travel professionals in Vancouver, Edmonton,
and Calgary.

The Global Leisure Sales team attended Brand

USA's Travel Week in Frankfurt, Germany where it
conducted 42 sales appointments and had exposure
to 150 buyers from 16 European countries.

Hosted 30 consumer media outlets from eight
countries to experience Las Vegas with future
coverage to reach 500M people.

Hosted a trade media FAM with nine reporters from
Mexico and Canada that represented more than a
7.2M combined reach.

Celebrated Mexican Independence Day and Hispanic
Heritage Month with:

Advertising initiatives and resort marquee
creative that featured special events,
entertainment, and dining offerings

Hosted three social media influencers that
generated 4.3M impressions

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




BOOKED DOMESTIC GROUP SALES FOR
RESORT PARTNERS

Vg

SALES HIGHLIGHTS INCLUDE:

The National Minority Aids Council conference, a first in Las Vegas will bring 1,200 room
nights to the Cosmopolitan in 2023.

The Humane Society at Caesars FORUM will bring 5,682 room nights to the LINQ and
Harrah's in 2025.

Ulta Beauty will bring 4,730 room nights to the Venetian.
United Food and Commercial Workers will bring 11,350 room nights to the Mirage in 2023.

Case Management Society of America and International Society for Pharmaceutical
Engineering will bring a combined 7025 room nights to Mandalay Bay.

NEW BUSINESS FOR LAS VEGAS:

BENAOVLMNORTY Y @
AIDS COUNC 2y (ULTA

Building Healthier Communities
THE HUMANE SOCIETY
OF THE UNITED STATES

aVOICE for working America L'-.qse:(fm.:.‘me{s?:rerv&.wé‘-mm I ®

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA 0




DROVE DOMESTIC LEISURE
AND GROUP SALES

Hosted client events in partnership with Apple Leisure Group and Delta Vacations for 70
top travel advisors in Cleveland and Atlanta.

Participated in Virtuoso Travel Week with 200 in-person and virtual appointments and
hosted events for 90 advisors.

Hosted a party at the Corporate Event Marketing
Association (CEMA) Summit in Nashville targeting
the tech industry. MARKETING ASSOCIATION

Networked with meeting planners in Minneapolis
at the Destination Celebration.

Conducted sales appointments at Connect
Marketplace in Detroit with meeting planners
and corporate, association, and sports industry
executives.

Met with pharmaceutical/medical meeting and
event professionals with 12 resort partners, at the
Pharma Forum in Maryland.

Hosted Mid-Atlantic-based customers for an
evening of relationship building and MLB fun
in D.C.

Networked with incentive travel planners at the
Society for Incentive Travel Excellence annual
classic in Boca Raton.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




EXPANDED AIR SERVICE TO LAS VEGAS

Started flights from 17 new markets by six airlines, many from underserved markets, which
resulted in 741K more annual airline seats to Las Vegas.

Announced three new markets by three different airlines that will result in the addition of
145K more inbound seats to Las Vegas.

IMPROVED CONVENTION CENTER
OPERATIONS

Achieved reaccreditation with the Global Biorisk Advisory Council
(GBAC) to demonstrate a continued commitment to cleaning
excellence.

Saved an additional 125K gallons of water over 2021 efforts around
the campus by capping hundreds of irrigation emitters.

Opened the first Vegas Loop passenger station at Resorts World
in partnership with The Boring Company, providing connectivity
to the LVCC.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




IN THE COMMUNITY

LUCVA ARGHIVE

—% 10

LAS VEGAS NEWS BUREAU
GOLLEGTION

Coordinated a donation of 4,000 pounds of
fitness equipment from the IDEA World Fitness
Convention to the Boys and Girls Club, Project
SMASH, and Clark County Parks and Recreation.

Honored Erika Stokely, lead dispatcher for Resorts
World, with the Hospitality Heroes award at the
LVCVA Board meeting, at Resorts World as well as in
the local news.

Continued the 75th Anniversary of the archive i
collection by debuting new photo galleries on Hospitality Hero honoree Erika Stokely
LVCVA.com, securing news coverage, and receiving s honored

a proclamation by Clark County Commissioners.

LVCVA receives proclamation from Clark County Commissioners for 75th Anniversary of the archive collection.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




INVESTED IN OUR WORKFORCE

Facilitated a Workplace Law Training program for all full-time Ambassadors.

Invited 16 LVCVA leaders to participate in the Women'’s
Leadership Conference to provide tools and training to
excel as leaders at work and in the community.

Invited 35 Ambassadors to participate in a professional
development leadership training pilot program with
Franklin Covey focused on the principles of 7 Habits of
Highly Effective People.

® LEADERSHIP
@0 L AS VEGAS

Dawn Holden, Vice President of Business Sales was accepted into the Vegas Chamber's
Leadership Las Vegas program.

CONNECTED WITH OUR

AMBASSADORS

Produced monthly newsletters and

Board meeting summaries to celebrate
achievements and keep Ambassadors
apprised, that achieved an 80% open rate.

Hosted a “Name the Newsletter” contest
among the Ambassadors that garnered
more than 60 entries. The winner was
Jasmine Belanger from Convention
Services for her submission of

“On Good Authority”.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




RECRUITED FOR OUR FUTURE

Focused on hiring a more diverse workforce. Out of the 10 most recent full-time hires, seven
were diverse candidates.

HIRED SUPERVISOR AND MANAGEMENT TALENT THAT INCLUDED:

Lisa Messina Alan Fowler Neli Boldt

Chief Sales Officer Senior Director International Marketing
of Marketing Analytics Executive

Arnold Rodriguez  Alexandria Brown Hector Conejo

Senior Manager of Security Air Service Engineering Maintenance
Development Manager Supervisor

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA




Ruben White, Director
of Environmental
Health, Safety, and

Fire Prevention was
awarded the National
Safety Council’s Rising
Stars Safety Award for
his safety leadership Class of 2022
inside the LVCC. X

The “Forever Happens Here” wedding campaign won a
Gold Telly Award, an Emmy award and the Destiny Award for excellence in destination
marketing and promotion from the U.S. Travel Association.

FOREVER RAPPENG HERE

Plan your big day ot VisitLasVegas.com/Weddings

"

Was awarded “Best Destination for Events” by Latin America Meetings Magazine.

The LVCC was awarded the World Travel Awards
“Leading Meetings and Conference Centre in North America” for 2022.

Las Vegas was awarded the World Travel Awards
“Leading Meetings and Conference Destination in North America” for 2022.

LVCVA HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS | ©2022 LVCVA m
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GUTO ARAKI

Chief Creative Officer

As R&R's chief creative officer, Guto is known for his creative talents and strategic thinking.
His ability to reach global audiences across broad segments through his bold, creative
visions, sensational partnerships, and anything but a traditional approach to advertising, is
amazing!

A self-described, medium-agnostic creator, Guto's talents cannot be confined to one area or
industry alone. Throughout his career, he's been responsible for leading the creative on
Gatorade and adidas; launching Apple products; and contributing to automotive brands like
Mercedes-Benz, SMART, Chevy and Dodge. In recent years, he's been the mind behind Hulu's
immensely successful, new branding efforts and even securing an out-of-this-world
partnership for Taco Bell's global launch across 32 countries. And remember that viral Tom
Brady “is he or isn't he"” photo? Guto played a crucial role in the creation of that epic
marketing move.

Prior to R&R, Guto worked with brands and agencies as a creative director including the
Integer Group, TBWA, Quiksilver, Deutsche LA, and Big Family Table, as well as founding the
rising startup company for the drop culture of food, Biite. We could go on, but we'll let Guto's
work speak for itself.
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GUSTAVO DE MELLO

Executive Vice President of Strategy

Gustavo is a man of many talents. Fortunately, for so many clients, when he's not keeping himself
busy playing rugby or teaching himself a new language, he's using his skills to help create
award-winning work. Maybe you know a few of the brands he’s worked on: ever heard of the NBA,
State Farm, McDonald's or Coca-Cola?

Today, Gustavo is making waves for many of our clients, including the Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority and Las Vegas Raiders. We were thrilled to have him work on these brands
because he brings something to the table no one else can claim. Before he found his way to R&R,
Gustavo was a partner in the sports tech startup, Striv3. So, he doesn't just talk the talk, he walks it
too.

Prior to that, he took his talents to New York for the NBA, serving as its SVP of global marketing.
While there, Gustavo built and led not only brand strategy and advertising, but also media, youth
engagement, integration, partnerships and event strategy. A few highlights include branding for
the WNBA, the reinvention of the G-League, and launching the innovative NBA 2K League.

Before his time in New York, Gustavo was busy making a name for himself in Chicago while at
DDB and Lapiz, the Hispanic division of Leo Burnett, working with PepsiCo brands, La Quinta
Hotels, Safeway supermarkets, Kellogg's, Allstate, Tecate Beer, and Jack Daniel’s.

Born in Rio, Gustavo grew up in Sao Paulo, a city with 30 million people who taught him about

diversity, resilience and culture. It would be an understatement to say that he has made quite an
impact for R&R's clients. We are incredibly lucky he is part of our team.




R&R PARTNERS

Billy Vassiliadis
Chief Executive Officer

Catherine Cole
Vice President, Public
Relations

Michon Martin
President

Yanick Dalhouse
Vice President, Brand
Management

Matt Mason
Chief Strategist
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e

Todd Gillins
Vice President, Research

Rob Dondero
Executive Vice President

Lindsey Patterson
Vice President, Media &
Publishing

Justin Gilbert
Senior Vice President,
Strategy & Insight

Erin McCleskey
Public Relations Group
Account Director

GCO
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 8,2022 ITEM NO. 1
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
. BRIAN YOST (—DOf:uSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER Briaw fost
suBJECT: AMERICAN EXPRESS ADVERTISING & SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT
*  EXTENSION
RECOMMENDATION

That the Board of Directors consider authorizing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/President
to execute an extension to the Advertising and Sponsorship Agreement with American
Express Open, in the amount of $875,000, for the period from November 1, 2022 to
December 31, 2023.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT

FY 2023: $500,000 Revenue
FY 2024: $375,000 Revenue

[Em il

nnnnnnnnnnnn

BOARD STEVE HiLL
EO/PRESIDENT
ACTION: CEO/PRES

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The American Express Open Lounge (Lounge) has been operating as a benefit to select
American Express cardholders in the Central Hall at Las Vegas Convention Center (LVCC)
under an Advertising and Sponsorship agreement (Agreement) since 2011.

The Lounge provides a branding opportunity for American Express Open to target convention
delegates and exhibitors attending conventions at the LVCC. In addition, the Lounge offers
a customer service element to the LVCC and improves the potential customer experience for
LVCC guests.

American Express has requested that the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
continue the Agreement for a fourteen-month period, effective retroactively to November 1,
2022. The proposed revenue rate is the same as the currently existing rate.

The Lounge receives positive feedback from attendees, exhibitors and show management
and has been a valuable addition to the services offered at the LVCC.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 8, 2022 ITEM NO. 2
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EROM: NADINE JONES, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT OF [ Pecwsioned®s
' PEOPLE & CULTURE Madine Jones
PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED MODIFICATION TO THE
SUBJECT: COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT WITH SERVICE EMPLOYEES
INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU) LOCAL 1107

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board of Directors consider, pursuant to NRS 288.153: 1) Conducting a public
hearing on the proposed modification to the Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between
the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (LVCVA) and SEIU, effective November 8,
2022 to add new titles, grades , and seniority to the bargaining unit classifications of the CBA;
and 2) Authorizing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/President to execute the CBA
modification.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.
ﬁm Kl
STEVE HILL
BOARD CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

NRS 288.153 requires the governing body of every local government employer to approve
all new, extended, or modified Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBAs) or similar
agreements between the local government employer and employee organizations during a
public hearing.

The LVCVA and SEIU have tentatively agreed to amend the CBA through its termination
date of June 30, 2023, subject to the Board’s approval, as follows: Revision to CBA Appendix
A, LVCVA Bargaining Unit Classifications. The proposed revision to the CBA’s Bargaining
Unit Classifications adds the following positions: Kitchen Technician; Laborer; and Lead
Groundskeeper.



LVCVA/SEIU Local 1107

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Appendices

Appendix A LVCVA Bargaining Unit Classifications — Employees
LVCVA Bargaining Unit Classifications — Supervisors

Appendix B July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2019

Appendix C July 14, 2019 — June 30, 2020

Appendix D July 12, 2020 — June 30, 2021



Appendix A
LVCVA Bargaining Unit Classifications

EMPLOYEES
Title Grade
JoY AV I=Te] 1 Lo 1T T 1o ORI 20
ACCOUNTING SPECIAIIST. ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e bt areeaeeeaaeeeeessnststaaeseeeeaaeessannsnnrnnns 16
YA ¥ololo 10 akuT oY= a0 I=Tol o] oY (ol -1 o N PSP 20
2 TUT1 o [T = = g T q T =YY U UUPRPRRt 20
BUSINESS SEIVICES SPECIAIIST ...uvviiiiiiiiiiie et e st e e e e e seate e e e e ssabeeeeesabteeeessanbeeeessnnes 16
CaNINE OFfiCRI ittt ettt sttt st ettt s e st et s et et ebe ses st eae sessebee et sessessne et sessesereebenenses s ensenesennnes 20
(OIT L oo | =T o PSP 9
Database Marketing CoordiNator........ciiiiiiii i et e e et e e e s rata e e e s ssabaeeeessnsaaeeesnnnes 16
S [Tot g ol =1 o PR URTOPRPTRTRPRN 20
=T g oY gl o = o 1T =T O TP PP OPPPPPPPPN 20
o (o1 TE A VAT o o To ) o A K=Yl o o1 ol - s VOSSP SRR 20
Fire Prevention CoOrdiNator. ... ettt e e s st e e e s st e e e s s sabee e e s ssabeeeessnabeaeessnnseneas 25
Fire Prevention TECRNICIAN. .....cii ittt ettt e s ettt e s bt e e sabe e s sabeesssbeesbbeessreeenn 22
LG =T o] o 1Tot N =Tl o[ a1 Lol = o VS RPR 20
LG o TH] oo [ =TT o 1= PSPPSR 17
GUEST EXPEIIENCE SPECIAIIST....cuvevieriirirtiecece et ettt s teste st s e e s b et tereeasaaesbestesesessessessesses et ensane st eee 15
(o Y7 O =Tl oo 1ol -1 o DO PP PPPPOPUPPRN 20
KIECNEN TOCNNICIAN .. ittt sttt ee et et e e e st e sbeebeebeetesasersesaesbesbesbesss s saesteetestsensersensan 20
=] o Yo T4 =Y OO OO OO OO OO TSP P TR PTOPPURPRRTRN 14
Lead AccoUuNnting TECHNICIAN.......uuuiiiiiee e e e e e e e e st re e e e e eeeessssaanreareaeeeeeeesenansnsrnnes 22
LEAT CUSTOMIAN ettt sttt sttt sttt st et e eae st b e b sttt et ebe sasses e ebe sesbebereeat ebeen b et ene st seabesene et senbeseneets 11
(Yo I € oYU T g Vo £ Y=Y o= TR SRSPTTPRRR 19
LEAM SEIVICE WOTKE .. ittt ettt ettt et st st st e b et et e aaeeseebe st st et essesbebeeseseeneaaeabe st seesesnsssensasassens 16
Lead Services SUPPOIt TECHNICIAN......ccicieieiee ettt ettt et st eteetestese e eser et e seasaseaseste st seesesnensans 22
) LI VA (=T 0 1 e To o [T F= 1 o T U PUPURURRt 25
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Perimeter SECUNILY OFfiCEI e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s e s e astsaeeeaeaaaaeeeeenannnes 9
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 8, 2022 ITEM NO. 3
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
) ED FINGER l,——DocuSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —
SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF LAPTOP COMPUTERS AND ASSOCIATED
" PERIPHERALS - SHI INTERNATIONAL, INC.
RECOMMENDATION

That the Board of Directors consider: 1) Awarding the contract for the purchase of laptop
computers to be utilized by LVCVA ambassadors to SHI, International, Inc. (SHI) in an
amount not to exceed $229,500; 2) Authorizing the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)/President
to sign and execute the contract documents; and 3) Authorizing any residual unexpended
balances from this approved expenditure to revert to available general funds.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT

FY 2023: $229,500 Expenditure
[Efuw #ll
STEVE HILL
BOARD CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority’s (LVCVA) existing lease for personal
computer (PC) equipment expires January 31, 2023. After testing multiple brands and
configurations to ensure compatibility and functionality within the LVCVA’s infrastructure,
Staff made the determination that Hewlett-Packard (HP) laptop computers with docking
stations and monitors were the best option.

The LVCVA received competitive quotes from three vendors. SHI was the lowest priced
responsive company. The proposed agreement includes the purchase of 135 laptop
computers and related peripheral hardware, including monitors, docking stations, and
keyboards. This is a one-time purchase agreement totaling $229,500.
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Page 2
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: November 8, 2022
Subject: Purchase of Laptop Computers and Associated Peripherals - SHI
International, Inc.

VENDOR LOCATION BID TOTAL
SHI International, Inc. Somerset, NJ $229,500
CDW-Gov Chicago, IL $241,996
Zones, LLC. Seattle, WA $268,792

This item is being brought to the Board for consideration and approval, because the total
accumulated spend with SHI for this purchase, when combined with other existing services
and subscriptions with SHI, exceeds the Chief Executive Officer's $250,000 signature
authority. If the Board approves the proposed agreement, the total amount under contract
with SHI will be $939,319, of which $650,300 was approved by the Board in July 2021.

NRS 332.115 (1.) (g) provides that hardware and associated peripheral equipment for
computers are exempt from competitive bidding.

Per NRS 332.195 (a) the LVCVA is permitted to utilize the contract of another agency or
cooperative agreement as a method of procurement. The joinder contracts of The State of
Nevada allow the LVCVA to leverage the buying power of these agencies who have
previously gone through the competitive procurement process.

SHI is an authorized reseller of HP computer hardware.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DAre: NOVEMBER 8, 2022 ITEM NO. 4
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: ED FINGER, CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (—e—

I333/CAIFG364C U™

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY BUDGET AND STATISTICAL REPORT

RECOMMENDATION

The Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority Budget and Statistical Report for the
quarter ending September 30, 2022 is presented to the Board of Directors for its information
and review.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None
DocuSigned by:
Stowe #ill
STEVE HILL
BOARD CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Internal policies require that interim financial reports, which permit comparison of recorded
transactions and account balances with the approved budget and policy compliance, be
prepared and distributed to the Board of Directors on a periodic basis. In addition, information
which may interest the Board is presented.



LAS BUDGET

M_ AND

CONVENTION AND STATISTICAL
VISITORS AUTHORITY RE PO RT

September FY 2023

GENERAL FUND OPERATING REVENUES: YEAR-TO-DATE COMPARISONS

( )
YEAR TO DATE - THRU SEPTEMBER 2022
$120 OPERATING REVENUES INCLUDE:
* Room Taxes
* Gaming Fees
* Facility charges for services:
se0 1R [ LVCC & Cashman (prior to FY2020)
769 Bl 84.1 92.4 * Interest Earnings
" l 21.4 I
FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23
L 5 Year Average *Report was adjusted to reflect the actual results for room tax.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

v Year-to-date General Fund total operating revenues are 9.8% higher than last year. (Pg. 2)
¥ Year-to-date room tax earnings are up 16.5% compared to last year. (Pg. 3)

Year-to-date Average Daily Rate (ADR) of $139.43 is up 7.4% compared to last year. With the exception of January
v 2022, each month of FY 2022 is a record high ADR, and the first 3 months of FY 2023 continue the trend of record
high ADR. (Pg. 4)

¥ Year-to-date Occupancy Rate (OR) of 79.4% increased 7.4% compared to prior year. (Pg. 5)
Year-to-date Average Rooms Occupied Daily (AROD) is 128,267 and has grown 8.7% from last year. (Pg. 5)

FINANCE COMMENTS:

This report reflects operating results for the first three months of FY 2023 and a summary of the first fiscal-quarter
investment activities. General Fund room tax revenues for the current fiscal year-to-date show a 16.5% increase
compared to the prior year. ADR continues to set records, and the occupancy rate is near 80%.

The investment report reflects compliance with policy requirements including maturities, ROI, and diversification.
Year-to-date effective rate of return was 2.78%. The investment report, included herein, was prepared by FHN, the
LVCVA's investment portfolio manager.
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GENERAL FUND

- Fy 2023
CONVENTION AND July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

VISITORS AUTHORITY

Statement of Sources & Uses of Funds
For the Period Ending September 30, 2022 (a)

YTD Prior YTD % of Annual % of Prior Year
Actual Actual Change Budget Budget Total
REVENUES
Room Tax & Gaming Fees ® 78,523,551 67,427,631 16% 306,200,000 26% 295,400,981
LVCC Revenue
Facility Use 5,648,821 7,770,759 -27% 36,971,300 15% 36,422,360
Ancillary 2,834,870 3,431,548 7% 23,079,500 12% 22,969,895
Other © 317,298 452,236 -30% 12,411,900 3% 2,820,828
Monorail® 5,054,785 5,036,124 0% 21,000,000  24% 20,130,733
Total Revenues $ 92,379,325 $ 84,118,298 10% $ 399,662,700 23% $ 377,744,797
EXPENDITURES
General Government 5,300,351 4,842,417 9% 20,464,500 26% 15,658,529
Marketing
Advertising 18,946,517 11,884,573 59% 94,000,000 20% 75,768,693
Marketing & Sales 6,354,953 3,282,468 94% 34,564,300 18% 15,846,705
Special Events 7,664,679 8,029,033 -5% 27,528,275  28% 25,892,489
Operations 15,035,979 13,897,498 8% 71,169,200 21% 57,954,609
Collection Allocation ® 7,852,355 6,742,763 16% 25,000,000 31% 25,000,000
Total Expenditures $ 61,154,834 $ 48,678,752 26% $ 272,726,275 22% $ 216,121,025

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES $ 31,224,491 $ 35439546 -12% $ 126,936,425 25% $ 161,623,772

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & (USES)

Transfers to Other Funds (13,864,719) (11,753,545)  18% (125,328,878) 11% (146,051,476)
Transfers from Other Funds 25,040 2,213 1031% 130,000 19% 90,061
Proceeds - Sale of Capital Assets - - 0% 25,000 0% 40,886
Total Sources & (Uses) $ (13,839,679) $ (11,751,332) 18% $ (125,173,878) 11% $ (145,920,529)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 17,384,812 $ 23,688,214 -27T% $ 1,762,547 986% $ 15,703,243

(a) Using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
(b) Report has been adjusted from the general ledger at September 30, 2022 to reflect actual room tax and gaming fees, while the general ledger reports estimates for the quarter. It also reflects estimated Monorail revenue based
on cash collections for September 30, 2021.

(c) Other includes interest and other charges and fees. Not adjusted for fair market value.

YEAR-TO-DATE GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES & USES

Collection Allocation

: 10%
Operations

20%

Transfers to Debt Service

/ & Other

19%

/_General (;;vernment
Advertising_— .
25%

\Marketing & Special

Events
19%
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LAS
A GROSS ROOM TAX REVENUE
%M— FY 2023
SiaTToRs Ao July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

VISITORS AUTHORITY

ROOM TAX: FY 2022 ACTUAL TO FY 2023 ACTUAL

Month Variation
Activity | Received FY 2022 FY 2023 Month YTD % Month % YTD
Jun Aug $ 19,991,471 | $ 27,029,376 $ 7,037,905 | $ 7,037,905 35.2% (AN  35.2% |4
Jul Sep 25,252,927 27,162,417 $ 1,909,490 | $ 8,947,395 7.6%|(MN  19.8% |4
Aug Oct 21,854,744 24,000,143 $ 2145399 | $ 11,092,794 9.8%|MN| 16.5% |1
Sep Nov 23,146,415
Oct Dec 29,274,563
Nov Jan 24,236,861
Dec Feb 21,801,147
Jan Mar 19,077,702
Feb Apr 19,984,082
Mar May 28,106,033
Apr Jun 30,193,988
May Jul 31,104,355
$ 294,024,288 | $ 78,191,936

YEAR-TO-DATE ROOM TAX

Compared to Prior Years

$ in Millions

Page 3




Z %uvsmmu AND
VISITORS AUTHORITY

CLARK COUNTY BLENDED AVERAGE DAILY RATE

FY 2023

July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

CLARK COUNTY BLENDED AVERAGE DAILY RATE: FY 2023 ACTUAL TO FY 2022 ACTUAL

Variation
High High Year FY 2022 FY 2023 Month YTD
June $ 144.53 2023 $ 12011 |$ 144.53 20.3% |ih| 20.3% |
July 139.12 2023 138.23 139.12 0.6% || 9.8% |M
August 134.65 2023 131.17 134.65 27% || 7.4% |
September 142.45 2022 142.45
October 156.51 2022 156.51
November 141.02 2022 141.02
December 131.84 2022 131.84
January 145.06 2019 138.19
February 136.65 2022 136.65
March 149.56 2022 149.56
April 159.97 2022 159.97
May 161.02 2022 161.02
Average $ 14223 | $ 139.43

CLARK COUNTY BLENDED AVERAGE DAILY RATE
(Year-to-Date Average)

Average Daily Rate
(ADR) is a blended
average of the taxable
rates for all of the
hotels and motel units
in the Las

Vegas,
Laughlin and Mesquite
areas. ADR shown
herein is tied to
LVCVA's room tax
received for the month
of hotel/motel activity.

FY2023

$139.43

$129.84

FY2021 $86.59

\/
020

$113.77

FY2019
$108.40

$0 $100
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LAS

%)uvsmou AND
VISITORS AUTHORITY

OCCUPANCY RATE

FY 2023

July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022

OCCUPANCY RATE: FY 2022 ACTUAL TO FY 2023 ACTUAL

FY 2023

VARIATIONS (%)

FY 2022 O.R. A.R.O.D.
Avg Rooms
paan S #of Rooms | TR | cenaon py | [MRasrts | Fota(ORsL | ol
(AROD) (AROD) Month Month
June 91.5%| 2017 158,059 73.9% 116,806 161,801 81.1% 131,221 9.7%| M 12.3% |0
July 92.5% | 2018 160,434 77.3% 124,015 161,630 82.0% 132,537 6.1%| M 6.9% |
August 89.6% | 2008 160,434 70.5% 113,106 161,393 75.0% 121,045 6.4%| M 7.0% (A
September | 90.4% | 2017 160,783 70.9% 113,995
October 90.8% | 2016 160,800 79.0% 127,032
November 86.2% | 2020 160,752 75.0% 120,564
December 82.3% | 2020 160,752 69.9% 112,366
January 84.0% | 2008 160,766 58.3% 93,727
February 87.5% | 2008 160,981 68.3% 109,950
March 91.6% | 2017 160,972 79.3% 127,651
April 89.6% | 2018 160,773 82.4% 132,477
May 89.4% | 2015 161,981 81.0% 131,205
Average | 73.8% 118,574 79.4% 128,267 7.4% | & 8.7% &

(1) Rank for record high year is from fiscal year 2008 to current.

Occupancy Rate (OR) is based on a monthly survey of
all hotel and motel properties in Clark County. OR

shown herein is tied to the month of hotel/motel activity.
(Survey is conducted by LVCVA Research)

OCCUPANCY RATE
Year-to-Date Average

FY2023

79.4%

Y2022

FY2021

42.3%

73.9%

FY2020

88.7%

FY2019

0%

88.4%

80%
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ROOM TAX DISTRIBUTION - BUDGET FOR FY 2023

Based on LVCVA's Budgeted Room Tax

Amount Percent

LVCVA Retains for Operations & Marketing S 286,472,865 31.7%

4 - 5% distributed to LVCVA| S 305,000,000

SB 1 - restricted for LVCCD Activities 31,415,000

(Less: Collection Allocation Paid to Entities) (25,000,000)

(Less: Debt Service for Transportation) (24,942,135)
Portion Distributed to Entity / Jurisdiction 93,242,295 10.3%

1 - 2% Room Tax Retained by Entity 68,242,295

Collection Allocation to Entities 25,000,000
State of Nevada Schools (3%) 192,000,000 21.2%
Clark County School District (1 5/8%) 110,000,000 12.2%
Clark County Transportation (1%) 72,000,000 8.0%
Stadium Authority (.88%) 98,242,105 10.9%
State General Fund - Tourism (3/8%) 26,928,000 3.0%
Nevada Department of Transportation 24,942,135 2.8%
TOTAL 12% - 13.38% ROOM TAX $ 903,827,400 100.0%

@ a portion of proceeds are allocated to NV Commission on Tourism (NCOT)
All Other Agencies
LVCVA

35%

Education/School

Construction
33%
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LAS LVCCD CAPITAL FUND

- FY 2023
July 1, 2022 through September 30, 2022
CONVENTION AND

VISITORS AUTHORITY

Statement of Sources & Uses of Funds
For the Period Ending September 30, 2022 (a)

YTD Annual % of Budget Prior Year
Actual Budget Budget Remaining Total
REVENUES
Room Tax - SB1 ® 8,063,438 31,415,000 26% (23,351,562) 30,359,686
Other© 111,305 121,500,000 0% (121,388,695) 1,842,274
Total Revenues $ 8,174,743 $ 152,915,000 5% $ (144,740,257) $ 32,201,960
EXPENDITURES
Construction WIP $ 5,079,427 $ 152,000,000 3% $ 146,920,573 $ 12,013,404
Bond issuance costs 556,600 1,200,000 46% 643,400 -
Total Expenditures $ 5,636,027 $ 153,200,000 4% $ 147,563,973 $ 12,013,404
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES $ 2,538,716 $ (285,000)  891% $ 2,823,716 $ 20,188,556
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES & (USES)
Transfers In - General Fund - 55,000,000 0% (55,000,000) 95,000,000
Transfers In - Collection Allocation - 5,620,000 0% (5,620,000) 4,540,098
Transfers In - LVCCD Debt Service Fund 8,616 40,000 22% (31,384) 35,825
Bond Proceeds 150,000,000 150,000,000 100% - -
Bond Premiums (net of discount) 13,896,125 - 0% 13,896,125 -
Trans Out - LVCCD Debt (10,931,193) (39,674,053) 28% 28,742,860 (38,729,053)
Total Other Financing Sources & (Uses) $ 152,973,548 $ 170,985,947 89% $ (18,012,399) $ 60,846,870
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 155,512,264 $ 170,700,947 91% $  (15,188,683) $ 81,035,426

(a) Using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
(b) Report has been adjusted from the general ledger at September 30, 2022 to reflect actual room tax, gaming fees, while the general ledger reports estimates for the quarter.

(c) Other includes interest and other charges & fees. Not adjusted for fair market valueand includes land sale for budget.

Finance Comments:

The Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD) Capital Fund was created as a result of the passage of Senate Bill 1 (SB1), in the
30th Special Session of the Nevada Legislature, providing for a one-half of one percent (0.5%) increase to transient lodging tax. The
revenues are legislatively restricted to support the capital financing program for the convention center expansion and renovation program.
The LVCCD Capital Fund was created to properly account for all restricted LVCCD resources, in compliance with statutory intent and
appropriate reporting standards.
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Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority

SECTOR ALLOCATION

MMF 0.6%

EMS 0.0%

LGIP 16.9%

Per Book Value

ACCOUNT SUMMARY

Market Value
Book Value

Agy 25.3%

Tsy 37.2%

9/30/22

$458,546,505
$468,896,795

8/31/22

$293,085,199
$299,897,711

Variance

Par Value

Net Asset Value
Avg Weighted Yield
Years to Maturity

Effective Duration

*Book Value is Amortized

All percentages may not total to 100% due to rounding.

-510,350,290
$477,955,013
$97.793
2.78%

131

1.26

-56,812,512
$306,377,705
$97.728
2.03%

1.78

1.65

Portfolio Summary

MATURITY DISTRIBUTION

100% - = MMF
90% - mLGIP
80% - cp
70% - CD
60% - 55.25% mTsy
50% W Agy
40%

30% 20.22%

20% - 13.55% 9.72%

10% 1 1.26%

0% : : “ -|

0-1Y 1-2Y 2-3Y 3-4Y 4-5Y

Per Book Value

MONTH-END PORTFOLIO BOOK YIELD

3.30% -~

2.80% -

2.30% -

1.80% -

1.30% -

0.80% -

NR: Not Rated

0.30%

Oct-21
Nov-21

Jul-22

Dec-21
Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22
Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Aug-22
Sep-22

Per Book Value

9/30/2022
CREDIT QUALITY (MOODY'S)
Aaa [ ©.3%
Aa3 | 0.0%
Aa2 0.0%
Aal 0.0%
Al | 0.0%
A2 0.0%
A3 0.0%
P-1 | 19.9%
p-2 0.0%
NR-EMS | 0.0%
NR-Agency 0.9%
NR-LGIP |- 16.9%
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%
TOP ISSUERS
Issuer % Portfolio
U.S. Treasury 37.2%
NV LGIP 16.9%
FHLB 11.4%
FFCB 8.7%
Credit Agricole 3.2%
Mizuho Bank 3.1%
JP Morgan Securities 3.1%
FNMA 2.4%
Toronto Dominion Bank 2.1%
Royal Bank of Canada 2.1%
Citi Group Inc 2.1%
Royal Bank of Canada 2.1%
Toyota 2.1%
Citibank 2.1%
FHLMC 2.0%
FAMCA 0.9%
AllSpring Govt MMF 0.6%



Investment Policy Compliance
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

Portfolio As Of September 30, 2022

The LVCVA's total investment portfolio is diversified into various types of assets which are allowed by its investment policy
and by Nevada Revised Statues. A summary breakdown of the assets is as follows:

U.S. Treasury Demand Commercial LVCVA Investment Portfolio by Fund
&Agency  Dep/MMF  Paper o (MonS )t rung
General Fund $ 42,307,957 34,589 $ 19,814,967 S - $ 12,875,473 $ 75,032,986 Service General 0PEB$63.81
$19.18 Fund
OPEB Reserve 1,994,427 . - - 336982 2,331,410 | yccops $75.03  Reserve
Capital Fund 53,514,557 7,500 - - 10,287,703 63,809,760 310.95
LVCCD 195,566,692 2,910,567 63,696,182 10,000,000 25,412,725 297,586,166
LVCCD Debt Service - - - - 10,954,759 10,954,759
Debt Service Funds - - - - 19,181,714 19,181,714
Totals $293,383,633 $ 2,952,656 $ 83,511,149 $ 10,000,000 $ 79,049,357 $468,896,795
Authorized Limits* 100% 40% 25% 25% 50%
Actual 62.6% 0.6% 17.8% 2.1% 16.9% 100.0%

Figures may not total due to rounding.
* To ensure diversification of the LVCVA's portfolio, the investment policy contains the maximum levels for
each type of investment.



Investment Policy Compliance

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022
|
Item / Sector Parameters In Compliance
Weighted Average Maturity Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) must be less than 2.5 years Yes: 1.31Yrs
U.S. Treasuries 100% sector limit, no issuer limit, maximum maturity 10 years Yes: 37.2%
Federal Agencies 100% sector limit, 20% issuer limit, maximum maturity 10 years Yes: 25.3%

25% sector limit, rated AAA or its equivalent by an NRSRO, consisting of securities issued by Federal

Money Market Mutual Funds Yes: 0.0%
y Government or agencies of the Federal Government. 0

Commercial Paper & 25% sector limit, maximum maturity 270 days for CP and 180 days for Banker's Acceptance, minimum Yes: 17.8%

Bankers Acceptance rating of A-1 (S&P) or P-1 (Moody's) ' o
25% sector limit, minimum rating of A-1 (S&P) P-1 (Moody's) F-1 (Fitch) by at least two, must be

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit ° . .g , ( ) ( v's) ( )by Yes: 2.1%
collateralized beyond the FDIC limits

LGIP 50% sector limit *Yes: 16.9%

Deposits and Repo 40% sectors limit, repo max maturity of 7 days, repo collateralized at 102% of market value Yes: 0.0%

*May exceed limit for up to ten business days if approved by CFO.
Securities' market values are derived from the Entity's custodian.



$1,200 -
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Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority

Historical Book Values

e
3 $ 58 & 5 53 $ 8 5 5 53 $ 5 5 5 53 $ 5 55 53 %5 5 5 &
n oz - = S n oz - = S n oz - = S wo oz S S wo oz - =S
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Fiscal Year 2019 $433.7 $426.6 $417.2 $790.9 $959.1 $954.0 $956.7 $973.7 $947.3 $896.7 $923.4 $833.9
Fiscal Year 2020 $817.3 $791.6 $736.8 $770.9 $896.0 $832.9 $803.0 $725.3 $676.5 $666.5 $638.1 $600.6
Fiscal Year 2021 $501.6 $453.0 $431.0 $407.9 $400.0 $377.4 $345.7 $339.5 $302.0 $282.1 $285.6 $260.8
Fiscal Year 2022 $204.9 $212.8 $223.8 $235.1 $250.4 $270.1 $256.2 $261.3 $271.9 $296.2 $310.7 $311.5
Fiscal Year 2023 $282.9 $298.7 $384.9
Figures in Millions, Average Daily Balance

9/30/2022




Weighted Average Maturity and Aging Report
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

Weighted Average Maturity History
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Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority

Purchase YTM Per 6-Month Maturity Intervals

9/30/2022

Purchase Yield

Years | Purchase Yield | % of Portfolio*

Oto.5 3.01% 38.38%
5t01.0 3.59% 16.87%
1.0to 1.5 2.97% 9.73%
1.5t02.0 1.07% 3.82%
2.0to 2.5 1.38% 4.49%
2.5t03.0 2.54% 15.73%
3.0to 3.5 2.39% 6.61%
3.5t04.0 1.49% 3.11%
4.0to 4.5 1.59% 1.26%
45t05.0 0.00% 0.00%

*Based on Book Value
Percentages may not total to 100% due to rounding.

4.5%

4.0%

3.5%

3.0%

2.5%

2.0%

1.5%

1.0%

0.5%

0.0%

Bubble Size = Maturity's % of Portfolio

1.59%

2.0 2.5
Maturity Intervals




Maturity Distribution
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

»160 1 = MMF mLGIP cP mCD mTsy m Agy $152.00

$140 -

$119.95

$120 -

$100 -
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$61.00
$46.00
SO T T T T

0-3M 3-6M 6-12M 12-18M 18-24M 2-10Y

$80 -

Millions

$60 -

$40 -

$20 -

Par Value in Millions



Historical Sector Allocation
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

55% -
50% -
45% -
40% -
== LGIP
35% -~
=@ CDs
30% - —p—AGY
25% - == TSY
=fi—EMS
20% - A~ CP
15% - == MMF
10% -
5% \ AN A = A A A .
A\ A - i I — .
N e —
0% . . . . . . . — i i —————— —l
Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22
Sector Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22
Agency 23.9% 21.1% 21.5% 19.5% 19.5% 18.1% 10.6% 12.8% 16.9% 18.8% 19.8% 25.3%
Treasury 16.5% 18.8% 22.6% 28.2% 31.4% 29.2% 33.9% 32.9% 47.0% 46.8% 46.8% 37.2%
Commercial Paper 3.7% 3.5% 4.7% 8.2% 4.9% 4.5% 4.3% 4.2% 4.7% 10.9% 9.9% 17.8%
Certificates of Deposit 6.2% 0.0% 0.0% 3.8% 3.7% 3.5% 3.3% 3.2% 3.6% 3.3% 3.3% 2.1%
LGIP 49.7% 50.8% 49.8% 40.3% 40.2% 40.9% 45.0% 46.8% 27.8% 20.1% 20.1% 16.9%
Money Market 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.6%
EMS 0.0% 5.8% 1.3% 0.0% 0.2% 3.7% 3.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Percentages may not total to 100% due to rounding.



Issuer Allocation
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

U.S. Treasury 37.2%
NV LGIP
FHLB
FFCB
Credit Agricole
Mizuho Bank
JP Morgan Securities
FNMA
Toronto Dominion Bank
Royal Bank of Canada
Citi Group Inc
Toyota
Citibank
FHLMC
FAMCA
AllSpring Govt MMF
BofA EMS

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 4(;%

Percentages may not total to 100% due to rounding.
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Purchase Yield and Weighted Avg Maturity
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022
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Historical Earnings and Average Weighted Yield

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

Fiscal Year-to-Date Earnings

$20,000 | @Fy 2019
EFY 2020
$15,000 | mFy 2021
(7} M FY 2022
5]
S $10,000 1| wry 2023
(7]
S
o
= $5,000 -
$0
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Fiscal YTD ($000s) Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
FY 2019 $674 51,385 $2,102 53,498 $5,140 $7,007 58,872 $10,670 $12,677 $14,591 $16,558 $18,311
FY 2020 $1,759 $3,503 $5,045 $6,517 58,136 59,637 $10,969 $12,258 $13,306 $14,287 $15,134 $15,899
FY 2021 $631 $1,149 51,588 51,948 $2,274 52,563 52,836 $3,107 $3,344 $3,552 $3,750 $3,930
FY 2022 $154 $306 5449 5594 $742 5894 51,044 51,211 $1,401 $1,615 51,865 $2,174
FY 2023 $449 $945 51,693
2 50% Monthly Book Rate of Return vs Benchmark
. 0 7
2.25% -
2.00% -
1.75% -
1.50% -
e=g==Portfolio
1.25% - == Benchmark
1.00% T T T T T T T T 1
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Book Rate of Rtn 1.87% 2.02% 2.36%
Custom Benchmark* 1.49% 1.92% 2.35%
Variance 0.38% 0.10% 0.01%

*Benchmark: ICE BofAML 0-1 Year US Treasury Note Index (6 Month Moving Average)
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Investment Activity
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority 9/30/2022

Number of Positions at Month End

120 -

110 -

100 -
(%]
c
2 9 - — * >~
‘»
o
a 30 - /

70 -~

60 T T T T T T T T T T T 1

Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22
Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22

Positions 78 79 83 88 90 90 90 92 96 100 100 109

10 - Purchases and Redemptions* (Excluding LGIP & MMF) A Purchases

i M Redemptions

Number of Transactions
O R, N W b U1 O N 00 O

il B Wy el

Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22

*Redemptions include maturities, calls, and sells (excluding paydowns)

Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22
Purchases 1 3 4 8 3 0 4 2 5 5 1 9
Redemptions 1 2 0 3 1 0 4 0 1 1 1 0
Total Transactions 2 5 4 11 4 0 8 2 6 6 2 9
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Las Vegas Convention & Visitor
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Summary
September 30, 2022

Par Market Book % of Days to YT™M

Investments Value Value Value  Portfolio Maturity 365 Equiv.
Federal Agency Non-Callables 110,953,000.00 106,910,311.76 108,935,201.55 23.23 564 3.603
Federal Agency Discounts 10,000,000.00 9,930,100.00 9,929,383.33 2.12 76 3.467
Treasury Notes 170,000,000.00 156,494,080.00 164,700,698.53 35.13 868 2.106
Treasury Bills 10,000,000.00 9,826,000.00 9,818,350.00 2.09 173 3.962
Commercial Paper Discounts 85,000,000.00 83,463,300.00 83,511,148.71 17.81 169 3.471
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 10,000,000.00 9,920,700.00 10,000,000.00 2.13 285 3.772
Demand Deposits 1,639.36 1,639.36 1,639.36 0.00 1 0.010
Money Market Funds 2,951,016.81 2,951,016.81 2,951,016.81 0.63 1 0.101
NV Local Gov Inv Pool 79,049,356.91 79,049,356.91 79,049,356.91 16.86 1 2.043
477,955,013.08 458,546,504.84 468,896,795.20 100.00% a77 2.777

Investments

Total Earnings

September 30 Month Ending

Fiscal Year To Date

Current Year 747,992.50 1,693,175.51
Average Daily Balance 384,923,639.84 321,488,296.67
Effective Rate of Return 2.36% 2.09%

FHN Financial Main Street Advisors,

Reporting period 09/01/2022-09/30/2022

Run Date: 10/19/2022 - 09:20

Portfolio CONV

AP

PM (PRF_PM1) 7.3.0
Report Ver. 7.3.6.1
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 8DEB1183-A529-48F4-835C-55B50E7EB293

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
AGENDA DOCUMENTATION

MEETING
vt NOVEMBER 8, 2022 ITEM NO. 5
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

_ CAROLINE BATEMAN —Docusinadty
FROM: GENERAL COUNSEL baroline Blornan
SUBJECT: CONTRACTS REPORT

RECOMMENDATION

Pursuant to Board Policies (1.04 and 5.01) and Chapters 332 and 338 of the Nevada Revised
Statutes, the Contracts Report serves to notify the Board of Directors of the following: 1)
Contractual commitments, change orders, or amendments to contracts executed under the
CEOQO’s Signature Authority that exceed $50,000; 2) Contractual commitments and
amendments to contracts related to the Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD)
projects as executed under the delegated authority of the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO)/President; and 3) Public works contracts awarded by the Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

FISCAL IMPACT

TBD
[Ex‘uw Kl
STEVE HILL
BOARD CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

General Counsel will present the quarterly Contracts Report regarding the general
contractual commitments and amendments performed under the CEO’s Signature Authority
as well as the commitments and amendments executed pursuant to the Board’s delegation
of authority to the CEO/President, and/or to comply with statutory reporting requirements.




LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED - SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

AMENDMENTS TO CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS RELATED TO THE LAS
VEGAS CONVENTION CENTER DISTRICT (LVCCD):

This exhibit provides a list of individual project contracts and amendment approvals of less than
$1M each made by the LVCVA staff based upon authority granted to the CEO during the April 9,
2018, LVCVA Board meeting for the LVCCD project. Approvals greater than $1M will be
approved by the LVCVA Board.

Original
Amendment Contractor/ Description/ Board Contract Amendment Revised Amount
Date Supplier Justification Approved Amount Amount
Amount
The Boring EmeArggnc
September 2022 Company Y $48,675,000 $48,197,548 $750,000 $48,947,548
(TBC) Egress Shaft

for Station #4

AMENDMENTS TO CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS:

In compliance with Board Policy, 5.01 Article V Procurement and Disposition of Property, we are
providing the following list of contract amendment(s) with a change to the monetary amount,
and/or materially affects either party’s rights, for the period July 1, 2022, through September 30,
2022. The original contract(s) were previously approved in accordance with LVCVA policy;
however, the monthly report is required to be delivered to the governing body per board policy.

Amendment Original Amendment Revised

Contractor/Supplier Description/Justification

Date Amount Amount Amount

August 2022 | Converge One Inc Addition of Hardware $1,193,152 $33,904 $1,227,056




LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2022

USE OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CONTINGENCY RELATED TO THE LAS
VEGAS CONVENTION CENTER DISTRICT (LVCCD):

In compliance with Board Policy, 5.01 Article V Procurement and Disposition of Property, the
following information is provided to inform you of the cumulative use of construction contract
contingency amounts, related to the LVCCD, for the period of July 1, 2022, through September
30, 2022.

OWNER CONTROLLED CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURES (NON-GMP)

Contractor LVCVA Description Agreed Upon

Contract No. Amount

NONE

CMAR GMP CONTINGENCY EXPENDITURES

Contractor LVCVA Description Agreed Upon

Contract No. Amount

NONE

USE OF DISCRETIONARY ALLOCATION ALLOWANCE FOR ALL OTHER
CONTRACTS

Contractor LVCVA Description Agreed Upon

Contract No. Amount
Geotechnical & 4599 e Las Vegas Convention Center Loop for $39,000
Environmental Services Soil Samples

REVIEW OF DELEGATED POWERS AND DUTIES:

Individual project contracts of less than $1M each made by the LVCVA staff based upon authority
granted to the CEO during the April 9, 2018, Board meeting, for the period of July 1, 2022, through
September 30, 2022.

Contractor Description Agreed Upon
Amount
Geotechnical & Environmental 4599 e Phase 3 — Geotechnical Consulting $345,000
Services
PUBLIC WORKS:

In compliance with N.R.S. 338.143 - 338.1446, we are providing the following list of projects
meeting the definition of “public works” for the period of July 1, 2022, through Sep 30, 2022. The
projects were previously approved in accordance with LVCVA policy; however, the quarterly
report is required to be delivered to the governing body per NRS.



Contracts already approved by the LVCVA Board of Directors:

Award

Vendor

Amount

Description
NONE

Other Bids Received

Contracts awarded between $25,000 and $249,999.99:

Amount

Description

Other Bids Received

8/10/22 Pope $45,000 Fire Alarm Repair and e Statewide Fire and
Technologies Inspections Protection
8/26/22 Kone, Inc $47,000 Install 23 Door Restrictors | ¢ TKE Elevator
9/1/22 ACCO $177,490 Central Plant Control e Joinder — National
Engineered Systems Upgrade Cooperative Purchasing
Systems Alliance
Contracts awarded under $25,000:
Award \ Vendor Amount Description \
7/27/22 Conti Corporation $16,185 o Install and Test West Hall Speakers
8/3/22 Ad Art Sign Company $5,380 o Central Station Signage
8/4/22 Automatic Door and Glass $7,061 o Install Door at Engineering Office
8/31/22 Expansion Specialties $10.000 e Expansion Joint Repairs — South Hall

USE OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CONTINGENCY:

In compliance with Board Policy, 5.01 Article V Procurement and Disposition of Property, the
following information is provided to inform you of the cumulative use of construction contract
contingency amounts for the period of July 1, 2022, through Sep 30, 2022. These amounts are a
component of the capital project budgets approved by the LVCVA Board of Directors.
Contingency allowances were included in the project budgets to serve three core purposes: 1) to
account for errors and omissions in the construction documents; 2) to modify or change the scope
of the project, and; 3) to pay for unknown/unforeseen conditions. All the change orders presented
below were within these criteria and were approved in compliance with the LVCVA’s delegation
of authority policies.

LVCVA
Contract No.
4680

Contractor

Description

Agreed Upon
Amount
$8,903

ACCO Engineered Provide and Install Fuses

Systems

REVIEW OF DELEGATED POWERS AND DUTIES:

In compliance with Board Policy, 5.01 Article V Procurement and Disposition of Property, the
following information is provided to inform you of contractual commitments of $50,000 or greater,
approved by LVCVA staff, otherwise not shown in this report, for the period of July 1, 2022
through Sep 30, 2022.




Contractor

Agreed
Upon

Description

Amount

Screaming Images 9/1/22 - 8/31/23 $50,000 Monorail Signage Print/Advertising

Window Masters 9/1/22 - 8/31/23 $51,550 Window Cleaning Services

Aviareps Tourism GMBH 9/19/22 - 12/16/22 $55,000 International Representation — Korea

HSI Workplace 9/1/22 - 8/31/25 $56,880 Workplace Safety Online Training

Conti Corporation 7/1/22 - 6/30/24 $84,942 AV Equipment Support and Maintenance

DocuSign Inc. 8/1/22-17/31/23 $89,414 Electronic Signature Software

Premier Property 10/1/22 - 9/30/23 $99,648 On Call Cleaning Services

Preservation

Ahern Rentals N/A $109,520 Purchase of 60" Articulating Boom Lift

The Griffin Company, LLC. 7/1/22 - 6/30/23 $120,000 Lobbying Services

NZERO 10/1/22 - 9/30/23 $120,000 Carbon Emissions Monitoring

Stageright Corporation N/A $168,682 Purchase of Staging Equipment to Match
Existing Inventory

ACCO Engineered Systems N/A $177,490 Central Plant Control System Upgrade

WTM London 11/7/22-11/9/22 $54,990 World Travel Market (WTM) Event

Conex Exhibition Services 8/20/22 $80,307 American Society of Associations
Executives (ASAE) Event; Booth Design
and Setup

UFI The Global Association 11/14/22-11/17/22 $68,000 89th Global Congress in Oman

of Exhibition Industry

IBTM World 9/13/22 - 9/14/22 $82,287 Incentives, Business Travel & Meetings
(IBTM) World 2022

Conex Exhibition Services 11/7/22-11/9/22 $152,307 World Travel Market (WTM) 2022

Booth Design and Setup
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 8, 2022 ITEM NO. 6
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
. ED FINGER L——DocusSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —

I333/CAIFG364C U™

SUBJECT: AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS

RECOMMENDATION
The Audit Committee met on November 7, 2022, to discuss items A-E below.

The Audit Committee Chair_will present a report and give the Committee’s
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

Item A. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022
That the Board review the fiscal year (FY) 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report, including independent auditors’ reports.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

Item B. Resolution to Augment Fiscal Year 2023 Budget
That the Board consider approving the proposed budget augmentation and the
adoption of the associated Resolution 2022-05 to augment the FY 2023 General
Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD)
Capital Fund budgets.

For possible action.

Item C. Internal Audit Reports
That the Board receive a report on the LVCVA's internal audit program.

This is an information item and does not require Board action.

Item D. Proposed 2023 Audit Plan
That the Board consider approval of the calendar year 2023 audit plan.

For possible action.

Item E. Appointment of Interna Audit Firm
That the Board consider approving: 1) Reappointment of BDO USA, LLP as the
internal audit firm for the period from January 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023,
in the amount of $225,000; 2) Authorization for the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to
exercise two optional one-year extensions with BDO in the amount of $225,000 per
year; and 3) Authorization for the CFO to execute the agreements.

For possible action.
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Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: November 8, 2022
Subject:

Audit Committee Report and Recommendations

Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority Board of Directors Meeting

Page 2

FISCAL IMPACT
ITEM A
None.

ITEM B

FY 2023 - General Fund:

Increase in budgeted resources:
Beginning General Fund fund balance
Increase in transfers out:

Transfers Out (Capital Projects Fund)
Transfers Out (LVCCD Capital Fund)

FY 2023 — Capital Projects Fund:
Increase in budgeted resources:
Transfers In (General Fund)
Increase in budgeted appropriations:
Capital Outlay

FY 2023 — LVCCD Capital Fund:
Increase in budgeted resources:
Transfers In (General Fund)
Increase in budgeted appropriations:
Capital Outlay

ITEMSC&D
None.

ITEM E

FY 2023:
FY 2024:
FY 2025:
FY 2026:

$112,500 Expenditure
$225,000 Expenditure
$225,500 Expenditure
$112,500 Expenditure

DocuSigned by:

[ St Hil

$40,000,000

$30,000,000
$10,000,000

$30,000,000

$30,000,000

$10,000,000

$10,000,000

BOARD
ACTION:

“STEVEHILL

CEO/PRESIDENT
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITEE MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2022 ITEM A
TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE
. ED FINGER l,——DocuSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —
SUBJECT: ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT (ACFR“) FISCAL YEAR
" ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
RECOMMENDATION

That the Audit Committee review the fiscal year (FY) 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report, including independent auditors’ reports.

This is an information item and does not require Committee action.

FISCAL IMPACT

None
DocuSigned by:
[Ex‘uw Hill
COMMITTEE CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.624 requires each local government to provide for an
annual independent audit of all of its funds and account groups. The statute also requires
the audit to be submitted to the Board of Directors (Board), and the opinions and findings of
the auditor presented at a meeting of the Board. The Audit Committee Charter further
requires the Audit Committee’s review prior to the Board’s.

Submitted herewith is the June 30, 2022, ACFR, including independent auditor’s reports as
required. This report is being submitted within NRS guidelines and without qualification. The
Chief Financial Officer will provide a briefing on the FY 2022 financial results.

A representative from Eide Bailly, LLP will be avaliable to discuss the auditor’s reports.
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October 26, 2022
To the Board of Directors and the citizens of Clark County, Nevada:

We are pleased to present this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority (LVCVA) for the year ending June 30, 2022. Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) requires the LVCVA
to issue a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.

The Finance Department prepared these financial statements and assumes responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, the Finance Department maintains a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
to provide reasonable assurance that the LVCVA’s assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that, based on management’s estimates and judgments, the cost of maintaining
internal controls should not exceed the benefits. We believe the LVCVA’s internal controls adequately safeguard
assets and provide reasonable assurance of the proper recording of financial transactions.

Eide Bailly, LLP, a public accounting firm licensed and qualified to perform audits of local governments within the
State of Nevada, has audited the LVCVA'’s basic financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the basic financial statements of the LVCVA, as of and for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2022, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditors concluded, based upon the audit, that the LVCVA’s basic financial
statements as of and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). The independent auditor's
report is presented on the first three pages of the financial section of this document.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report. It provides

an analytical overview of the LVCVA's operations for fiscal year (FY) 2022. This letter of transmittal is intended to
complement the MD&A and other information contained in this report and should be read in conjunction with it.

REPORTING ENTITY

The LVCVA was created to directly drive tourism to Southern Nevada, through ownership and operation of the Las
Vegas Convention Center (LVCC), and through marketing, sales, and advertising programs in cooperation with our
resort and industry partners.

The LVCVA’s mission statement is:

“To attract visitors by promoting Las Vegas as the world's most desirable destination for
leisure and business travel.”

The LVCVA is a unique destination marketing organization in that it also owns and operates a convention center.
The LVCVA is also a government agency, established by Nevada state law, primarily funded by room tax, and
governed by an autonomous board of directors. The LVCVA’s 14-member board of directors serves on behalf of a
broad cross-section of stakeholders within the local tourism, business, and public sectors.

i



Marketing and Sales

The LVCVA's core purpose as the destination marketing organization is to drive visitation across both leisure and
business segments for Southern Nevada, including Las Vegas, Boulder City, Laughlin, and Mesquite. The LVCVA’s
marketing programs include coordinated efforts among our resort and mission partners, in conjunction with
internal teams and external marketing partners of the LVCVA. Through tailored marketing and sales strategies for
each of the unique Southern Nevada destinations, efforts are designed to maximize demand through multi-
channel advertising, digital marketing, events, sponsorships, and destination sales for each of the unique Southern
Nevada destinations. The LVCVA partners with key transportation agencies and McCarran International Airport
to ensure accessibility to and within the destination. The LVCVA’s sales teams directly sell not only the LVCC but
also distribute leads to individual properties and business partners to drive both leisure and business travel in
Southern Nevada. The overall marketing effort is driven by destination-specific research and industry trends as
insights to enable more effective business strategies and market optimizations.

Las Vegas Convention Center

In addition to marketing and selling the destination, the LVCVA operates
the Las Vegas Convention Center (LVCC) to generate business travel for
meetings and conventions. While leisure travel makes up the majority
of visitors, business travel is a vital component of our market and
historically represents about one in six visitors to Southern Nevada.

The newly expanded LVCC is, year-after-year, one of the busiest
convention facilities in the world: a 4.6 million square foot facility
located within a short distance of more than 100,000 guest rooms. The center is well-known among industry
professionals for its versatility. In addition to approximately 2.6 million square feet of exhibit space, 200 meeting
rooms handle seating capacities ranging from 20 to 2,500. Grand lobbies and registration areas link exhibit halls
and meeting rooms and allow simultaneous set-up, break-down, and exhibiting of multiple events.

Las Vegas was recognized by the Trade Show News Networks (TSNN) as the No. 1 tradeshow destination in the
United States for the last 26 years awarded. The LVCC was at the forefront of the return of significant convention
activity, hosting World of Concrete in June 2021, and had a robust convention lineup during fiscal year 2022,
although attendance was lower than pre-pandemic levels. -

The LVCC Loop is an underground tunnel system that provides fast and
convenient transportation for convention and trade show attendees,
connecting each of the hall sets across the nearly 200-acre LVCC
campus. Built by Elon Musk’s The Boring Company, the LVCC Loop has
three passenger stations that offer convenient access between LVCC
exhibition hall blocks, parking lots, and the Las Vegas Monorail.

ECONOMIC CONDITION

Tourism is the largest industry and economic driver in Southern Nevada. Las Vegas is the home of 12 of the 20
largest hotels in the world and 18 of the 20 largest hotels in the United States. Southern Nevada has a hotel room
inventory exceeding 160,000, with over 150,000 of those rooms located in the Las Vegas metropolitan area.

The LVCVA received record room tax and General Fund revenues in fiscal year 2022, rebounding from the COVID-
19 pandemic financial challenges. The LVCVA’s room tax collections increased 164.3% from the prior year. The Las
Vegas metropolitan area had an improved 5.7% unemployment rate in June 2022, after starting the year at 9.6%
inJuly 2021.




Visitation increased in the calendar year 2021 by 69.4%, from 19.0 million to 32.3 million. In the calendar year
2021, occupancy increased from 42.1% to 66.8%, and average daily room rates increased by 14.2%. June 2022 saw
occupancy levels at 82.7% and ADR at $156.92 which is 6.8% and 22.7% over the prior June.

Las Vegas continues to see recovery into FY2023. Compared to same month in the prior
year, August 2022 monthly visitation increased by 4.0%, with hotel occupancy at 76.8%,
and average daily room rates increased approximately 5.5%.

Las Vegas is known for continually reinventing itself to deliver on the brand promise of
being the premier destination in the world. The Fontainebleau Las Vegas, across from
the LVCC, is scheduled to open in October 2023 with 3,900 rooms. The MSG Sphere, a
17,500-seat performance venue near the Venetian, remains under construction and is
expected to open in 2023. The Boring Company received entitlement from Clark County
and the City of Las Vegas to expand the Las Vegas Loop into a 29-mile system connecting
the airport to downtown.

MAJOR INITIATIVES IN FISCAL YEAR 2022

Las Vegas Convention Center District

Currently, the most significant capital item is Phase Three of the LVCCD project, consisting of the renovation,
modernization, and addition to the existing facility to create consistency with the Phase Two expansion. The Phase
Three architectural design phase resumed in fiscal year 2022. The estimated budget for Phase Three of the LVCCD
project is $600 million. The renovation is expected to begin in fiscal year 2023, with the most significant work
occurring between January 2024 and December 2025.

Transportation Services
The Las Vegas Monorail had a successful return in its first full fiscal year of LVCVA ownership, moving more than
3.3 million passengers, and generating over $2 million in operating income.

In June 2022, the Las Vegas Loop opened the first fare-generating portion of the system to Resorts World, also
the first part of the system connected to a resort property. Although privately owned, this connected
transportation system will support convention transportation to and from the LVCC. The LVCC portion of the Loop
moved approximately 500,000 passengers in its first full year of operation.

Marketing
\1— In late summer 2021, the “The Greatest Arena on Earth,” campaign was

e [aunched, highlighting Las Vegas as the ultimate destination to watch sports,
surrounded by the spectacular scenery and adventures of the Las Vegas valley.

443 s % The LVCVA also continued to drive the return of meetings and conventions
m{mm]mmmuﬂm BB through the “Vegas Means Business” campaign, and carried out successful
SN B diversity, wedding, and extended destination campaigns throughout the year.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The LVCVA finance staff maintain a long-term operational and capital financial planning model, updating long-
term operating forecasts to ensure alignment with the LVCVA's strategic objectives, including the enhancement
of the global Las Vegas brand as a destination for serious business as well as fun. The primary objectives of the
advertising programs are to promote long-term brand awareness that drives domestic and international visitation
for leisure activities. Additionally, business-focused programs emphasize the importance of the meetings and
convention industry, which results in long-term facility leases for tradeshows and meetings.



The LVCCD embodies the long-term strategy of protecting existing business and competitive advantages and
attracting future business for Las Vegas.

The LVCVA believes it is important to maintain a balance between planning for recurring resources to sustain core
operations and strategic financial planning for a multi-year capital program. Analysis of future intended outlays
and anticipated revenues enabled an assessment of overall financial implications, including additional funding
requirements, to be readily identified. A comprehensive, long-range pro forma, forecasting sources and uses of
funds through FY 2049 was created. The pro forma includes conservative growth assumptions for revenues and
operating activities, as well as requirements to meet debt obligations, including all new debt requirements for all
phases of LVCCD. The analysis was used to estimate the level of funding required to support the LVCCD program,
without sacrificing our commitment to the core mission.

Incorporated into the current model includes the following events. The LVCVA agreed to sell 10 surplus acres along
Las Vegas Boulevard for $120 million in October of 2021. The closing is expected to occur in late calendar year
2022, and the proceeds will be utilized for Phase Three construction. In September 2022, the LVCVA issued $150
in revenue bonds to be used for Phase Three construction. The final $150 million of LVCCD authorized debt is also
planned for fiscal year 2024. The remaining funding for Phase Three will come from LVCCD revenues and pay-go
transfers.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Debt Policy
The LVCVA is committed to complying with all federal and other regulatory requirements regarding the issuance

and ongoing management of its debt. The LVCVA’s debt policy establishes the requirements and procedures for
ensuring compliance with federal laws relating to issuance and post-issuance monitoring of tax-exempt bonds and
taxable direct-pay bonds. The policy sets coverage and reserve goals and is also intended to define compliance
practices including compliance actions, records management, disclosure requirements, and process continuity
within the Finance Department and the executive management of the LVCVA.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The annual budget serves as the financial plan of the LVCVA. The planning and preparation begin each December.
The tentative budget is filed by April 15 with the Nevada Department of Taxation and the Clark County Clerk, as
required by Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). Between April 15 and approval of the budget, which is no sooner than
the third Monday in May and no later than the last day in May, the public has the opportunity to review the
tentative budget document and submit any comments for inclusion on the agenda. A public hearing provides the
public an opportunity to submit additional comments on the proposed budget to the Board.

The final budget is fully implemented on July 1 in the LVCVA’s accounting system. The statutory level of budgetary
control is at the function level; in reality, control is maintained at the line-item level through the use of a purchase
order and encumbrance system. An encumbrance is recorded in the accounting system when a purchase order is
issued.

Budget variance reports are distributed to the Board on a regular basis. Adjustments to the overall budget are
accomplished through an augmentation process, which requires adoption by a majority vote of the Board at a
regular meeting to increase appropriations above levels originally approved. This formal resolution procedure
adheres to the process prescribed by NRS.



AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has bestowed the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting on the LVCVA’s Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) for the years ending 1984-2020. The FY 2021 ACFR has been submitted to the GFOA for
consideration of the award; however, at the time of printing, the results have not been received. The LVCVA
believes it will receive the award and will also submit the FY 2022 ACFR to the GFOA for reward consideration.

The preparation of this report involved the dedicated work of staff in the Finance Department, with the support
and cooperation of every division. We welcome inquiries concerning this report and the finances of the LVCVA.

Respectfully submitted,

Steve Hill Ed Finger, CPA
CEO/President Chief Financial Officer
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
As of June 30, 2022

The Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of fourteen members. Eight
members are elected officials of either Clark County or one of its incorporated cities. The Las Vegas Metro Chamber of
Commerce (CC) and Nevada Resort Association (NRA) nominate three each of the remaining six members. Seven of eight
elected officials are selected periodically by their respective governing bodies; their terms on the Board are coterminous with
their terms of office. The eighth elected official, from one of the other incorporated cities, serves a two-year term,
commencing on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. The six remaining members serve a two-year term and can be re-
appointed to additional two-year terms. As of June 30, 2022, members of the board included:

»

JOHN MARZ ANTON NIKODEMUS JIM GIBSON SCOTT DEANGELO

Chair Vice Chair Secretary Treasurer
Councilman Representing resort hotel Commissioner Representing general business
Representing City of Henderson Nominated by NRA Representing Clark County Nominated by CC
Term: Jul 2015 — Dec 2022 Term: Jan 2019 - Jun 2023 Term: Jan 2021 - Dec 2024 Term: Jul 2020 —Jun 2022

MICHELE FIORE CAROLYN G. GOODMAN PAMELA GOYNES-BROWN BRIAN GULLBRANTS

Councilwoman Mayor Councilwoman Representing resort hotel
Representing City of Las Vegas Representing City of Las Vegas Representing North Las Vegas Nominated by NRA
Term: Mar 2018 — Nov 2022 Term: Jul 2011 — Nov 2024 Term: Dec 2018 — Nov 2024 Term: Jan 2019 - Jun 2023

e o

JAN JONES-BLACKHURST KIERNAN MCMANUS MICHAEL NAFT MARY BETH SEWALD

Representing resort hotel Mayor Commissioner Representing other commercial
Nominated by CC Representing Boulder City Representing Clark County Nominated by CC
Term: Sept 2020 — Jun 2023 Term: Aug 2019 — Nov 2022 Term: Jan 2021 - Dec 2022 Term: Jan 2018 —Jun 2023

STEVE THOMPSON BRIAN WURSTEN

Representing resort hotel in central Councilman
business district Representing City of Mesquite
Nominated by NRA Term: Mar 2021 - Jun 2023

Term: Aug 2019 — Jun 2022

vii



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
SENIOR EXECUTIVE STAFF
As of June 30, 2022

The LVCVA Board of Directors serves as a policy-making body and employs a President to serve as Chief Executive Officer. On
June 30, 2022, the LVCVA senior executive team consisted of:

Steve Hill
Chief Executive Officer/President

Caroline Bateman Ed Finger
General Counsel Chief Financial Officer

Nadine Jones Lori Nelson-Kraft
Senior Vice President of People & Culture Senior Vice President of Communications

Kate Wik Brian Yost
Chief Marketing Officer Chief Operating Officer

viii
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
Las Vegas, Nevada

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (the “LVCVA”) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the LVCVA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the LVCVA, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
LVCVA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Authority has adopted the provisions of GASB

Statement No. 87, Leases, for the year ended June 30, 2022. This adoption did not result in a
restatement of net position as of July 1, 2021. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
9139 W. Russell Rd., Ste. 200 | Las Vegas, NV 89148-1250 | T702.304.0405 | F702.304.0415 | EOE



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the LVCVA's ability to
continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the LVCVA’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the LVCVA’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule
of Proportionate Share of the PERS Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Contributions to PERS Pension
Plan, Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual — General
Fund, on pages 5-16 and 58-66 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the LVCVA’s basic financial statements. The individual fund information is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual
fund information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26,
2022 on our consideration of the LVCVA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the LVCVA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the LVCVA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

é&,ﬁﬁdg L

Las Vegas, Nevada
October 26, 2022
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As management of the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (the LVCVA), we offer readers of the LVCVA’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the LVCVA’s financial performance for the fiscal year (FY) ending June 30,
2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information furnished
in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i to v of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Total government-wide revenues increased by approximately $261.9 million. The increase is related to the
continuing recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, which had a significant negative effect on revenues in FY 2020
and FY 2021. FY 2022 finished better than pre-pandemic levels, with room taxes and gaming fees increasing $192.4
million, 136% above the prior year and beating the prior all-time high of $286.4 million in FY 2019. Facility charges
for services increased by 901%, compared to the prior year, due to the number of conventions and a full year of
building utilization, including the expanded space of the West Hall; however, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to
affect the number of show attendees.

Government-wide expenditures increased $103.1 million above the prior year, which was primarily due to the
significant return of conventions to the facility and the related costs associated with supporting those activities,
along with increases in marketing, advertising, and special events to support the recovery of the destination, which
was more than offset by the increase in government-wide revenues. The net result was that government-wide
revenues exceeded expenditures by $103.1 million. Cost containment efforts during the fiscal year resulted in
General Fund ending fund balance increase of $15.7 million, as compared to the budgeted decrease of $25 million.

The LVCVA has commenced Phase Three of the Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD) after previously
postponing it during the COVID-19 pandemic. This is a multi-year renovation of existing facilities which is budgeted
at $600 million. Phase Three is expected to be completed in FY 2026.

The LVCVA completed multiple refunding debt issuances during the fiscal year, with a par value totaling $38.9 million.
This included a $23.6 million revenue bond at a true interest cost of 0.74% and a $15.3 million general obligation
bond at a true interest cost of 1.96%. These issuances generated $1.7 million in savings, with a present value of $1.6
million.

FY 2022 ending net position totaled $286.3 million, a $103.1 million increase from the previous year. This includes
an increase in restricted net position of $0.9 million, primarily attributable to a modest movement in the required
set asides for July annual debt payments. Unrestricted net position increased $96.7 million, ending with a deficit
balance of $71.4 million. This increase is primarily a result of the overall increase in net position driven by increased
revenues.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Although the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is comprised of various sections, the LVCVA’s basic financial statements
are presented in four components:

(1) Government-wide financial statements

(2) Governmental fund financial statements

(3) Proprietary fund financial statements

(4) Notes to the financial statements
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These two financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the LVCVA’s finances in a manner
similar to private-sector business using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting.

The Statement of Net Position is, in substance, the balance sheet. It includes not just current assets and liabilities and deferred
outflows and inflows of resources, but also capital assets and long-term debt. All funds are included in this statement. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the financial position of the LVCVA
is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities is the operating statement for the LVCVA as a whole. It is based on full accrual accounting rather
than the traditional modified accrual. Depreciation and amortization of capital assets is recognized as an expense, as are
compensated absences, post-employment benefits other than pensions (OPEB), an allocated share of Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) net pension liability, pollution obligations, and asset retirement obligations. The format of the
statement has an unfamiliar appearance, and it focuses on the net cost of the LVCVA's individual functions and is intended
to answer the question, “How much did it cost, and how is it being paid?”

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Following the government-wide statements is a section containing the fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over specific activities. Governmental funds use the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting, which focuses on showing how money flows into
and out of funds and the balances left at year end that are available for spending. The LVCVA, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Following the governmental fund financial statements is a section containing the proprietary fund financial statements. The
LVCVA uses an Internal Service Fund to accumulate resources and utilize funds for eventual payment related to OPEB
liabilities. Because this service benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, it is included within the
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting,
which focuses on the determination of net position, operating income, changes in net position, and cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 25 through 57 of this report.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information found on pages 58 through 61, including a schedule of changes in Total OPEB liability, the LVCVA’s
proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability, contributions to the PERS pension plan, and General Fund budgeted
and actual revenues, expenditures, and change in fund balance.

CONDENSED COMPARATIVE DATA

ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION

The LVCVA's change in net position, on the government-wide basis, increased $103.1 million during the year as follows:

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Increase (Decrease)
EY 2021 FY 2022 Amount Percent

Net position —beginning $238,863,906 | $183,187,256 | $(55,676,650) -23%
Revenues 154,557,357 416,463,609 261,906,252 169%
Expenses 210,234,007 313,340,917 103,106,910 49%
Change in net position (55,676,650)| 103,122,692 158,799,342 285%
Net position —ending $183,187,256 | $ 286,309,948 | $103,122,692 56%

The increase in overall net position reflects surging overall revenue, driven by room tax revenue increases and the return of
conventions, following the significant negative impact of COVID-19 restrictions in FY 2021. This is partially offset by increased,
but below pre-pandemic, expenditures, mainly driven by the return from furlough of all LVCVA staff, convention-related
building and utility costs, and the increase of advertising, marketing, and special event programs.

The LVCVA's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources consisted of the following:

| CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Increase (Decrease)
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022 Amount Percent

Current and other assets S 333,714,177 | $ 427,881,725 [ $ 94,167,548 28%
Capital assets 1,766,739,245 1,748,939,726 (17,799,519) -1%

Total assets 2,100,453,422 2,176,821,451 76,368,029 4%
Deferred outflows of resources 39,840,061 42,650,935 2,810,874 7%
Current and other liabilities 71,507,185 81,693,371 10,186,186 14%
Long-term liabilities 1,841,029,433 1,768,570,583 (72,458,850) -4%

Total liabilities 1,912,536,618 1,850,263,954 (62,272,664) -3%
Deferred inflows of resources 44,569,609 82,898,484 38,328,875 86%
Net position

Net investmentin capital assets 297,678,000 303,145,255 5,467,255 2%

Restricted 53,664,875 54,579,329 914,454 2%

Unrestricted (deficit) (168,155,619) (71,414,636) 96,740,983 58%

Total net position $ 183,187,256 | $ 286,309,948 | $ 103,122,692 56%




LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net position consists of investment in capital assets, net of debt used to acquire those assets. Net investment in capital assets
increased $5.5 million or 2.0%, primarily due to the decrease in debt proceeds netted against the decrease in capital asset
value resulting from depreciation.

Restricted net position demonstrates legal constraints from debt covenants or other restrictions that limit the LVCVA’s ability
to use those resources. Restricted net position is primarily composed of funds held for future debt service payments.
Restricted net position increased $0.9 million, related to modest movement in the required set asides for July annual debt
payments.

Unrestricted net position improved $96.7, primarily due to a significant increase in revenues. The continued deficit in
unrestricted net position exists primarily due to approximately $300.0 million of bonds ($239.5 million outstanding) issued
for Nevada Department of Transportation projects that are not assets of the LVCVA. See Note 3 on page 32 for additional
information on net position.

REVENUES

Revenues are classified as either general or program. Program revenues are those directly generated by a function or activity
of the LVCVA. For example, the cost of operating and maintaining the Las Vegas Convention Center (LVCC) is reported in the
Operations function, as well as the LVCVA transportation systems of the Las Vegas Monorail, a seven-stop, 3.9-mile elevated
transportation system along the east side of the Las Vegas Strip, with stations at MGM Grand, Bally’s/Paris, Flamingo/Caesars
Palace, Harrah’s/The LINQ, the Las Vegas Convention Center, the Westgate, and the Sahara, in addition to the Las Vegas
Convention Center Loop (Vegas Loop), an underground tunnel system which transports visitors to three on-campus stations
near the South Hall, Central Hall, and West Hall. Revenues are generated as a direct result of the operation of those facilities
in the form of building rental charges, concession sales, parking fees, Monorail ticket sales, and other charges to users of the
facilities.

The general revenue classification includes all room taxes and gaming fees and investment income because they are neither
related to charges for program services nor restricted for use by a specific function. Clark County (the County) and the
incorporated cities within the County, which includes Las Vegas, levy room tax on all transient lodging establishments, which
is the LVCVA’s primary source of revenue. All revenues that do not qualify as program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

Total government-wide revenues for FY 2022 were $416.5 million, a 169% increase compared to FY 2021.

Increase (Decrease)
FY 2021 FY 2022 Amount Percent
General revenues
Room taxes and gaming fees S 141,107,921 | $ 333,499,733 | $ 192,391,812 136%
Interest and investment earnings 2,011,125 (4,565,368) (6,576,493) -327%
Miscellaneous 505,645 1,524,329 1,018,684 201%
Total general revenue 143,624,691 330,458,694 186,834,003 130%
Program revenues
Operations 8,279,769 82,874,176 74,594,407 901%
Marketing 1,094,676 1,575,194 480,518 44%
General government 1,558,221 1,555,545 (2,676) 0%
Total program revenues 10,932,666 86,004,915 75,072,249 687%
Total revenues S 154,557,357 | S 416,463,609 S 261,906,252 169%

Government-wide room taxes and gaming fees totaled $333.5 million during FY 2022, an increase of $192.4 million. Room
tax is affected by the number of lodging rooms available, occupancy rate, and average daily room rate (ADR). Room inventory
in the County held flat compared to FY 2021, while occupancy percentage increased from 73.7% to 79.8% in FY 2022 ADR
averaged $142.23 in FY 2022, a 55.2% increase over the $91.76 result in FY 2021, and 19.6% over FY 2019, the previous
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highest room tax revenue year. Recovery of domestic travel in FY 2022 represented a year of growth, back to pre-pandemic
levels, for room tax revenues, due to the significant increases in ADR and increases in occupancy.
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The majority of room tax revenue and gaming fees was generated in Clark County ($302.6 million or 91%). The City of Las
Vegas was the second-largest collector of room taxes and gaming fees, at $20.0 million (6%). The other incorporated cities of
North Las Vegas, Henderson, Boulder City, and Mesquite combined to provide the remaining 3%.
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The room tax rate in Clark County averages 10.5% to 14% on lodging facilities, and such rate can only be modified by the
action of the Nevada State Legislature.
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In general, room tax rates for hotel room rentals in Clark County are as follows:

4% - 5% LVCVA - General Fund
0.5% LVCVA — LVCCD Capital Fund
0.0% - 0.88% Las Vegas Stadium Authority

1.625% Clark County School District - Capital Projects

0% -2% City/County (collecting entities jurisdiction) - General Fund

1% Clark County - County transportation tax

0.375% State General Fund — a portion of the proceeds are allocated to tourism
2% -3% State of Nevada - education and other state programs

Interest and investment earnings decreased 327% over the prior period, primarily due the unrealized loss relating to
investment value on June 30, 2022. As the LVCVA's investment policy is to hold investments until maturity, this value is a
temporary snapshot in time indicator, but it is not the maturity value of the investment. A decrease in the average amount
of funds available, coupled with the decrease in market rates also factored into the decline in earnings.

FACILITY OPERATIONS

Increase (Decrease)
FY 2021 FY 2022 Amount Percent
Charges for services S 6,013,411 | $S 62,743,443 | $ 56,730,032 943%
Expense 43,271,997 69,573,491 26,301,494 61%
Net proceeds/(expense) S (37,258,586)| S (6,830,048)] S 30,428,538 82%

Program revenues for Operations increased 943% compared to the prior year, mainly as a result of the return of conventions
and use of the fully expanded building for an entire fiscal year. Although convention attendance remains below pre-pandemic
levels, attendance has increased dramatically, by over 1 million attendees, when compared to FY 2021. Total expenses to
operate the facility were $69.6 million, including depreciation and amortization, an increase of 61% compared to FY 2021.
The increase is primarily due to the return of events to the building, as staff costs increased upon the return of all employees
from furlough, as well as increased utilities costs due to occupation of the building.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
Increase (Decrease)
FY 2021 FY 2022 Amount Percent
Charges for services S 2,266,358 | $ 20,130,733 | $ 17,864,375 788%
Expense 7,906,686 26,615,124 18,708,438 237%
Net proceeds/(expense) S (5,640,328)| S (6,484,391)] S (844,063) -15%

Transportation services include the Las Vegas Monorail and the LVCC Loop, which is not a revenue-generating system for the
LVCVA. Program revenues increased 788%, resulting from of a full year of operations and attendees using the system. Total
expenses for Transportation were $26.6 million, including depreciation and amortization, an increase of 237% compared to
FY 2021. The increase in both expenditures and revenues is due to a full year of operating the transportation systems with a
full schedule of events at the facility.

10
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EXPENSES

Total government-wide expenses by function were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)
FY 2021 FY 2022 Amount Percent
General government S 11,488,338 S 12,702,896 | S 1,214,558 11%
Marketing:
Advertising 52,041,490 75,768,693 23,727,203 46%
Marketing and sales 8,420,162 13,236,041 4,815,879 57%
Special events grants 9,679,335 25,892,489 16,213,154 168%
Operations:
Facility operations 43,271,997 69,573,491 26,301,494 61%
Transportation services 7,906,686 26,615,124 18,708,438 237%
Community support and grants:
Other community support 12,790,212 25,702,631 12,912,419 101%
Interest and fiscal charges 64,635,787 63,849,552 (786,235) -1%
S 210,234,007 $ 313,340,917| S 103,106,910 49%

The LVCVA increased advertising, marketing, and sales spending during FY 2022, as a means to support and bolster a tourism
rebound for the destination. Special events grants increased 168%, compared to the prior year, as regular events in the
destination have resumed and new events, such as the NFL Draft, occurred.

Operations expenses were $69.6 million in FY 2022, including depreciation and amortization, an increase of 61% compared
to FY 2021. The increase is primarily due to the return of furloughed employees whose main function is facility convention
support, along with increased utility costs as facility usage returned. Transportation costs increased 237%, compared to FY
2021. As the operation of the monorail system ceased for 11 months of FY 2021, and the loop system operates only while
events occur in the facility, FY 2022 expenses increased dramatically as FY 2022 had a full 12 months of activity for both
systems.

Other community support expenses consist of what is known as the collection allocation, a 10% return of the total room taxes
and gaming fees to the county and incorporated cities for their licensing, collection, and enforcement efforts provided by
Nevada Revised Statutes. Collection allocation increased, compared to FY 2021, mirroring the increase of room tax and
gaming fees.

The collection allocation calculation excludes revenues generated from room taxes enabled under Senate Bill 1 (SB1) of the
2016 Nevada Special Legislative Session, which is restricted to the LVCCD expansion and renovation project. Additionally, SB1
imposed a collection allocation cap of $25.0 million on total room taxes and gaming fees, on a modified accrual basis, eligible
to be distributed to the collecting entities. Any funds above the cap are transferred to, and restricted in, the LVCCD Capital
Fund.

The decrease in interest and fiscal charges relate directly to interest savings on refunded bonds and the structure of annual
debt payments.
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OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION

The LVCVA demonstrated strong financial results for FY 2022, with a $103.1 million improvement in overall net position.
Although the LVCVA expected a slower recovery from the pandemic, with an 83% increase in room tax and a 917% increase
in the use of facilities from FY 2021, FY 2022 exceeded those estimates with an actualized 162% increase in room tax and
1009% increase in facility use. The majority of the higher-than-expected revenue was transferred to the LVCCD Capital Fund
to increase the “pay-as-you-go” transfers supporting the LVCCD program as part of a mid-year augmentation. This higher
revenue was the main driver behind the overall improvement in net position.

The LVCVA's debt coverage ratio remains more than double the 1.5 times minimum coverage required by bond covenants
and exceeds the 3.0 times coverage required by internal policy. Management remains vigilant to maintain fiscal sustainability
through conservative budgeting and continuous monitoring of actual financial results and economic trends at the local, state,
and national levels. Such an approach allows the LVCVA the ability to react swiftly to changing conditions and sustain
operations during challenging periods. The LVCVA is dedicated to the preservation of adequate fund balances to meet
operating cash flow requirements and to satisfy debt service obligations.

FUND ANALYSIS

The General Fund’s ending fund balance increased $15.7 million during FY 2022. Due to uncertainty regarding revenue
recovery, the LVCVA originally budgeted a decrease of fund balance of $6.0 million; however, higher-than-expected beginning
fund balance, expenditure management, and higher than anticipated revenues, resulted in an increase to fund balance.

Funding for the LVCCD Capital Fund includes SB1 room tax revenues. Due to the uncertainty of room tax revenues, there was
no FY 2022 transfer budgeted from the General Fund for “pay-as-you-go reserves” to the LVCCD Capital Fund in the original
budget. There were also no transfers representing the excess collection allocation above the $25.0 million distributed to
collecting entities, as revenues did not meet the threshold for said transfers. However, revenue rebounded more quickly than
expected, and room tax ended the year over $90 million higher than the original FY 2022 budget, allowing for budget
augmentation in May 2022, which increased both revenues and other uses and funds. This augmentation allowed a transfer
of more than $99 million from the General Fund to the LVCCD Capital Fund, in both “pay-as-you-go” reserves and excess
collection allocation, increasing fund balance by $81 million instead of the budgeted decrease of $54.9 million. Through June
30, 2022, all LVCCD bond proceeds previously issued have been spent.
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The LVCCD Debt Service Fund was created in FY 2018 to account for the principal and interest payments associated with debt
issued in support of the LVCCD project. Fund balance increased minimally due to the fund balance necessary at year-end to
make July 2022 debt payments.

The fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund decreased $15.9 million. This is primarily due to spending bond proceeds
originally received for the expansion of the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department command center, which is located on
the LVCC campus, along with building technology equipment.

The Debt Service Fund’s ending fund balance decreased $6.9 million, mainly due to the budgeted spend down of set aside
fund balance for certain debt payments.

LVCCD Debt Sevi
General Fund LVCCD Capital Fund = '“® " Capital Projects Fund  Debt Service Fund
Fund balance- beginning S 68,303,959 S 61,452,800 $ 18,917,027 $ 78946566 $ 46,773,979
Fund balance - ending 84,007,202 142,488,226 19,914,437 63,027,931 39,825,614
Change s 15,703,243 S 81,035,426 $ 997,410 $ (15918635) S  (6,948,365)
Percentchange 23.0% 131.9% 5.3% -20.2% -14.9%

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The FY 2022 original General Fund budget projected an upsurge in room tax revenues based on improving results in the last
months of FY 2021 and budgeted an 82.8% increase compared to FY 2021. During the fiscal year, due to the increased demand
for domestic travel and higher ADR, actual room tax revenue performed better than budgeted and ended the year up 162.2%,
as compared to FY 2021. Due to those results, the budget was augmented during the fiscal year and the majority of the
higher-than-expected revenue was transferred to the LVCCD Capital Fund to increase the “pay-as-you-go” transfers
supporting the LVCCD program.

The final budget for FY 2022 projected an ending General Fund balance of $43.3 million, or 18.2% of operating expenditures.
The ending General Fund balance actualized at $84.0 million, an improvement of $40.7million over the final budget, due to
significantly increased revenues, along with closely monitored expenditures.

The following tables summarize the changes in both revenues and expenditures budget:
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GENERAL FUND CHANGES IN BUDGETED REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

Original Budget Revisions Final Budget
Room taxes and gaming fees S 204,364,300 $ 80,635,700 S 285,000,000
Charges for service 54,450,000 755,000 55,205,000
Transportation services 14,500,000 1,763,600 16,263,600
Interest and other 463,200 1,558,200 2,021,400
Transfers in 140,500 - 140,500
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 25,000 - 25,000

S 273,943,000 S 84,712,500 S 358,655,500

GENERAL FUND CHANGES IN BUDGETED EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS

Original Budget Revisions Final Budget

General government S 17,169,300 S - S 17,169,300
Marketing:

Advertising 82,000,000 (200,000) 81,800,000

Marketing and sales 21,636,200 - 21,636,200

Special events grants 27,461,962 600,000 28,061,962
Operations 64,457,000 - 64,457,000
Community support:

Other community support 20,436,430 4,563,570 25,000,000
Transfers out 47,014,181 98,500,000 145,514,181

S 280,175073 S 103,463,570 S 383,638,643

Actual General Fund revenues, transfers in, and proceeds from the sale of capital assets totaled $377.9 million, which is $19.2
million higher than the augmented final budget, mainly due to the increase in room taxes and facility revenue. Actual General
Fund expenditures and uses totaled $362.2 million, approximately $21.4 million less than the final budget, but $82.0 million
higher than the original budget. Due to higher-than-expected revenue results mid-year, both revenues and expenditures
were augmented and utilized to increase “pay-as-you-go” funding for the LVCCD Capital Fund for Phase Three but holding
steady on division expenditures. These results are largely due to conservative budgeting practices, which are based on the
strategy of budgeting revenues cautiously while budgeting expenditures aggressively, as well as adjusting expenditure use
during the year, as revenues are received and compared to the budget to ensure the financial integrity of the LVCVA.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Investment in capital assets, as of June 30, 2022, totaled $1.75 billion (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization),
which decreased 1% compared to FY 2021. Net capital assets additions totaled $25.2 million, mainly due the resumption of
LVCCD Phase Three within construction in progress. Depreciation and amortization expense for the year was approximately
$43.9 million which was the primary driver of decreases in the below line items.

Capital asset activity is accounted for in both the Capital Projects fund and the LVCCD Capital Fund. More detailed information
on capital assets can be found in Note 5 on page 36.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of depreciation and amortization)
Increase (Decrease)
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022

Amount Percent
Land S 501,347,115 $ 501,372,859 | S 25,744 0%
Intangibles 100,000 100,000 - 0%
Construction in progress 18,883,877 36,713,201 17,829,324 94%
Buildings 1,164,891,207 1,127,949,089 (36,942,118) -3%
Leased Buildings - 787,732 787,732 100%
Transportation Systems 68,676,745 65,881,361 (2,795,384) -4%
Improvements other than buildings 7,523,415 6,605,390 (918,025) -12%
Furniture and equipment 5,316,886 9,530,094 4,213,208 79%

S 1,766,739,245 | $ 1,748,939,726 | S (17,799,519) -1%

LONG-TERM DEBT

On June 30, 2022, LVCVA debt, including unamortized discounts and premiums, totaled $1.7 billion. Of this amount, $783.0
million are general obligation bonds additionally secured by specified revenue sources, $815.0 million are revenue bonds,
and $21.3 million are medium-term bonds.

Medium Term

General Obligation Revenue Bond Unamortized
Bonds Principal Bonds Principal ‘on. > Premiums and Total
Principal .
Balance Balance Discounts
Balance
(In Thousands)

Beginning balance S 795,370 $ 826,070 $ 21,400 $ 82,361 $ 1,725,201
Payments/retirements and amortization (27,685) (34,655) (100) (6,894) (69,334)
New issuances 15,355 23,615 - 2,779 41,749
Ending balance | S 783,040 $ 815,030 $ 21,300 $ 78,247 S 1,697,617

In addition, certain of the LVCVA’s long-term debt obligations are subject to restrictive debt covenants. The LVCVA has
committed to maintaining adequacy of charges against users of the Las Vegas Convention Center, but not necessarily all users
thereof. The LVCVA is required to set rentals, fees, and other charges to produce a defined term of pledged revenues and
expansion pledged revenues (revenue including the SB1 pledge) to pay, each fiscal year, the annual defined operation and
maintenance expense of the Authority’s facilities, which, together, are 1.25x the annual principal and interest requirements
on the LVCVA’s outstanding bonds, and other amounts required under the related bond resolutions.

The LVCVA issued two refunding bonds in FY 2022. In October 2021, the LVCVA issued $23,615,000 Series 2021 Revenue
Refunding Bonds (the 2021 Bonds) for the purpose of refunding the Series 2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds, which were
issued as direct placement bonds to refund Series 2010B Transportation and Refunding Bonds. The 2021 Bonds have interest
rates of 5.0%, with a final installment date of July 1, 2026. Net proceeds totaled $28,274,862, including a $2,779,284 premium
and net of $268,073 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs. Total savings of the refunding are $955,604, with a present
value of $932,966. The 2021 Bonds are included in the summary schedule of pledged revenue bonds. In April 2022, the LVCVA
issued $15,355,000 Series 2022 General Obligation/Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2022 Bonds) for the purpose of refunding
the Series 2012 General Obligation/Revenue Bonds, which were issued to acquire and improve the property for Authority
purposes. The 2022 Bonds have interest rates of 1.96%, with a final installment date of July 1, 2032. Net proceeds totaled
$16,407,744, net of $161,313 in issuance costs. Total savings was $753,716, with a present value of $675,645. The 2022 Bonds
are included in the summary schedule of pledged general obligation bonds.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

FY 2022 pledged revenues and expansion pledged revenues are $356.1 million and $389.9 million, respectively, which are
inclusive of facility revenues (as defined in bond documents) of $58.2 million. Defined operation maintenance expense is
$58.1 million. The LVCVA June 30, 2022 coverage ratio is 3.2x (and 3.6x including expansion pledged revenues). The LVCVA
has budgeted, as a result of increased travel and tourism, revenues to comply with the coverage ratios in the bond resolutions
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

More detailed information on debt can be found in Note 8 on pages 38 through 43.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

An Internal Service Fund is used to accumulate resources, through discretionary transfers from the General Fund, and the
eventual allocation of those resources for payments related to post-employment benefits other than pensions, on a cost-
reimbursement basis, as required by NRS 354.543. The LVCVA intends to use these assets for future OPEB funding.
Discretionary net transfers since FY 2013 totaled $2.3 million. Annual funding considerations include biannual actuarial
studies, among other factors and conditions.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The COVID-19 pandemic has materially impacted the tourism sector and Southern Nevada economy. While it was anticipated
that economic recovery will be gradual, FY 2022 and the initial months of FY 2023 have shown a substantial rebound of
tourism to Southern Nevada. The convention calendar is strong for the upcoming fiscal year; however, the LVCVA expects
the attendance at each convention to be modestly lower than normal.

Room tax, the LVCVA’s major source of revenue, is budgeted to be 3.7% higher than FY 2022, which had the highest room tax
total in LVCVA history. Management has budgeted use of facilities to be 13.3% higher than FY 2022.

Due to the evolving nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, it is difficult to predict future impact, if any, from COVID-19 on LVCVA's
financial operations.

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The LVCVA's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors) with a general
overview of the LVCVA's finances and to demonstrate accountability. If you have any questions about the report or need
additional financial information, please contact:

LVCVA Chief Financial Officer
3150 Paradise Road
Las Vegas, NV 89109
(702) 892-2990
Or, please visit our website at:
www.lvcva.com/funding-and-finance/
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities

June 30, 2022

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables:
Room taxes and gaming fees receivable
Accounts receivable
Interest

Inventory

Prepaid and other items

Lease Receivable, current

Lease Receivable, non-current

Capital and intangible assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charges on refunding
Deferred resources related to pensions
Deferred resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions
Deferred asset retirement obligation
Total deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retention payable
Accrued payroll and related items
Due to other governments
Deposits
Unearned revenue
Interest payable
Pollution remediation obligation
Workers compensation presumptive
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Lease obligation
Bonds payable
Compensated absences payable
Due in more than one year:
Lease obligation
Bonds payable, net of unamortized discounts and premiums
Compensated absences payable
Post-employment benefits other than pensions
Net pension liability
Asset retirement obligation
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred resouces related to leases receivable

Deferred resources related to pension

Deferred resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions
Total deferred inflow of resources

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
LVCCD debt service
Unrestricted deficit
Total net position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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70,084,496
273,249,791

64,470,056
13,274,991
424,890
286,905
3,723,677
672,830
1,694,089

538,186,060
1,210,753,666

2,176,821,451

9,624,224
10,599,932
9,301,394
13,125,385

42,650,935

31,256,729
422,336
4,454,128
7,143,357
493,158
876,278
34,445,169
2,199,500
402,716

306,784
20,215,000
2,636,644

505,862
1,677,401,735
3,162,407
34,335,685
14,688,717
15,317,749

1,850,263,954

2,336,094
55,027,514
25,534,876

82,898,484

303,145,255

34,664,892
19,914,437
(71,414,636)

$

286,309,948




LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Statement of Activities - Governmental Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Capital Grants

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and

Charges for and Changes
Function/Program Expenses Services Contributions in Net Position
Governmental activities:
General government S 12,702,896 S 1,555,545 (11,147,351)
Marketing:
Advertising 75,768,693 - - (75,768,693)
Marketing and sales 13,236,041 1,575,194 - (11,660,847)
Special events grants 25,892,489 - - (25,892,489)
Operations:
Facility operations 69,573,491 62,743,443 - (6,830,048)
Transportation services 26,615,124 20,130,733 - (6,484,391)
Community support and grants:
Other community support 25,702,631 - - (25,702,631)
Interest and fiscal charges 63,849,552 - - (63,849,552)
Total governmental activities S 313,340,917 S 84,449,370 S 1,555,545 (227,336,002)

General revenues:
Room taxes and gaming fees
Interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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333,499,733
(4,565,368)
1,524,329

330,458,694

103,122,692
183,187,256

286,309,948
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

LVCCD Debt
General LVCCD Capital Service Capital Projects Total Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Debt Service Fund Funds
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 15,497,287 S - S 19,914,526 S - S 34,592,215 S 70,004,028
Investments 61,345,878 140,577,494 17,089 63,937,990 5,285,460 271,163,911
Receivables:
Room taxes and gaming fees 58,472,087 5,997,969 - - - 64,470,056
Accounts 10,937,682 - - 2,337,309 - 13,274,991
Leases 2,366,919 - - - - 2,366,919
Interest 122,302 159,095 14,951 95,975 31,059 423,382
Due from other funds 82,520 3,120,053 - - 3,202,573
Inventory 286,905 - - - - 286,905
Prepaid and other items 3,483,942 60,893 - 178,842 - 3,723,677
Total assets S 152,595,522 S 149,915,504 S 19,946,566 S 66,550,116 S 39,908,734 S 428,916,442
Liabilities:
Accounts payable S 25,857,774 S 4,635,815 S - S 762,540 S 600 S 31,256,729
Retention payable - - 422,336 422,336
Accrued payroll and related items 4,454,128 - - - - 4,454,128
Due to other governments 4,438,956 - - - - 4,438,956
Due to other funds 3,087,924 - 32,129 82,520 3,202,573
Customer deposits 493,158 - - - - 493,158
Unearned revenue 876,278 - - - - 876,278
Total liabilities 39,208,218 4,635,815 32,129 1,184,876 83,120 45,144,158
Deferred inflows of resources:
Leases receivable 2,336,094 - - - - 2,336,094
Unavailable revenue 27,044,008 2,791,463 - 2,337,309 - 32,172,780
Total deferred inflows of resources 29,380,102 2,791,463 - 2,337,309 - 34,508,874
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 3,770,847 60,893 - 178,842 - 4,010,582
Restricted - - 19,914,437 984,568 34,664,892 55,563,897
Committed - 142,427,333 - 43,800,000 5,160,722 191,388,055
Assigned 24,000,000 - - 18,064,521 - 42,064,521
Unassigned 56,236,355 - - - - 56,236,355
Total fund balances 84,007,202 142,488,226 19,914,437 63,027,931 39,825,614 349,263,410
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and
fund balances S 152,595,522 S 149,915,504 S 19,946,566 S 66,550,116 S 39,908,734 428,916,442

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital and intangible assets used in the governmental activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds (See Note 2)
Certain assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded or are deferred
in the funds:
Room taxes and gaming fees - earned but unavailable
Other revenue - earned but unavailable
Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows of resources, as well as certain amounts related to bond refunding and asset
retirement obligations are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Deferred outflows of resources related to charges on refunding
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred outflows of resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions
Deferred asset retirement obligation
The internal service fund is used by management to fund the future other post-employment benefit costs. The net position
of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.
Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
Accrued compensated absences
Due to other governments - other community support
Post-employment benefits other than pensions
Net effect of difference in the treatment of long-term debt and related items (See Note 2)
Pollution remediation obligation
Net pension liability
Asset retirement obligation
Presumptive liability, workers compensation
Pension and OPEB related deferred outflows of resources are not due and payable in the current period, and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds:
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions

Net position, governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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1,748,939,726

29,835,471
2,337,309

9,624,224
10,599,932
9,301,394
13,125,385

2,167,856

(5,799,051)
(2,704,401)
(34,335,685)
(1,732,874,550)
(2,199,500)
(14,688,717)
(15,317,749)
(402,716)

(55,027,514)
(25,534,876)

S 286,309,948



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

LVCCD Debt
General LVCCD Capital Service Capital Projects Debt Service Total Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Room taxes and gaming fees S 295,400,981 S 30,359,686 S - S - S - S 325,760,667
Charges for services 61,628,299 - - - - 61,628,299
Interest and investment earnings (1,309,308) (1,174,152) 35,735 (2,033,161) 62,169 (4,418,717)
Transportation services 20,130,733 - - - - 20,130,733
Federal grant subsidy 1,555,545 - - - - 1,555,545
Miscellaneous 338,547 3,016,426 - 1,169,356 - 4,524,329
Total revenues 377,744,797 32,201,960 35,735 (863,805) 62,169 409,180,856
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 15,658,529 - - - - 15,658,529
Marketing:
Advertising 75,768,693 - - - - 75,768,693
Marketing and sales 15,846,705 - - - - 15,846,705
Special events grants 25,892,489 - - - - 25,892,489
Operations
Facility operations 37,352,645 - - - - 37,352,645
Transportation services 20,601,964 - - - - 20,601,964
Community support and grants:

Other community support 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000
Capital outlay - 12,013,404 - 14,921,840 - 26,935,244
Debt service:

Principal - - 100,000 127,399 18,110,000 18,337,399
Interest - - 37,631,553 5,591 31,997,366 69,634,510
Debt issuance costs - - - - 418,162 418,162
Total expenditures 216,121,025 12,013,404 37,731,553 15,054,830 50,525,528 331,446,340

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 161,623,772 20,188,556 (37,695,818) (15,918,635) (50,463,359) 77,734,516

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in 90,061 99,575,923 38,729,053 - 46,511,378 184,906,415
Transfers out (146,051,476) (38,729,053) (35,825) - (90,061) (184,906,415)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 40,886 - - - - 40,886
Issuance of refunding debt - - - - 38,970,000 38,970,000
Premium on debt issuance - - - - 2,779,284 2,779,284
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent - - - - (44,655,607) (44,655,607)
Total other financing sources (uses) (145,920,529) 60,846,870 38,693,228 - 43,514,994 (2,865,437)
Net change in fund balances 15,703,243 81,035,426 997,410 (15,918,635) (6,948,365) 74,869,079
Fund balances - beginning 68,303,959 61,452,800 18,917,027 78,946,566 46,773,979 274,394,331
Fund balances - ending S 84,007,202 S 142,488,226 S 19,914,437 S 63,027,931 S 39,825,614 S 349,263,410

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds S 74,869,079
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures and do not report donated capital assets.
However, in the statement of net position, assets with an initial, individual cost that meets LVCVA's
capitalization threshold are capitalized and the cost is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation and amortization expense.
Capital outlays (asset additions) S 26,105,840
Depreciation and amortization expense, including disposed assets (43,905,359) (17,799,519)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
gaming fees and miscellaneous receipts. 7,429,402
The issuance of long-term debt (i.e. , bonds and capital leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of the governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred in the statement of net position and amortized over the term of the related debt.
Issuance of debt (38,970,000)
Issuance of lease obligation (1,102,077)
Premium on debt issuance (2,779,284)
Amortization of debt premiums and discounts 6,474,325
Amortization of refunding charges (619,485)
Accrued interest expense 348,282
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent 44,655,607
Lease principal payments 416,830
Debt principal repayments 18,210,000 26,634,198
Change in expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the use of current
financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Compensated absences 529,132
Post-employment benefits other than pensions (1,033,074)
Deferred inflows of resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions (782,318)
Deferred outflows of resources related to post-employment benefits other than pensions 3,036,300
Net pension liability 47,178,604
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 4,573,690
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (39,029,081)
Pollution remediation 250,500
Asset Retirement Obligation (1,482,223)
Due to other governments for collection allocation distribution (702,631) 12,538,899
The internal service fund is used by management to fund future other post-employment
benefit costs. The change in net position of the internal service fund is reported with
governmental activities. (146,651)
Increase in long-term presumptive liability, workers compensation (402,716)
Change in net position of governmental activities S 103,122,692

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable

Total assets

Net position:

Unrestricted

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2022

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental Activities

Internal Service

Fund
5 -
2,166,348
1,508
2,167,856
$ 2,167,856




Nonoperating revenues:

Interest and investment earnings

Change in net position

Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
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Governmental Activities

Internal Service

Fund
$ (146,651)
(146,651)
2,314,507
$ 2,167,856




LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Governmental Activities

Internal Service

Fund

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of investments S (15,449)

Interest on investments 15,001

Net cash used in investing activities (448)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (448)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning S 448
Cash and cash equivalents, ending S -
Noncash investing and financing activities

Interest on investments reinvested S 15,471

Change in fair value of investments S (162,122)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (the LVCVA) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the primary source of governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The LVCVA’s
significant accounting policies are summarized below, along with a discussion of some of the practices that are unique to
governments.

REPORTING ENTITY

The LVCVA was created in 1955 under the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 244A as the Clark County Fair and
Recreation Board. This NRS governs the powers and duties of the Board of Directors (the Board), including the number,
selection, and terms of its members. The LVCVA is subject to State of Nevada (the State or Nevada) laws governing local
governments, including the Local Government Budget and Finance Act. The Board is responsible for establishing policy for
overall operations. The LVCVA is led by the Chief Executive Officer/President. The LVCVA does not include any component
units in its financial statements and is not included as a component unit in any other entity’s financial statements.

The LVCVA has been charged with the promotion of tourism, as well as to own, operate, and promote recreation and
convention facilities within Clark County (the County) for the benefit of the local economy.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide financial statements display information about the reporting government, as a whole. In order to present
an accurate financial picture, the effects of interfund activity have been eliminated. The purpose of the Statement of Activities
is to provide information to financial statement users about operating results of the LVCVA, in its entirety, over a period of
time. It demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include charges to customers who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function. The LVCVA’s program revenues include, but
are not limited to, charges to customers for facility rentals, commissions from food and beverage sales, parking revenue,
transportation ride tickets, and commissions from electrical, plumbing, and telecommunication services.

Room taxes and gaming fees and other items not restricted for use in a specific program or function are reported as general
revenues.

The Statement of Net Position is intended to present a snapshot of the financial position of the LVCVA, as a whole, as of year-
end. It displays the difference between assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows as net position.

Governmental fund financial statements are used to account for essentially the same functions reported in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year (FY).

A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates
operations according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-
related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds maintained is consistent with legal and managerial
requirements.

Governmental fund types are used to account for general governmental activities. The operating fund of the LVCVA is the
General Fund. The LVCCD Capital Fund is used to account for the construction of new facilities and improvement of the
existing facilities related to the Las Vegas Convention Center District (LVCCD) project. The LVCCD Debt Service Fund accounts
for principal and interest payments on debt, with an additional pledge of legislatively restricted revenues for the LVCCD
project. The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition and improvement of routine capital assets and related
improvements. Servicing of all other long-term debt obligations is recorded in the Debt Service Fund.

Proprietary fund financial statements distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
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proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Internal service funds may be used to account for all or a portion of a government’s
risk financing activities. The LVCVA’s only proprietary fund is an internal service fund.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Measurement focus is a term used to describe which transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Basis
of accounting refers to when transactions are recorded, regardless of measurement focus.

Government-wide financial statements are presented on a full accrual basis of accounting with an economic resource
measurement focus, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. An economic resource measurement focus
concentrates on net position. All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net position) during the
period are reported. Under the full accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and liabilities are
recorded at the time the obligations are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and outflows. Major revenue
sources that may be accrued include room taxes, gaming fees, facility revenues, charges for services, transportation services,
interest and investment earnings, and miscellaneous.

Governmental fund financial statements are presented using a modified accrual basis and the current financial resources
measurement focus. Earned revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period, generally within 90 days of year end; however, room tax and gaming fee revenue are considered available
when collected within 30 days of year end. Major revenue sources that may be accrued include room taxes, gaming fees,
facility revenues, charges for services, transportation services, and interest and investment earnings. Liabilities are generally
recorded when an obligation is incurred. However, debt service expenditures and certain other long-term obligation
expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Since governmental fund financial statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than
the government-wide financial statements, the statements include reconciliations that explain the differences between the
net change in fund balances of governmental funds using a modified accrual basis and the change in government-wide
governmental activities using a full accrual basis and between total fund balances and net position.

The financial transactions of the LVCVA are recorded in individual funds. The operations of each fund are accounted for with
a separate set of self-balancing accounts comprised of assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, fund
balance, revenues, expenditures, and other funding sources (uses).

The Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of each major fund, as defined
by GAAP, and any other fund the government determines to have particular importance, are presented separately.

The LVCVA reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund
e Used as the LVCVA’s primary operating fund, it accounts for resources traditionally associated with
governments that are not required to be accounted for in another fund. The most significant sources of
revenue are room taxes and gaming fees, which are assessed on hotels and motels in Clark County. Facility
rentals, concession commissions, contractor commissions, and transportation ride tickets also provide a
large amount of General Fund revenue. The primary expenditures are for advertising, marketing, and
operation of the facilities.

LVCCD Capital Fund
e Accounts for project costs related to LVCCD Phases Two and Three of the expansion and renovation
project. This fund accounts for transfers from the General Fund and tax revenues enacted and restricted
by the Nevada legislature.
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LVCCD Debt Service Fund
e This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of principal and interest for debt, which has a
pledge of LVCVA revenues, including those restricted by the Nevada Legislature for Phases Two and Three
of the LVCCD project. Due to the qualitative significance of the project for the destination and related
funding to users of the financial statements, this fund is separately presented as a major fund. The fund
accounts for the following debt activity:

2018 A General Obligation Bonds 2018 B Revenue Bonds
2019 C General Obligation Bonds 2019 D General Obligation Bonds
Capital Projects Fund

e Accounts for capital expenditures on furniture, equipment, intangibles, and routine improvements or
additions to land and buildings financed by general government resources.

e Accounts for capital grants to other governments, which are for the express purpose of capital
construction activities by other governments.

Debt Service Fund

e Used to accumulate monies for the payment of principal and interest on the following debt:
2010 A (NDOT/BABs) General Obligation Bonds 2014 General Obligation Bonds
2015 General Obligation/Refunding Bonds 2016 C Revenue Refunding Bonds
2017 General Obligation Refunding Bonds 2017 B Revenue Refunding Bonds
2017 C General Obligation Crossover Refunding Bonds 2018 C Revenue Refunding Bonds
2019 B Revenue Bonds 2020 Medium Term Bonds
2021 Revenue Bonds 2022 General Obligation/Refunding Bonds

The LVCVA reports the following proprietary fund:

Internal Service Fund
e Used to accumulate resources, through discretionary transfers from the General Fund, and the eventual
allocation of those resources for payments related to post-employment benefits other than pensions on
a cost-reimbursement basis as required by NRS 354.543.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as demand deposit accounts, petty cash, cash in ticket vending machines, money
market demand accounts, and certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or less.

The LVCVA’s investment policy authorizes investments in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, commercial paper,
banker’s acceptances, money market mutual funds, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements (REPOs), Nevada State
Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), collateralized investment contracts, and any other investment which
may be authorized by State statute. The LVCVA’s policy also governs the limitations as to the percentage of each type of
investment held and its term to maturity, which cannot exceed ten years.

The LVCVA’s investments are generally reported at fair value; however, the LVCVA reports investments at cost if they have a
remaining maturity, at the time of purchase, of one year or less. The LVCVA includes in investment earnings the change in
fair value along with any realized gains or losses.

RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Transactions between funds that are outstanding at year end are reported as “due to/from other funds” within the fund
financials statements. For government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, receivables and related revenues are
recognized as soon as they are earned, whereas for governmental fund financial statement purposes, receivables and related
revenues are recognized when earned and are both measurable and available. Room taxes and gaming fees receivable, the
LVCVA’s major revenue source, are considered measurable and available when they can be collected within 30 days after
year end; other revenues are considered measurable and available when collected within 90 days after year end. Revenues
received after these periods are classified as deferred inflows in governmental fund financial statements.
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Receivables are evaluated for collectability at least annually and reported net of any significant amounts not expected to be
collected.

PREPAID ITEMS AND INVENTORY

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items.
Inventory is primarily comprised of promotional items and is recorded at cost, determined using the first-in/first-out (FIFO)
method. In the fund financial statements, the costs of promotional inventory and prepaid items are recorded as expenditures
when consumed rather than when purchased.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, leases, and intangibles, are accounted for in the government-wide
financial statements. All purchased capital assets are valued at historical cost, net of impairment adjustments, if any. Donated
assets are recorded at their acquisition value on the date contributed. Lease assets are recorded at the net present value of
the future minimum lease payments, plus any payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease
term and certain direct costs. Additions or improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of
an asset or that significantly enhance the functionality of an asset are capitalized.

Depreciation and amortization on exhaustible assets and intangibles are recorded in the Statement of Activities, while
accumulated depreciation and amortization is reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation and amortization are
computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not
amortized but, rather, are evaluated at least annually for continued compliance with applicable requirements. Lease assets
are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset.

ASSET DESCRIPTION USEFUL LIFE
(YEARS)

Buildings 50
Major land improvements, leasehold improvements, and building improvements. Leasehold
improvements are limited to the shorter of useful life or lease term. 5-20
Furniture/fixtures and the following equipment items: carts, communication equipment (mobile),
forklifts, heavy equipment, set-up equipment, power tools, risers, tables, telephones, test equipment, turf
equipment, typewriters, vacuums, and word processing equipment. 5-15
Equipmentitems in the following categories: camera equipment, cleaning equipment, copiers, MATV
(communications) equipment, mowers, refuse equipment, mobile sound equipment, tools, turnstiles,
vehicles, and other equipment. 5-15
Computers, printers, and software 3
Transportation systems 10
Leased buildings 3-5

Costs for normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the functionality of assets or materially extend asset useful lives
are expensed as incurred.

The LVCVA classifies an item as a capital asset when its estimated useful life is at least one year and meets one of the following
thresholds:

e Property and equipment with unit acquisition cost exceeding $10,000.

e Leases with total acquisition costs exceeding $50,000.

e Intangibles (e.g., trademarks, patents, logos, easements, and internally generated software) with an acquisition cost
equal to or exceeding $200,000.
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LEASES

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the LVCVA adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB No. 87). Implementation of this
standard established revised accounting and financial reporting for all leases. Lease assets are defined as contracts that
convey control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (land, building, vehicle, and/or equipment), as specified
in the contract, for a period of time, in an exchange-like transaction.

If LVCVA is a lessee, both a lease liability and a lease capital asset are recognized at the commencement of the lease term,
unless the lease is a short-term lease (12 months or less), or it transfers ownership of the underlying asset. The lease liability
is measured at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease incentives). The
lease asset is measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments made to the lessor
at or before the commencement of the lease term and certain direct costs.

If the LVCVA is a lessor, a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources are recognized at the commencement of the
lease term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as investments, certain regulated leases, short-term leases, and
leases that transfer ownership of the underlying asset. The LVCVA does not derecognize the asset underlying the lease. The
lease receivable is measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term. The
deferred inflow of resources is measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any payments received at or before the
commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

It is the LVCVA’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused paid time off (PTO) benefits. As of June 30,
2021, Executive, Management, and Professional employees can accrue up to a maximum of 900 hours of PTO. Annually,
accrued amounts over the limit are paid to the employee in November at their current rate of pay. Effective November 2022,
any hours over the 900-hour cap will be paid at 25% of the employee’s hourly rate. There is no accrual cap for bargaining unit
employees’ PTO. Bargaining unit employees with a minimum PTO balance of 500 hours are allowed to request up to 100
hours of future PTO accrual to be paid out in the next calendar year, at their current rate of pay. All PTO is accrued within the
government-wide statements when earned by the employee.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM NEVADA (PERS) DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

The LVCVA participates in PERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan (the System) and is required to report
a net pension liability and related amounts in its financial statements for fiscal periods beginning on or after June 15, 2014,
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended. The underlying
financial information used to calculate amounts to be reported in the LVCVA’s financial statements is based on PERS financial
statements, which are prepared in accordance with GAAP that apply to governmental accounting for pension plans. This
includes measuring net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the System, and additions to/deductions from the System’s fiduciary net
position on the same basis as they are reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable, in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

In accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No.75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than Pensions (GASB No. 75), as amended, the LVCVA has recorded actuarially determined deferred inflows, deferred
outflows, liabilities, and expense in the government-wide financial statements related to LVCVA’s OPEB obligation at a
defined measurement date. GASB No. 75 requires the liability of the employer’s OPEB to be measured as a portion of the
present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to current active and inactive employees that are attributed to
those employees’ current and past periods of service. These amounts can be reduced by a plan’s assets when such assets are
held by a qualifying trust. These projected benefits are then discounted to their actuarial present value using defined actuarial
methods.

The LVCVA uses an internal service fund to provide funding for the OPEB liability. Transfers to the Internal Service Fund do
not constitute OPEB plan assets for actuarial reporting, as they are not held in a qualified trust. Rather, the funds are an
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earmarking of employer assets to reflect the LVCVA’s current intent to apply those assets to the payment of future benefits
and, therefore, do not offset or reduce the recorded OPEB liability.

Benefit payments are recognized by the LVCVA when due and payable, in accordance with benefit terms.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the LVCVA also reports deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. Unamortized deferred refunding charges (the difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the defeased debt) qualify for reporting in this category, as do certain deferred costs related
to pensions and OPEB, and the asset retirement obligation related to the monorail.

In addition to liabilities, the LVCVA also reports deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. Revenues that are unavailable to satisfy current obligations qualify for reporting in this category, as
do certain deferred amounts related to pensions, OPEB, and leases receivable.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are recorded and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method; however, bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred and reported as debt service expenditures
(i.e., a component of interest and fiscal charges). For debt refunding transactions resulting in defeasance of debt, the
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is reported as either a deferred
outflow or inflow of resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over
the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.

For governmental fund types, bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the fiscal year
incurred. Bond proceeds and premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts
on debt issuance are reported as other financing uses.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from these estimates.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ADOPTED DURING FY 2022

Statement No. 87, Leases, was issued in June 2017. This Statement establishes a single model for lease reporting. With the
issuance of Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance in May 2020 due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the LVCVA adopted GASB No. 87 in FY 2022. This statement requires leases to be recognized and
measured using the facts and circumstances that existed as the beginning of the period of implementation. As a result of
implementing this standard, LVCVA recognized a lease receivable and deferred inflow of resources in the amount of
$2,658,003 and $2,658,003, as of July 1, 2021, respectively. LVCVA also recognized a right of use asset and lease liability of
$1,102,077 and $1,102,077, as of July 1, 2021, respectively. As a result of these adjustments, there was no effect on
beginning net position. The additional disclosures required by this standard are included in Note 7.

Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, was issued in June 2018.
The intent of this Statement is to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost
of borrowing, along with simplifying accounting for interest cost incurred. With the issuance of Statement No. 95,
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance in May 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, this
statement was implemented in FY 2022, but there is no effect on the LVCVA financial statements in the current fiscal year.

Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, was issued in March 2020. The intent of this Statement is to
provide guidance related to economic and financial reporting implications resulting from the replacement of interbank
offered rates. This statement was implemented in FY 2022, but as the LVCVA does not have debt utilizing interbank offered
rates, there is no effect on the LVCVA financial statements in the current fiscal year.
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Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section
457 Deferred Compensation Plans — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB
Statement No. 32, was issued in June 2020. The intent of this Statement is to increase consistency and comparability related
to the reporting of fiduciary component units and financial reporting for IRS Code 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. This
statement was implemented in FY 2022, but as the LVCVA has no fiduciary component units, there is no effect on the LVCVA
financial statements.

Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, was issued in October 2021. The intent of this Statement is
to establish the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR to replace the term comprehensive annual
financial report and its acronym. The LVCVA implemented this Statement in FY 2022.

Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, was issued in April 2022. The intent of this Statement is to provide further guidance and
clarification on previously issued Statements No. 53, No. 87, No. 94, and No. 96, as well as various other clarifications including
the extension of the period during which the London Interbank Offered Rate is considered an appropriate benchmark interest
rate, accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, disclosures related
to nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the pledging government,
clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, related to the focus of the government-wide financial statements, terminology
updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements. The
clarifications other than Statements No. 53, No. 87, No. 94, and No. 96 were implemented in FY 2022, but there is no effect
on the LVCVA financial statements in the current fiscal year.

See Note 3 for the list of accounting pronouncements to be adopted after FY 2022.

NOTE 2. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net
position — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

One element of that reconciliation explains that “capital and intangible assets used in the governmental activities are not
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $1,748,939,726 difference are
as follows:

Depreciable and amortizable capital and intangible assets S 1,583,466,944
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (372,713,278)
Depreciable and amortizable capital and intangible assets, net 1,210,753,666
Non-depreciable and non-amortizable capital and intangible assets 538,186,060
Net adjustment to increase fund balance — total governmental

funds to arrive at net position —governmental activities S 1,748,939,726

Another element of that reconciliation is long-term debt and related items, including bonds, deferred refunding charges, and
accrued interest that is not due and payable in the current period, as well as related items, and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds.

The details of this $1,732,874,550 difference are as follows:

Bonds payable, due in more than one year S 1,599,155,000

Unamortized bond premiums and discounts 78,246,735
Total bonds payable, net of unamortized discounts and premiums
duein more than one year

1,677,401,735

Bonds payable, due within one year 20,215,000
Capital lease obligation, due within one year 306,784
Capital lease obligation, due in more than one year 505,862
Interest payable 34,445,169
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds to
arrive at net position - governmental activities S 1,732,874,550
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NOTE 3. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY:
BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgets for all of the LVCVA’s governmental and proprietary funds are adopted annually and prepared using a presentation
basis consistent with GAAP. Requests for current-year transfers and following-year appropriations are submitted by divisions
and sections for review and approval. As required by NRS, the tentative budget documents are filed with the Nevada
Department of Taxation and the County Clerk by April 15. After April 15 and before the budget hearing, the public has the
opportunity to review the tentative budget document and submit any comments for inclusion on the agenda of the public
hearing. The budget hearing is held no earlier than the third Monday in May and no later than the last day of May. The
approved budget is fully integrated on July 1 with LVCVA’s accounting system. All appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal
year.

NRS 354.626 generally prohibits expenditures in excess of appropriations at the function level, which is the legal level of
budgetary control. Budget transfers are reviewed by the Finance Department for budget availability and conformance with
policies and NRS. Three types of budget transfers are permitted by NRS:

e  Functional budget transfers are defined as transfers within the same function (i.e. general government, marketing,
operations, and community support) and same fund (i.e. General Fund, Capital Projects Fund). Transfers of $250,000
or less can be approved by the Chief Financial Officer; else, the CEO/President’s approval is required.

e Intrafund budget transfers are defined as transfers between different functions but within the same fund. The
approval level is the same as functional transfers, and the Board is advised of these transfers.

e Interfund or contingency budget transfers are defined as transfers between different funds and require approval of
the Board.

Augmentations to increase total appropriations are accomplished by formal Board action. During the year, funds were re-
appropriated to honor encumbrances that lapsed on June 30, 2021. All amendments made to the original budget were as
prescribed by law.

NET POSITION

The government-wide Statement of Net Position utilizes a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Net investment in capital assets is total capital assets less the related
debt outstanding that applies to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets. This is adjusted for unspent
debt proceeds, if any.

Restricted assets are assets that have externally imposed (statutory, bond covenant, contract, or grantor) limitations on their
use. Restricted assets are classified and reported by restriction for debt service, capital projects, or purpose. Assets restricted
by purpose relate to net position which use is legally limited by outside parties for a specific purpose. The restriction for debt
service represents assets legally restricted by statute or bond covenants for future debt service requirements of both principal
and interest. The amount restricted for capital projects consists of unspent debt proceeds with third-party restriction for use
on specific projects or programs or legislative mandate for capital use. The government-wide statement of net position
reports $54,579,329 of restricted net position, all of which is restricted externally by third parties.

Unrestricted net position represents financial resources of the LVCVA that do not have externally imposed limitations on their
use. On June 30, 2022, the LVCVA is reporting an unrestricted net position deficiency of $71,414,636 which is primarily related
to the LVCVA’s issuance of $300 million in debt ($239.5 million outstanding at year end) on behalf of the Nevada Department
of Transportation for construction and improvements in the tourism corridor before fiscal year 2022, which are not recorded
as assets of the LVCVA.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS NOT YET ADOPTED

The LVCVA staff is currently evaluating the potential effects, if any, that the following GASB pronouncements will have on the
LVCVA'’s future financial reporting:
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Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, was issued in May 2019. The intent of this Statement is to provide a single
method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments
extended by issuers, arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. With the issuance
of Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance in May 2020 due to the COVID-
19 pandemic, the LVCVA will further evaluate Statement No. 91 and will implement this statement in FY 2023.

Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, was issued in January 2020. The intent of this Statement is to provide further guidance and
clarification on previously issued Statements No. 73, No. 74, No. 84, and No. 87. With the issuance of Statement No. 95,
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance in May 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
LVCVA will further evaluate Statement No. 92 and will implement this statement in FY 2023. An element of this statement
relating to asset retirement obligation was early implemented in FY 2021.

Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements, was issued in March
2020. The intent of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private partnerships,
as well as availability payment arrangements. The LVCVA will further evaluate Statement No. 94 and will implement this
Statement in FY 2023.

Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, was issued in May 2020. The intent of this
Statement is to provide financial reporting guidance on subscription-based information technology arrangements. The LVCVA
will further evaluate Statement No. 96 and will implement this Statement in FY 2023.

Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, was issued in April 2022. The intent of this Statement is to provide further guidance and
clarification on previously issued Statements No. 53, No. 87, No. 94, and No. 96, as well as various other clarifications including
the extension of the period during which the London Interbank Offered Rate is considered an appropriate benchmark interest
rate, accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program, disclosures related
to nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the pledging government,
clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, related to the focus of the government-wide financial statements, terminology
updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements. The
LVCVA will further evaluate Statement No. 99 and will implement the portion related to Statements No. 87, No. 94, and No.
96 in FY 2023 and Statement No. 53 in FY 2024.

Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62, was issued in June
2022. The intent of this Statement is to enhance the requirements for reporting accounting changes and error corrections in
Statement No. 53. The LVCVA will further evaluate Statement No. 100 and will implement this Statement in FY 2024.

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, was issued in June 2022. The intent of this Statement is to enhance requirements
for reporting liabilities associated with different types of compensated absences. The LVCVA will further evaluate Statement
No. 101 and will implement this Statement in FY 2025.

NOTE 4. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The LVCVA maintains cash and investments for each of its funds. On June 30, 2022, cash and investments are displayed in the
Statement of Net Position and governmental funds balance sheet as “cash and cash equivalents” and “investments” and in
the Internal Service Fund Statement of Net Position as “cash and cash equivalents” and “investments,” as applicable. Cash-
on-hand consists of both imprest funds for in-person parking and ticket sales, as well as the cash in ticket vending machines
related to the monorail transportation system.

At year end, the LVCVA’s cash, cash equivalents, and investment balances consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand S 114,574
Deposits in bank 69,969,922
70,084,496

Investments (U.S. Treasuries, U.S. Agencies and LGIP) 273,249,791

$ 343,334,287
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At year end, the LVCVA’s carrying amount of deposits was $69,969,922, and the bank balance was $69,922,450. In addition,
the LVCVA had the following investments:

Investments by Maturities

Accrued
Original Cost Fair Value Less than 1 Year 1-5Years Interest Total Value
U.S. Treasuries $ 130,779,218 $ 126,730,939 $ 5,854,803 $ 120,876,136 $ 124,956 $ 126,855,895
U.S. Agencies 47,212,129 46,600,449 6,951,157 39,649,293 163,102 46,763,552
Commercial Paper 12,953,951 12,953,951 12,953,951 - - 12,953,951
Certificates of Deposit 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 - 17,376 10,017,376
LGIP 77,364,874 76,964,452 76,964,452 - 119,458 77,083,910
Total $ 278,310,172 $ 273,249,791 $ 112,724,363 S 160,525,429 S 424,892 $ 273,674,684

According to NRS, the LVCVA monies must be deposited in federally insured banks, credit unions, or savings and loan
associations in the State. The LVCVA is authorized to use demand accounts, time accounts, and certificates of deposit. NRS
specifically requires collateral for all demand deposits and that collateral for time deposits may be of the same type as those
described for permissible investments. Permissible investments are similar to the LVCVA’s allowable investments described
below, except that NRS allows securities issued by municipalities within the State.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the LVCVA will not be
able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At year end,
the LVCVA did not have any significant custodial credit risk.

Per the LVCVA's investment policy, custodial credit risk for deposits is managed by ensuring that they are fully covered by the
federal depository insurance or collateralized by securities. This is currently accomplished by use of the State’s Pooled
Collateral Program, which monitors collateral maintained by depositories for local government agency deposits. This program
provides for centralized processing and management of all pledging and maintenance of collateral by the State Treasurer’s
Office, rather than each local agency, and eliminates the need for the LVCVA to establish separate custodial agreements with
each financial institution. The State Treasurer requires that acceptable securities pledged as collateral be maintained at 102%
of those entities’ deposits participating in the pool and that the pledged securities be held by a third party for the benefit of
the State Treasurer.

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an external investment pool administered by the State of Nevada’s Treasurer,
with oversight by the State’s Board of Finance. The LVCVA deposits monies with the State Treasurer to be pooled with monies
of other local governments for investment in the LGIP. The LGIP operates in accordance with all applicable NRS, and the fair
value of its shares is the same as the reported value of the shares. LGIP financial statements may be obtained from the State
Treasurer’s Office, 101 N. Carson Street Suite 4, Carson City, NV 89701.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

NRS and the LVCVA's investment policy limits investment instruments by credit risk. Any LVCVA investment in commercial
paper must be rated P-1 by Moody’s Investor Service and A-1 by Standard and Poor’s. The LVCVA’s money market investments
must be invested in those funds rated by a nationally recognized rating service as AAA or its equivalent and that invest only
in securities issued by the Federal Government, U.S. Agencies, or REPOs fully collateralized by such securities. The LVCVA’s
investments in U.S. Agencies, which are implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government, are allowed per NRS. On June 30,
2022, all investments in Treasury Bills and Commercial Paper were rated A-1, P-1, or better. For all applicable rated federal
agency and treasury note securities, each investment was rated Aaa, AA+, or better, on June 30, 2022. The LGIP does not
have a credit rating.

To mitigate credit risk, the LVCVA's investment policy limits total investment (which includes overnight accounts included in
cash equivalents). Limits for each category are as follows: U.S. Agencies and U.S. Treasuries to 100%, LGIP to 50%, repurchase
agreements to 40%, and bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, and money market mutual funds
to 25% of the entire portfolio, calculated at the time of investment. As of June 30, 2022, the LVCVA’s investments were
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diversified at 46.4% in U.S. Treasuries, 17.0% in U.S. Agencies, 28.2% in LGIP, and 8.4% in Commercial Paper and Certificates
of Deposit.

The LVCVA’s investment in U.S. Agencies was comprised of securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank (33.7%), the
Federal Farm Credit Bank (33.8%), the Federal National Mortgage Association (23.9%), and the Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (8.6%).

INTEREST RATE RISK

Per the LVCVA’s investment policy, exposure to the declines in fair value due to changing interest rates is managed by limiting
the maturities of its investments to ten years or less. Some of the U.S. Agency investments have call options or prepayment
risk, which, if exercised, could shorten the maturity of these investments during periods of interest volatility.

FAIR VALUE DETERMINATION:

GASB defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, the inputs used to measure fair value are
prioritized based on a three-level hierarchy. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that a government
can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs—other than quoted prices included within Level 1—that are observable for an asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The LVCVA reports five types of investments: Federal Agency securities, U.S. Treasuries, Commercial Paper, Certificates of
Deposit, and LGIP (as applicable).

Except for LGIP, LVCVA tracks its investments on an investment-by-investment basis and, because of this and the similarity of
the investments, reports them in aggregate based upon recurring third-party values using a market approach with matrix
pricing.

Therefore, these investments, which totaled $196,285,339 on June 30, 2022, are classified as Level 2:

Fund Level 2
General Fund S 60,955,232
Internal Service Fund 1,832,266
Capital Projects Fund 51,240,014
LVCCD Capital Fund 82,257,827
Total S 196,285,339

LGIP is an investment pool with multiple types of investments being reported at fair value, determined by availability of
market pricing. The following is a summary of the estimated fair value by fund:

Fund Total
General Fund S 346,007
Internal Service Fund 334,083
Capital Projects Fund 12,671,685
LVCCD Capital Fund 58,310,131
Debt Service Fund 5,285,458
LVCCD Debt Service Fund 17,088
S 76,964,452
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows:

Balance at Balanceat
Description June 30,2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated or amortized:
Land $ 501,347,115 S 25,744 $ - $ 501,372,859
Intangibles 100,000 - - 100,000
Construction in progress 18,883,877 23,572,474 (5,743,150) 36,713,201
Total capital assets not being
depreciated or amortized 520,330,992 23,598,218 (5,743,150) 538,186,060
Capital assets being depreciated or amortized:
Buildings 1,428,913,486 134,887 - 1,429,048,373
Transportation Systems 70,434,686 745,671 - 71,180,357
Intangibles 736,688 - - 736,688
Leased Buildings - 1,102,077 - 1,102,077
Improvements other than buildings 53,399,694 463,539 - 53,863,233
Furniture and equipment 22,681,859 5,804,598 (950,241) 27,536,216
Total capital assets being
depreciated or amortized 1,576,166,413 8,250,772 (950,241) 1,583,466,944
Accumulated depreciation or amortization:
Buildings (264,022,279) (37,077,005) - (301,099,284)
Transportation Systems (1,757,942) (3,541,054) - (5,298,996)
Intangibles (736,688) - - (736,688)
Leased Buildings - (314,345) - (314,345)
Improvements other than buildings (45,876,281) (1,381,562) - (47,257,843)
Furniture and equipment (17,364,970) (1,591,393) 950,241 (18,006,122)
Total accumulated depreciation or amortization (329,758,160) (43,905,359) 950,241 (372,713,278)
Net capital assets being
depreciated or amortized 1,246,408,253 (35,654,587) - 1,210,753,666
Governmental activities
Capital assets, net $ 1,766,739,245 S (12,056,369) _S$ (5,743,150) $ 1,748,939,726

Depreciation and amortization expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

General Government S 235,356
Marketing 369,678
Operations 43,300,325

S 43,905,359

NOTE 6. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS:

The following schedule details the amounts due from/to other funds on June 30, 2022:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Debt Service Fund S 82,520
LVCCD Capital Fund General Fund 3,087,924
LVCCD Capital Fund LVCCD Debt Service Fund 32,129
S 3,202,573
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The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the delayed time period between the dates that (1) interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur and (2) interest on investments in the Debt Service Fund
is earned and transferred back to the General Fund.

Fund transfers are legally authorized transfers from a fund receiving revenue to the fund through which the resources are to
be expended. For the year ended June 30, 2022, transfers between funds were as follows:

Transfers Out
LVCCD Capital LVCCD Debt

Transfer In General Fund  Debt Service Fund Fund Service Fund
General Fund S 90,061 S - S 90,061 $ - S -
LVCCD Capital Fund 99,575,923 99,540,098 - - 35,825
LVCCD Debt Service Fund 85,240,431 46,511,378 - 38,729,053 -
$ 184,906,415 S 146,051,476 S 90,061 S 38,729,053 $ 35,825

NOTE 7. LEASES:
In FY 2022, the LVCVA implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, see Note 1.
LVCVA LEASE OBLIGATIONS

To assist with selling the Las Vegas destination throughout the Midwest and Eastern corridor, the LVCVA leased office space
in both Chicago, Illinois and Washington, D.C. The lease in Chicago commenced on July 1, 2015, expiring March 31, 2026. For
FY 2022, the LVCVA paid $6,941 in monthly rent, and the total principal and interest costs were $83,287. In addition, the
LVCVA paid $75,809 in common area maintenance and property tax charges in FY 2022. Monthly lease payments increase 3%
on each anniversary of the commencement date. The lease in Washington, D.C. commenced on January 1, 2015, expiring
July 31, 2024. For FY 2022, the LVCVA paid $20,072 in monthly rent for the first six months and $20,574 in monthly rent for
the remaining six months, and the total principal and interest costs were $243,879. In addition, the LVCVA paid $149,407 in
common area maintenance and property tax charges in FY 2022. Monthly lease payments increase 2.5% on each anniversary
of the commencement date. On July 1, 2021, the value of leased office space was $1,102,077; with $314,345 amortized
during the year, resulting in a net book value on June 30, 2022, of $298,902 and $488,829 for the Chicago office lease and
the Washington, D.C. office lease, respectively, and the accumulated amortization was $79,707 and $234,638 for Chicago and
Washington, D.C,, respectively. Lease liabilities represent LVCVA’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of future lease payments
expected to be made during the lease term. The present value of lease payments is discounted based on an implicit borrowing
rate determined by the LVCVA.

During 2020, the LVCVA entered into a $382,432 lease for computer equipment. The lease commenced February 1, 2020,
expiring January 31, 2023. The total principal and interest costs in FY22 were paid in one annual installment of $132,990. On
June 30, 2022, the net book value was $74,362, and the accumulated amortization was $ 308,070.

The remaining principal and interest payment requirements for the LVCVA's lease obligations, as of June 30, 2022, are as
follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Payments
2023 S 306,784 S 28,978 S 335,762
2024 329,237 15,348 344,585
2025 107,562 5,063 112,625
2026 69,063 1,243 70,306

S 812,646 S 50,632 $ 863,278

LVCVA LEASES RECEIVABLE

The LVCVA leases land and other building space to cellular communications companies for the purpose of building and
maintaining cellular towers. The lease for the cellular tower on E. Desert Inn Rd. commenced on January 13, 1995, expiring
January 13, 2028. The lease of the cellular tower within the LVCVA monorail station commenced October 1, 2013, expiring
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September 30, 2028. For FY 2022, the LVCVA received $72,181 (554,628 principal and $17,553 interest) in total lease revenue,
plus an additional $311 in variable rent increases.

The LVCVA leases land for purposes of operating a police substation to serve the Las Vegas strip and resort corridor. The lease
commenced in 2007, with a duration of 15 years. An additional 15-year renewal is reasonably certain, as the substation is
currently being renovated and expanded; thus, the total lease term is 30 years, expiring November 30, 2037. In FY 2022, the
LVCVA received $87,512 ($47,806 principal and $39,705 interest) in total lease revenue, plus an additional $3,150 in variable
rent increases.

The LVCVA leases space within the LVCC monorail station for various use of the premises, including advertising and naming
rights. The lease commenced March 1, 2022, with a duration of two years. An additional eight-year renewal is not reasonably
certain and requires agreement by both parties. In FY 2022, the LVCVA received $200,000 in total lease revenue, plus an
additional $19,537 in operating cost reimbursements.

Leases receivable are recorded by LVCVA as the present value of future lease payments expected to be received from the
lessee during the lease term, reduced by any provision for estimated uncollectible amounts. Leases receivable are
subsequently reduced over the life of the lease as cash is received in the applicable reporting period. The preset value of
future lease payments to be received is discounted based on the implied interest rate the LVCVA charges the lessee.

The total remaining principal and interest receipts for the LVCVA’s leases receivable, as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Payments
2023 S 672,830 $ 88,628 S 761,458
2024 503,124 60,159 563,283
2025 116,227 48,947 165,174
2026 123,319 43,810 167,129
2027 130,792 38,362 169,154

2028-2032 398,430 128,363 526,793

2033-2037 386,122 51,439 437,561

2038-2042 36,075 389 36,464

S 2,366,919 S 460,097 S 2,827,016

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT:

The LVCVA issues general obligation (GO) and revenue bonds to fund land and other improvements, acquisition, and
construction of capital assets consisting primarily of meeting and exhibit and support facilities at the Las Vegas Convention
Center. Ten of the LVCVA’s outstanding bonds are GO bonds of the County acting on behalf of the LVCVA. During FY 2022,
two refunding bonds, one general obligation and one revenue, were issued.

The County acts as the guarantor of the LVCVA GO bonds, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The GO bonds are primarily secured by ad valorem taxes and are
additionally secured by net pledged revenues of the LVCVA, primarily room taxes on hotels and motels in Clark County.
However, repayment of debt service on the GO bonds is not required by the LVCVA to Clark County if ad valorem taxes must
be used. It has been the practice of the LVCVA never to use ad valorem taxes for debt service but, rather, to use only net
pledged revenues derived from operations. In fiscal year 2022, General Fund room taxes and gaming fees of $295.4 million
were 3.4 times the amount necessary to pay the $87.8 million of regular principal and interest payments for all LVCVA debt
service payments. As of June 30, 2022, no ad valorem tax revenues have been allocated to the LVCVA for any purpose,
including to guarantee debt payments. No change in this practice is contemplated in the future.

In addition, the LVCVA, pursuant to legislative directive, previously provided $300.0 million of funding to the NDOT for
transportation projects and issued GO bonds in this regard ($239.5 million principal outstanding on June 30, 2022). The capital
assets acquired with this debt are not assets of LVCVA.
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The LVCVA also pledged additional revenue streams on debt related to the LVCCD Project. In October 2016, during a special
session of the Nevada Legislature, Nevada Senate Bill 1 (SB1) enacted and authorized the LVCVA to use an additional 0.5%
room tax revenues, as well as amounts in excess of an imposed cap of $25.0 million on total non-SB1 room tax and gaming
fees collection allocation, solely for the LVCCD Project. There has been $900.0 million issued in four series ($899.9 million
outstanding on June 30, 2022), with $300.0 million of authorized bonds remaining to be issued. These bonds were issued for
the LVCCD, and repayments are accounted for in the LVCCD Debt Service Fund. In FY 2022, the additional SB1 room tax totaled
$30.4 million. As of June 30, 2022, the SB1 pledge is utilized to make payments on $899.9 million of the outstanding LVCVA
debt.

REVENUE BONDS

In 1999, the State passed legislation that allowed the LVCVA to issue revenue bonds secured by and payable from room taxes
and gaming fees, in addition to revenues from the operation of the facility.

Refunding/New Issue

In October 2021, the LVCVA issued $23,615,000 Series 2021 Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2021 Bonds) for the purpose of
refunding the Series 2019A Revenue Refunding Bonds, which were issued as direct placement bonds to refund Series 2010B
Transportation and Refunding Bonds. The 2021 Bonds have interest rates of 5.0%, with a final installment date of July 1, 2026.
Net proceeds totaled $28,247,862, including a $2,779,284 premium and net of $268,073 in underwriting fees and other
issuance costs. Total savings of the refunding are $955,604, with a present value of $932,966. The 2021 Bonds are included
in the summary schedule of pledged revenue bonds.

The following is a summary of terms and balances for revenue bonds payable on June 30, 2022:

$100,705,000 - 2016C Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2047. $ 97,965,000
Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%
$71,005,000 - 2017B Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2041. 71,005,000
Semi-annual interest from 3.25 - 5%
$500,000,000 - 2018B Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2050. 500,000,000
Semi-annual interest from 4 - 5%
$80,000,000 - 2018C Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2049. 80,000,000
Semi-annual interest from 4 - 5.25%
$45,230,000 - 2019B Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2040. 42,445,000
Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%
$23,615,000 - 2021 Revenue Bonds due in annual installments through FY 2027. 23,615,000
Semi-annual interest 5%
S 815,030,000
MEDIUM TERM BONDS
The following is a summary of medium-term bonds payable, as of June 30, 2022:
$21,500,000 - 2020 Medium Term Bonds due in annual installments through FY 21,300,000
2028. Semi-annual interest at 3.010%
$ 21,300,000

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Refunding/New Issue

In April 2022, the LVCVA issued $15,355,000 Series 2022 General Obligation/Revenue Refunding Bonds (the 2022 Bonds) for
the purpose of refunding the Series 2012 General Obligation/Revenue Bonds, which were issued to acquire and improve
property for Authority purposes. The 2022 Bonds have interest rates of 1.96%, with a final installment date of July 1, 2032.
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Net proceeds totaled $16,407,744, net of $161,313 in issuance costs. Total savings of the refunding are $753,716, with a
present value of $675,645. The 2022 Bonds are included in the summary schedule of pledged general obligation bonds.

The following is a summary of pledged general obligation bonds payable, as of June 30, 2022:

$70,770,000 - 2010A (NDOT/BABs) Bonds due in annual installments through FY S 70,770,000
2039. Semi-annual interest from 6.55 - 6.75%

$50,000,000 - 2014 General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments through 47,525,000
FY 2044. Semi-annual interest from 2 - 5%

$181,805,000 - 2015 General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments through 104,425,000
FY 2045. Semi-annual interest from 2 - 5%

$21,175,000 - 2017 General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments through 20,370,000
FY 2039. Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%

$126,855,000 - 2017C General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments 124,695,000
through FY 2039. Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%

$200,000,000 - 2018A General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments 199,900,000
through FY 2048. Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%

$132,565,000 - 2019C General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments 132,565,000
through FY 2040. Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%

$67,435,000 - 2019D General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments through 67,435,000
FY 2045. Semi-annual interest from 3 - 5%

$15,355,000 - 2022 General Obligation Bonds due in annual installments through 15,355,000
FY 2033. Semi-annual interest 1.96%

$ 783,040,000

The following schedule summarizes all future interest and principal payments, as of June 30, 2022:

ARBITRAGE REBATE AND DEBT COVENANT REQUIREMENTS

The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 imposes a rebate requirement with respect to some bonds issued by the LVCVA. Under
this Act, when a government entity earns interest at a higher rate of return on tax-exempt bond funds than it pays on the
debt, the excess difference may be required to be rebated to the United States Treasury (called “arbitrage”). The rebate is
necessary for interest on the bonds to continue to qualify for exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
Rebatable arbitrage is computed as of each installment computation date. As of the most recent such date, the LVCVA’s
management believes that there is no rebatable arbitrage amount due. Future calculations might result in adjustments to
this determination.

In addition, certain of the LVCVA’s long-term debt obligations are subject to restrictive debt covenants. The LVCVA has
committed to maintaining adequacy of charges against users of the Las Vegas Convention Center, but not necessarily all users
thereof. The LVCVA is required to set rentals, fees, and other charges to produce a defined term of pledged revenues and
expansion pledged revenues (revenue including the SB1 pledge) to pay the annual defined operation and maintenance
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expense of the Authority’s facilitates for each fiscal year, which together are 1.25x the annual principal and interest
requirements on the LVCVA’s outstanding bonds, and other amounts required under the related bond resolutions.

FY 2022 pledged revenues and expansion pledged revenues are $356,148,580 and $389,909,948, respectively, which are
inclusive of facility revenues (as defined by in bond documents) of $58,247,081. Defined Operation maintenance expense is
$58,119,057. The LVCVA’s June 30, 2022 coverage ratio is 3.2x (and 3.3x including expansion pledged revenues). Revenues
are sufficient to comply with the coverage ratios in the bond resolutions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

DEBT REFUNDING AND DEFEASANCE

The LVCVA defeased general obligation and revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of the new bonds in an irrevocable trust
account to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability
for the defeased bonds are not included in the LVCVA financial statements. On June 30, 2022, $16,170,000 of defeased bonds
remain outstanding.

DEBT APPROVED BUT NOT YET ISSUED

In 2017, the Oversight Panel for Convention Facilities in Clark County and the LVCVA Board approved the issuance of up to
$900 million of bonds to complete Phase Two of the LVCCD Project. The $900 million has been issued, and Phase Two of the
LVCCD Project has been completed using SB1 resources, transfers from the General Fund, and debt proceeds.

In 2019, the LVCVA Board and the Oversight Panel for Convention Facilities in Clark County approved $300 million in LVCVA
revenue bonds associated with Phase Three of the LVCCD project. The LVCVA issued $150 million of that available
authorization in FY 2023 and currently anticipates issuing the remaining amounts within the next two fiscal years. See Note
15 for additional detail related to subsequent debt approved.
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The changes in long-term liabilities for the fiscal year were as follows:

Interest Paid Beginning Ending
During the Balance, Balance,
Year July 1, 2021 Additions Reductions June 30,2022
BONDS
General Obligation/Pledged Revenue Bonds
2010A General Obligation Bond S 4,721,166 $ 70,770,000 S - S - S 70,770,000
2012 General Obligation Bond 516,473 17,385,000 - (17,385,000) -
2014 General Obligation Bond 1,998,749 48,685,000 - (1,160,000) 47,525,000
2015 General Obligation Refunding Bond 4,517,500 110,500,000 - (6,075,000) 104,425,000
2017 General Obligation Refunding Bond 772,444 21,175,000 - (805,000) 20,370,000
2017C General Obligation Refunding Bond 5,049,650 126,855,000 - (2,160,000) 124,695,000
2018A General Obligation Bond 8,005,000 200,000,000 - (100,000) 199,900,000
2019C General Obligation Bond 5,051,950 132,565,000 - - 132,565,000
2019D General Obligation Bond 2,157,603 67,435,000 - - 67,435,000
2022 General Obligation Bond - - 15,355,000 - 15,355,000
Revenue Bonds
2016C Revenue Refunding Bond 4,214,000 100,705,000 - (2,740,000) 97,965,000
2017B Revenue Refunding Bond 3,122,675 71,005,000 - - 71,005,000
2018B Revenue Refunding Bond 22,417,000 500,000,000 - - 500,000,000
2018C Revenue Refunding Bond 3,807,213 80,000,000 - - 80,000,000
2019A Revenue Refunding Bond* 356,733 30,490,000 - (30,490,000) -
2019B Revenue Bond 2,024,075 43,870,000 - (1,425,000) 42,445,000
2021 Revenue Bond 252,549 - 23,615,000 23,615,000
Medium Term Bonds
2020 Bond 644,140 21,400,000 - (100,000) 21,300,000
Unamortized premiums and discounts - 82,361,092 2,779,284 (6,893,641) 78,246,735
Subtotal Bonds 69,628,920 1,725,201,092 41,749,284 (69,333,641) 1,697,616,735
OTHER LIABILITIES
Compensated absences - 6,328,183 2,987,160 (3,516,292) 5,799,051
Capital lease obligations 3,261 127,399 812,646 (127,399) 812,646
Postemployment benefits other
than pensions - 33,302,611 2,099,910 (1,066,836) 34,335,685
Net pension liability - 61,867,321 - (47,178,604) 14,688,717
Subtotal other liabilities 3,261 101,625,514 5,899,716 (51,889,131) 55,636,099

$ 69,632,181  $1,826,826,606 $ 47,649,000 $ (121,222,772) $1,753,252,834

* 2019Ais a Direct Placement Bond
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The portion of each long-term liability that is due in FY 2023 is shown below:

Principal Interest
BONDS
General Obligation/Pledged Revenue Bonds
2010A General Obligation Bonds S - S 4,721,166
2014 General Obligation Bonds 1,215,000 1,939,374
2015 General Obligation Bonds 2,680,000 4,298,625
2017 General Obligation Bonds 845,000 731,194
2017C General Obligation Bonds 2,270,000 4,938,900
2018A General Obligation Bonds 100,000 8,000,000
2019C General Obligation Bonds - 5,051,950
2019D General Obligation Bonds - 2,157,603
2022 General Obligation Bonds 235,000 200,844
Revenue Bonds
2016C Revenue Bonds 2,875,000 4,073,625
2017B Revenue Bonds 2,360,000 3,063,675
2018B Revenue Bonds 1,000,000 22,392,000
2018C Revenue Bonds - 3,807,213
2019B Revenue Bonds 1,495,000 1,951,075
2021 Revenue Bonds 5,040,000 1,054,750
Medium Term Bonds
2020 Bonds 100,000 641,130
20,215,000 69,023,124
OTHER LIABILITIES
Compensated absences 2,636,644 -
Capital lease obligation 306,784 28,978
S 23,158,428 S 69,052,102

The General Fund is normally used to liquidate compensated absences, net pension obligations, and other post-employment
obligations.

NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The LVCVA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The LVCVA has third-party coverage for property and commercial
liability. For worker’s compensation, the LVCVA is self-insured, with an excess insurance policy. For worker’s compensation,
the LVCVA is self-insured at a relatively low threshold per claim. For claims over the threshold, third-party coverage would
take effect. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage for the past three years.
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims have been accrued as a liability based on a variety of actuarial and statistical
techniques.

In FY 2022, the LVCVA incurred claims of $151,527 ($126,919 and $24,608 for workers compensation and general liability,
respectively) and made claims payments totaling $220,319 ($209,233 and $11,086 for workers compensation and general
liability, respectively). As of June 30, 2022, the unpaid retained loss and allocated loss adjustment expense (ALAE) for worker’s
compensation exposures is estimated to be $325,357, of which $161,857 is for IBNR claims. The unpaid retained loss and
ALAE for general liability claims is estimated to be $77,359, of which $62,357 is for IBNR claims. The total unpaid retained loss
and ALAE, inclusive of both workers compensation and general liability, as of June 30, 2022, is $402,716.
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The spread of the novel strain of coronavirus called COVID-19 (“COVID-19") had significant negative impacts throughout the
world, including within Southern Nevada, and on the operations and finances of the LVCVA since March of 2020. The Southern
Nevada economy is heavily dependent on tourism and gaming, and the impacts of the spread of COVID-19 and federal, State,
and local actions related thereto and its adverse effect on the level of economic activity within the area impacted the
Authority’s financial operations. Most resorts and casinos closed for the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2020 due to an
emergency declaration issued as part of a mitigation response to reduce the spread of COVID-19, reducing inventory of
available hotels rooms during fiscal year 2021, as compared to pre-COVID, along with regulatory limitations on live
entertainment, sporting events, meeting and conventions, and other activities that attract visitation to Southern Nevada.
These restrictions impacted financial results for fiscal years 2020, 2021, and 2022. Restrictions eased as a phased reopening
occurred during calendar year 2022, allowing for the return of significant events in the region, as well as an increase in
domestic leisure travel. On May 20, 2022, the State lifted the COVID-19 emergency declaration. COVID-19 is ongoing. The
future impact of COVID-19 on the operations and finances of the Authority, if any, is unknown at this time.

NOTE 10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN:
Plan Description

The LVCVA participates in the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada. This is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer,
defined benefit public employees’ retirement system (the System or PERS), which includes both Regular and Police/Fire
members. The System was established by the Nevada Legislature in 1947, effective July 1, 1948. The System is administered
by the Public Employees’ Retirement Board to provide a reasonable base income to qualified employees who have been
employed by a public employer and whose earnings capacities have been removed or substantially impaired by age or
disability. The LVCVA exercises no control over PERS. NRS 286.110 states that “The respective participating public employers
are not liable for any obligations of the system.”

Benefits Provided

Benefits, as required by NRS, are determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement and the
member’s highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months, with special provisions for members entering the
System on or after January 1, 2010, and July 1, 2015. Benefit payments to which participants or their beneficiaries may be
entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and survivor benefits. Monthly benefit allowances for
members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for each accredited year of service before July 1, 2001. For service
earned on and after July 1, 2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average compensation. For members entering the System on or
after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% multiplier. For members entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, there is a 2.25%
multiplier.

The System offers several alternatives to the unmodified service retirement allowance, which, in general, allow the retired
employee to accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime with various optional
monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. Post-retirement increases are provided by authority of NRS
286.575-.579.

Vesting

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, or at any
age with 30 years of service. Regular members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at
age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with 10 years of service, or any age with 30 years of service. Regular members
entering the System on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 62 with 10
years of service, at age 55 with 30 years of service, or any age with 33 1/3 years of service. Police/Fire members are eligible
for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 55 with 10 years of service, at age 50 with 20 years of service, or at
any age with 25 years of service. Police/Fire members entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for
retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, at age 50 with 20 years of service, or at any
age with 30 years of service. Police/Fire entering the system on or after July 1, 2015, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with
five years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service, at age 50 with 20 years of service, and at any age with 33 1/3 years of
service. Only service performed in a position as a police officer or firefighter may be counted towards eligibility for retirement
as Police/Fire accredited service.
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The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefits allowances is 75% of average compensation; however, a member who has
an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Both
Regular and Police/Fire members become fully vested in benefits upon completion of five years of service.

Contributions

The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions and member contribution rates is set by
statute. New hires, in agencies that did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan before July 1, 1983, have the
option of selecting one of two contribution plans. Contributions are shared equally by employer and employee. Employees
can take a reduced salary and have contributions made by the employer (EPC) or can make contributions by a payroll
deduction matched by the employer. The LVCVA elected the EPC plan.

The System’s basic funding policy provides for periodic contributions at a level pattern of cost as a percentage of salary
throughout an employee’s working life in order to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The System receives
an actuarial valuation on an annual basis indicating the contribution rates required to fund the System on an actuarial reserve
basis. The actuary funding method used is the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. It is intended to meet the funding objective
and result in a relatively level long-term contributions requirement as a percentage of salary.

Contributions are made are in accordance with the actuarially required rates established by the Nevada Legislature. These
statutory rates are increased/decreased pursuant to NRS 286.421 and 286.450.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 15.25% for Regular and 22.00%
for Police/Fire; for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Statutory Employer/employee matching rate was 15.50% for
Regular and 22.75% for Police/Fire. The Employer-pay contribution (EPC) rate was 29.25% for Regular and 42.50% for
Police/Fire, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021; the EPC rate increased, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, to 29.75%
for Regular and 44.00% for Police/Fire. Contribution to the pension plan from the LVCVA was $7,885,050 for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The employer-allocated percentage of the net pension liability was based on the total contributions due on wages paid during
the measurement period. Contributions for employer pay dates that fall within PERS fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, are
used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts. The LVCVA's
allocated portion was calculated at 0.16107%, lower than the 0.44418% allocated portion in the prior year. The LVCVA
recorded a liability of $14,688,717 for its portion of the net pension liability, as of June 30, 2022.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S 1,627,064 S 103,374
Change of assumptions 4,876,907 -
Net dlfferena? betwee.n projected and ) 11,985,525
actual earnings on investments
Changes in proportion and differences between actual
R . L 155,333 42,938,615
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
LVCVA contributions subsequent to measurement date 3,940,628 -
S 10,599,932 S 55,027,514

OnJune 30, 2021, the average expected remaining service life is calculated at 6.14 years.

Deferred outflows for contributions made by the LVCVA to PERS after the measurement date of the net pension liability but
before the end of the LVCVA'’s fiscal year will be recognized as a reduction to net pension liability in the year ending June 30,
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2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in expense as follows:

Year end June 30,

2023 $ 10,585,463
2024 10,576,663
2025 10,640,583
2026 10,297,279
2027 5,530,207
Thereafter 738,015

Included in accounts payable on June 30, 2022, the LVCVA had $1,029,341 payable to PERS, equal to the required contribution
for the month of June 2022, which was subsequently paid in accordance with applicable due dates in July and August 2022.

Actuarial Assumptions

The System’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. For this purpose, certain actuarial valuation
assumptions are stipulated by GASB and may vary from those used to determine the prospective funding contribution rates.

The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:

Inflation rate 2.50%

Payroll growth 3.50% for Regular and Police/Fire

Investment rate of return 7.25%

Discount rate 7.25%

Productivity pay increase 0.50%

Projected salary increases Regular: 4.20% to 9.10%, depending on service

Police/Fire: 4.60% to 14.50%, depending on service, including inflation

On June 30, 2021, assumed mortality rates and projected life expectancies for selected ages were as follows:

Regular Members
Mortality Rates EXDECEZ(:nﬁ:;;f Life
Age Males Females Males Females
40 0.07% 0.04% 434 47.1
50 0.35% 0.24% 33.2 36.7
60 0.72% 0.43% 23.7 26.9
70 1.80% 1.19% 15.2 17.8
80 5.71% 3.75% 8.1 10.0
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Police/Fire Members
Mortality Rates EXpec;iiq:i?i;f Life
Age Males Females Males Females
40 0.07% 0.05% 442 47.3
50 0.21% 0.15% 33.9 36.9
60 0.57% 0.44% 24 26.9
70 1.76% 1.31% 15.3 17.9
80 5.65% 3.92% 8.2 10.2

These mortality rates and projected life expectancies are based on the following:

e  For pre-retirement members — Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee Table, projected to 2020 with Scale MP-
2016.

e  For healthy members — Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table, projected to 2020 with Scale MP-
2016, set forward one year for spouses and beneficiaries. For ages less than 50, mortality rates are based on the
Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables. Those mortality rates are adjusted by the ratio of the
mortality rate for members at age 50 to the mortality rate at age 50 from the Employee mortality tables in the PERS
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The mortality rates are then projected to 2020 with Scale MP-2016.

e  For disabled members — Headcount-Weighted RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Table, set forward four years.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an experience study for the period
from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2020.

Valuation of Plan Assets - Investment Policy

The policies which determine the investment portfolio target asset allocation are established by the PERS Board. The asset
allocation is reviewed annually and is designed to meet the future risk and return needs of the System. The PERS Board
adopted the following target allocation policy as of June 30, 2021:

Long-Term Geometric
Expected Real Rate of

Asset Class Target Allocation Return*

Domestic stocks 42% 5.50%

International stocks 18% 5.50%

U.S. Bonds 28% 0.75%

Private markets 12% 6.65%
100%

* As of June 30, 2021, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 2.50%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%, as of June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at the rate specified
in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position on June 30, 2021, was projected to be available
to make all projected future benefit payments of currently active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments (7.25%) was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability as of June 30, 2021.
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Pension Liability Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following presents the LVCVA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the System as of June 30, 2021,
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the LVCVA’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease (6.25%) Discount Rate (7.25%) 1% Increase (8.25%)

Net Pension Liability - LVCVA portion $29,244,765 $14,688,717 $2,681,169
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

PERS issues a stand-alone Annual Comprehensive Financial Report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan. Additional information about the System’s fiduciary net position is available at
www.nvpers.org under Quick Links — Publications or may be obtained by contacting PERS at the following address:

Public Employees Retirement System of Nevada
693 W. Nye Lane

Carson City, NV 89703-1599

(775) 687-4200

NOTE 11. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB):

In accordance with NRS, retirees of the LVCVA and their spouses may continue insurance through existing plans, if enrolled
as an active employee at the time of retirement.

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS

The LVCVA'’s plan is a non-trust, single-employer, defined benefit post-employment plan (Primary Plan). Active members and
retirees can choose between the Clark County Self-Funded Group Medical and Dental Benefits Plan (CCSF) and, beginning
January 1, 2022, the Clark County Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO) Plan. Through December 31, 2021, the alternative
option to the CCSF Plan was Health Plan of Nevada (HPN), a fully-insured health maintenance organization (HMQO). The EPO
selection replaced the HPN option. These program options include healthcare, prescription, dental, vision, and life insurance
benefits. The Primary Plan does not issue a separate financial report; however, additional information may be obtained by
writing or calling Clark County Risk Management, 500 S. Grand Central Pkwy., Las Vegas, NV 89155, (702) 486-4009.

The LVCVA also provides continuation of medical insurance coverage to retirees and their spouses under the State of Nevada
Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP), an agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit plan. This plan includes healthcare,
prescription, dental, Medicare Part B, and life insurance benefits and is provided through a third-party insurer. It is
administered by a ten-member governing board with nine members appointed by the State’s Governor, and the last board
member is the Director from the Department of Administration or his/her designee. For participants who enrolled in the PEBP
before September 1, 2008, the LVCVA is responsible for payment of a monthly subsidy, based on the years of service with the
local government, for the life of the retiree. The subsidy requirements are governed by NRS and can only be amended through
legislation. The PEBP issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The PEBP report may be obtained by writing or calling the Public Employee Benefit Plan, 901
South Stewart Street, Suite 1001, Carson City, Nevada 89701, (800) 326-5496.

EMPLOYEES COVERED BY PLANS
As of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation, the LVCVA’s Primary Plan covers 146 retirees and surviving spouses, 53 spouses,

and 368 active employees. The LVCVA also covers 40 PEBP retirees. As of November 1, 2008, PEBP was closed to any new
participants.
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FUNDING POLICY

For the Primary Plan, LVCVA premiums are established and may be amended through negotiations between the LVCVA and
the insurance plan. Contribution requirements by active employees to the Primary Plan are established by, and may be
amended through, negotiations between the LVCVA and various employee groups. All LVCVA retirees are required to pay
100% of their premiums under the plan. Retirees enrolled in the Primary Plan receive no direct subsidy from the LVCVA;
however, retiree loss experience is pooled with active employee loss experience for setting rates, and the difference between
the true claims cost and the blended rate creates an implicit rate subsidy from the LVCVA, which is paid annually through
plan premiums and charges.

The LVCVA is required to pay the PEBP an explicit subsidy, based on years of service, for retirees enrolled in this plan. Retirees
were eligible for a subsidy after five years of service with a Nevada state or local government entity. The maximum subsidy
is earned after 20 years of combined service with an eligible entity. If the retiree worked for more than one eligible entity,
the subsidy is split based on the length of time with each entity. In FY 2022, the LVCVA'’s cost per month per retiree ranged
from $9 to $1,461.

As of June 30, 2022, the LVCVA’s aggregate OPEB plan balances are as follows:

Primary Plan PEBP Total
Net OPEB assets administered through a qualifying trust S - S - S -
Net unamortized deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 9,169,250 132,144 9,301,394
Total OPEB liability 31,657,715 2,677,970 34,335,685
Net unamortized deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 25,534,876 - 25,534,876
OPEB expense (560,180) 91,323 (468,857)

FUNDING STATUS

The LVCVA currently pays for post-employment healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis and has established an Internal
Service Fund to accumulate resources to be held in reserve to pay its future liability for postemployment benefits. Transfers
from the General Fund to the OPEB reserve fund have been incorporated into consideration during the annual budget
process. As of June 30, 2022, net discretionary transfers since inception, adjusted for investments earnings, total $2.3 million.
The annual funding considerations include biannual actuarial studies among other factors and conditions. The assets
accumulated for purposes of providing OPEB benefits through the Internal Service Fund are not administered through a trust
that meets the specified criteria as required by GASB standards and, therefore, are reported as assets of the LVCVA. An agency
fund is not required because the LVCVA does not hold any assets in a fiduciary capacity.

ACTUARIAL METHODS, ASSUMPTIONS, OTHER INPUTS, AND CHANGES

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the healthcare cost trend. Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the
employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing
benefit costs between the LVCVA and the plan members. Bi-annual actuarial reports and mid-period adjustments to such
estimates reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Changes in the assumptions and other inputs that
affected the measurement of the LVCVA’s total OPEB liability during the period from the last measurement date were as
follows:

The discount rate was updated from 2.21%, as of June 30, 2020, to 2.16%, as of June 30, 2021 (the actuarial measurement
date).

The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
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Primary Plan and PEBP

Measurement date June 30, 2021
Reporting date June 30, 2022
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal, level percentage of salary

Experience/Assumptions gains and losses are
amortized over a closed period of 13.9 average
remaining service to expected retirement age

Amortization method of active and inactive plan members (who
have no future service). Investment gains and
losses are amortized over a closed period of 5
years starting the current fiscal year.

Asset valuation N/A, no assets in OPEB trust

2.21% (Beginning of the year)
2.16% (End of the year)

Discount rate source Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index

Discountrate

Salary increases 3% per annum

Pre-Medicare Medical & Rx Benefits - 6.75%
reduced 0.25% each vyear until reaching
ultimate trend rate of 4.0%.

Healthcare cost trend rates Medicare Benefits - 5.75% reduced 0.25% each
year until reaching ultimate trend rate of 4.0%.
Administrative Fees - 4.0%
Dental - 4.0%

On June 30, 2021, the assumed per capita health claim costs are adjusted to reflect expected increases related to age and
gender. These increases are based on a 2013 Society of Actuaries study, with sample rates shown below.

Sample Age Males Females
45 4.6% 1.6%
55 5.4% 2.4%
65 1.7% 2.4%
75 1.2% 1.3%
80 0.8% 1.1%

Mortality rates were updated to utilize the Pub-2010 headcount weighted table with the MP-2020 improvement scales
(previously the RP-2014 with MP-2018 scales), applied on a gender-specific basis.

Termination rates are based on withdrawal assumptions based on the 2020 Nevada PERS Actuarial Valuation. The rate of
withdrawal for reasons other than death and retirement is dependent on an employee’s age and years of service. Sample
rates are provided below.

Years of Service General Rate
0 16.0%
5 6.0%
10 3.3%
15 2.0%
20+ 1.8%

Marriage rate assumptions were updated to reflect the most recent participant experience. Based on the current retiree
population, 30% of future retirees are assumed married with a spouse at retirement, eligible for plan benefits.
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SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Discount rate. The sensitivity analysis below indicates what the LVCVA’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (1.16%) or 1- percentage-point higher (2.16%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease in Discount

Discount Rate

1% Increasein

Rate 2.16% Discount Rate
Primary Plan S 38,359,655 S 31,657,715 26,438,762
PEBP 3,078,966 2,677,970 2,350,974
Total OPEB Liability S 41,438,621 S 34,335,685 28,789,736

Health care cost trend rate. The sensitivity analysis below indicates what the LVCVA’s total OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a health care cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1- percentage-point higher than the current

rate:
1% Decrease in Health Health Care Trend 1% Increase in Health

Care Trend Rate Rate Care Trend Rate
Primary Plan S 26,424,762 S 31,657,715 S 38,310,655
PEBP 2,366,973 2,677,970 3,049,966
Total OPEB Liability S 28,791,735 S 34,335,685 S 41,360,621
CHANGES IN LIABILITY
During FY 2022, changes in the LVCVA'’s total OPEB liability were as follows:

Primary Plan PEBP Total
Service Cost S 1,058,336 S - 1,058,336
Interest on total OPEB liability 689,151 58,437 747,588
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 261,100 32,886 293,986
Benefit payments (951,678) (115,158) (1,066,836)
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,056,909 (23,835) 1,033,074
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 30,600,806 2,701,805 33,302,611
Total OPEB liability, end of year S 31,657,715 S 2,677,970 34,335,685

The LVCVA’s reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, as of June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Deferred Outflows of

Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources
Primary Plan
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 20,480,326
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 8,549,343 5,054,550
Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date 619,907 -
PEBP
Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date 132,144 -
Total of All Plans
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 20,480,326
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 8,549,343 5,054,550
Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date 752,051 -

S 9,301,394 S 25,534,876
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Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from benefit payments after the measurement date but before the
end of LVCVA’s fiscal year totaling $752,051 will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year ending
June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30, Total
2023 $2,307,667
2024 2,307,667
2025 2,205,414
2026 1,537,393
2027 1,537,393
Thereafter 7,089,999

NOTE 12. CLASSIFICATION OF NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES:
FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS:

Fund balances are required to be reported in classifications based on the following definitions:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. These classifications include inventories, prepaid items, assets
held for sale, and long-term receivables.

Restricted Fund Balance — Includes constraints placed on the use of these resources that are either externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors or other governments, or are imposed by law (through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation).

Committed Fund Balance — Includes amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal action
(resolution or board approval, both of which are considered to be equally binding) by the LVCVA’s highest level of decision-
making authority, which is the LVCVA’s Board. Those constraints remain binding unless removed or changed in the same
manner employed to previously commit those resources.

Assigned Fund Balance — Includes amounts that are constrained by the LVCVA’s intent for specific purposes but do not meet
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. The LVCVA Board has approved a policy that provides the authority to
the President/CEO and the CFO to make fund balance assignments. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts can
be removed without formal Board action.

Unassigned Fund Balance — This is the residual classification of the General Fund. This is fund balance that has not been
reported in any other classification. The General Fund is the only fund that can report a positive unassigned fund balance.
Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this classification, as a result of overspending for specific
purposes, for which amounts have been restricted, committed, or assigned.

SPENDING PRIORITIZATION IN USING AVAILABLE RESOURCES:

When both restricted resources and other resources (i.e. committed, assigned, and unassigned) can be used for the same
purposes, the LVCVA financial management policy considers restricted resources to be spent first.

When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources can be used for the same purpose, the flow assumption in the LVCVA's
budget is to spend in the sequence of committed resources first, assigned second, and unassigned last.

GENERAL FUND BALANCE POLICY:

Based on Nevada Administrative Code 354.650-660, a minimum fund balance of 4.0% of budgeted General Fund operating
expenditures must be maintained. The LVCVA begins each new fiscal year operating from beginning fund balance for six
weeks, based on the timing of the first “new” year’s room taxes collected. Six weeks is approximately 12% of budgeted
operating expenditures. Thus, in order to ensure that the LVCVA has sufficient cash on hand to meet all of its financial
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obligations in a timely manner, and to ensure that essential services are not disrupted in times of fluctuating revenues, the
LVCVA'’s fiscal practice is to target an ending General Fund balance between 4% and 16% of expected expenditures for
potential variances in economic conditions without detriment to operations. FY 2022 ending fund balance was budgeted to
be 18.2% of expected expenditures and actualized at 38.9%.

The fund balances by component on June 30, 2022, were:

LVCCD Capital LVCCD Debt Capital Projects Debt Service
General Fund Fund Service Fund Fund Fund

Non-Spendable

Inventory S 286,905 S - S - S - S -

Prepaid and other items 3,483,942 60,893 - 178,842 -
Restricted

Capital project programs - - - 984,568 -

Debt service programs - - 19,914,437 - 34,664,892
Committed

Capital project programs - 142,427,333 - 43,800,000 -

Debt service programs - - - - 5,160,722
Assigned

Capital program 24,000,000 - - 18,064,521 -
Unassigned 56,236,355 - - - -

$ 84,007,202 $ 142,488,226 S 19,914,437 S 63,027,931 $ 39,825,614

NOTE 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The LVCVA often carries cash and cash equivalents on deposit with financial institutions in excess of federally-insured limits,
and the risk of losses that may be sustained as a result of uninsured deposits in the event of a future failure of a financial
institution, if any, is not subject to estimation at this time.

ADVERTISING

R&R Partners (R&R) is the official advertising and marketing communications agency for the LVCVA. R&R develops marketing
plans for both long-term and short-term initiatives and works with the LVCVA in the areas of consumer marketing, business
and convention marketing, international marketing, and extended destination marketing. In July 2021, the Board approved a
four-year contract with an optional two-year extension, which can be terminated by either party with 90 days’ notice. The
contract amount is not to exceed $500 million, inclusive of R&R’s services fees (Agency Compensation), content creation
costs, and media purchases, which shall be capped through the LVCVA’s annual budget process. The annual Agency
Compensation is approximately $19.1 million for FY23.

At the same July 2021 meeting, LVCVA entered into a two-year agreement with an additional advertising company, Grey
Group (Grey), for social marketing services, with two optional two-year extensions. The contract amount is not to exceed
$160 million, inclusive of Grey’s services fees (Agency Compensation), content creation costs, and media purchases for social
platforms, which shall be capped through the LVCVA’s annual budget process. The FY23 annual Agency Compensation for the
Grey Group is approximately $8.4 million. In September 2021, the Board approved an additional, direct agreement with Grey’s
production arm, Townhouse, to enable quicker turnaround and flexibility for social production needs. The Townhouse
agreement is for a period of two years, with two optional one-year extensions. The Townhouse contract amount (not to
exceed $10 million) is included in Grey’s contract.

The LVCVA, through R&R, also sponsors various special events and pays for media advertising of the destination and its
events, which bring people to Las Vegas. Some of these involve multi-year contracts. On June 30, 2022, these contract
commitments were $15.4 million for FY 2023 and $1 million for FY 2024 and beyond.

LAS VEGAS BOWL

In April 2021, the Board approved the Sponsorship Agreement with ESPN Productions for the 2021-2025 Las Vegas Bowls in
the total amount of $8.5 million ($6.9 million remaining, as of June 30, 2022). The Las Vegas Bowl games will take place at

53



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Allegiant Stadium between December 26 and December 30 of each year of the Sponsorship Agreement and will be broadcast
on ESPN or ABC.

NATIONAL FINALS RODEO

Through Las Vegas Events, the LVCVA has an agreement with Professional Rodeo Cowboys Association (PRCA) to provide
annual payments of $2.2 million for the National Finals Rodeo and $250,000 annually to be the exclusive national sponsor for
the National Finals of Steer Roping, if not held in Las Vegas. The contract term is 10 years, ending in FY 2024.

NASCAR SPONSORSHIP

In March 2017, the LVCVA Board approved an agreement to sponsor two annual NASCAR races at the Las Vegas Motor
Speedway through 2024, with a possible three-year extension, for a total cost of $17.5 million. The required payment from
LVCVA was $2.5 million annually, which includes other ancillary marketing sponsorship benefits. In December 2020, the
LVCVA Board approved an amendment to the Race Sponsorship Agreement adjusting the sponsorship for the fiscal years
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and reducing the annual amount to $1.75 million per year and extending the term of the
agreement through 2031. There is $17.5 million remaining on the agreement.

PROFESSIONAL BULL RIDERS

In December 2021, the Board authorized a five-year $6.4 million deal with Professional Bull Riders LLC for a new team bull-
riding championship series. The multi-event series will have its playoffs and championships at T-Mobile Arena each year,
2022-2026. The Authority’s annual sponsorship of the event varies from $1.1 to $1.45 million over the five years of
sponsorship.

SUPER BOWL

In January 2022, the Board authorized a sponsorship off Super Bowl LVIII in February 2024 with Las Vegas Super Bowl Host
Committee, LLC, in an amount not to exceed $40 million. The Super Bowl will be held at Allegiant Stadium.

WORLD ROUTE DEVELOPMENT

In April 2022, the Board authorized $4.2 million to host the 27th World Route Development Forum in October 2022. The
World Route Development Forum is an event that brings together decision makers from airlines, airports, and destinations
to define the world’s air route networks.

FORMULA ONE GRAND PRIX

In May 2022, the Board authorized a sponsorship agreement with Liberty Dice, Inc. to host an annual Las Vegas Formula One
Grand Prix race from 2023-2025 for $6.5 million per year.

INTERNATIONAL OFFICES

The LVCVA is party to contracts for international office representation, in the following locations: Canada, Mexico, Germany,
and the United Kingdom. The LVCVA has one-year agreements, ending June 30, 2023, with two optional one-year extensions;
collectively, these agreements have an aggregate value of $8.2 million, with extensions, and can be terminated, without
cause, with a 30-day notice.

TERMINATION PAYMENTS AND COMMITMENTS IN CONTRACTOR AGREEMENTS

The LVCVA has an agreement with Cox Nevada Telcom (Cox) for telecommunications services at the Las Vegas Convention
Center (LVCC) and other various buildings belonging to the LVCVA. Cox’s original agreement required Cox to invest at least
$10 million in telecommunication infrastructure improvements to the LVCVA'’s facilities over the life of the agreement, which
Cox fulfilled, and is fully amortized with no remaining liability.

Also, as part of the Cox agreement, a neutral host digital antenna system (DAS) was installed in the LVCC with proceeds from
the cellular carriers that use the DAS. Under these agreements, all operating costs of the DAS are paid by the carriers, as well
as monthly rent paid by the carriers to Cox. Cox pays a sub-license fee to the LVCVA, on a monthly basis. The DAS becomes
property of the LVCVA at the earlier of the end of the DAS agreement term (current date of November 2026 if the single 5-
year extension is not executed) or the termination of the Cox agreement. If the agreement with Cox is not extended past that
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period, the LVCVA would assume the rights to the DAS assets and be responsible for executing the administrative function of
operating and maintaining the DAS, as defined in the agreement, through the remainder of the DAS contract term. This is
considered a contingent commitment and asset, which is not recorded in the LVCVA's financial statements as it is dependent
on potential future events.

Amendments to the agreement extended the contract through September 2023 and increased Cox’s investments by an
additional $13.7 million. The entire additional investment amounts have not yet been made, but are contractually obligated
to be amortized over no more than a five-year period from when they occur. As of June 30, 2022, the maximum amount of
LVCVA payments for the transfer of these unamortized investments to LVCVA at the end of the lease, which is dependent on
investment project completion and contract termination dates, does not exceed $12.4 million.

Since January 2017, Centerplate has been operating in the LVCC under a Food and Beverage Concessions Lease as the
exclusive provider of both retail and catered food and beverage products and services. The current lease concludes on June
30, 2027. Commission rates paid to the LVCVA are based on a tiered structure of gross receipts, adjusted annually for CPI.
Normal commission rates are 15.0% - 22.5%, with a 3.0% set-aside for replacement and maintenance. From January 1, 2021
through December 31, 2022, the commission rates are 15.0% - 20.0% for gross receipts under $21.5 million (normal
commission rates apply to gross receipts exceeding $21.5 million), and Centerplate’s set-aside for replacement and
maintenance is 1.5%. The contract also amortizes a previously completed $16 million Centerplate investment, over the
remaining life of the agreement. The LVCVA’s buyout cost on June 30, 2022, if the contract were terminated early, would be
$6.3 million. The current agreement also includes $5 million in improvements for the West Hall expansion to be amortized
over a period of seven years from the service date, through December 2027. LVCVA’s buyout cost on June 30, 2022, if the
contract were terminated early, would be $4.0 million. If the contract isn’t renewed past June 30, 2027, the payout at that
time would be $300 thousand for the last 6 months of the amortization period, which approximates the estimated value of
the assets provided to the LVCVA at that time.

Since January 2008, FedEx Office and Print Services has been operating in the LVCC under a Business Center Retail Operator
License for the purpose of providing customers, patrons, and other users at the LVCC with commercial business center related
retail services. The current agreement ends on November 30, 2022 and provides for a revenue split of 29% of net revenue to
the LVCVA. There is a renewal option of one additional three-year term, requiring mutual agreement, and, if exercised,
payments by FedEx convert to a base rent of $30,150 monthly plus 29% of annual revenue over $1.8M, from December 1,
2022 through November 30, 2025.

During FY 2021, the LVCVA entered into a power purchase and storage services agreement where the provider will develop,
construct, operate, and maintain certain solar photovoltaic facilities on certain property of the LVCVA and sell electrical
energy and solar services to the LVCVA. The estimated cost with respect to the solar services provided over 25 years is $12.4
million. LVCVA has a purchase option at the end of the seventh year of the Agreement for the greater of appraised fair market
value or $4.6 million. If the LVCVA exercises the purchase option, it estimates the 25-year cost of the system will be less than
$12.4 million. As of June 30, 2022, construction had not yet commenced.

OTHER OBLIGATIONS

The LVCVA has no long-term obligation to fund other organizations: for example, Las Vegas Events. However, these other
organizations engage in long-term sponsorship commitments with the LVCVA.

During FY 2018, the LVCVA entered into a naming rights agreement related to the Las Vegas Ballpark, which opened for the
2019 baseball season, and now houses the Las Vegas minor league baseball team that previously played at Cashman Center.
Site acquisition, all improvements, and operation of the park is the sole responsibility of the baseball team. The 20-year
agreement provides the LVCVA with exclusive naming rights, dominant sponsorship signage, and other marketing assets for
an annual fee of $4 million, commencing in FY 2019.

In January 2021, the Board authorized the CEQ/President to execute an agreement with Western Management Group for the
operations and management of the Las Vegas Monorail System (Monorail) in the amount not to exceed $45,000,000, for the
period from February 7, 2021 through June 30, 2023. In April 2022, the Board also authorized the CEQ/President to execute
an agreement with TBC — The Boring Company, dba Vegas Loop, for operations and management of the Las Vegas Convention
Center Loop in the amount not to exceed $4,500,000 for the period beginning July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023.

55



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS

The LVCVA is a party to several contracts and commitments relating to construction projects and services related to the
LVCVA'’s facilities and land. On June 30, 2022, such contracts in the LVCCD Capital Fund and the Capital Projects Fund (which
includes the LVCC Loop underground people mover system and related improvements and expansion of the Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Department Substation), totaled approximately $66.7 million and $60.2 million, respectively, with an
estimated outstanding balance of approximately $21.2 million and $3.0 million, respectively. In addition, The Board has
authorized up to $432.2 million with Hunt/Penta Joint Venture for the construction of Phase Three of the LVCCD Program.
Other outstanding commitment balances in the General Fund totaled approximately $11.1 million. As of June 30, 2022, the
LVCVA Board has approved staff to host future events in the destination during FY 2023 for $458 thousand and, for FY 2023
and beyond, for $618 thousand, not previously disclosed.

LEGAL MATTERS

The LVCVA is the named defendant or responsible party in various legal actions. It is the opinion of the LVCVA’s management
and legal counsel that such legal matters will not result in any material liabilities to the LVCVA, other than disclosed below.
The LVCVA does not accrue for estimated future legal and defense costs, if any, to be incurred in connection with outstanding
or threatened litigation and other disputed matters but, rather, records such as period costs when the services are rendered.

The LVCVA is involved in administrative matters with the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection (NDEP) related to
perchloroethylene (PCE) contamination in some parking areas of the Las Vegas Convention Center that requires remediation.
The LVCVA has recorded a $2,199,500 remediation liability in the government-wide financial statements using the expected
cash flow technique for future remediation costs. The estimate of remediation costs, which is based on ongoing analysis,
may change over time due to continued investigation, actual remediation actions performed, future regulator rulings,
changes in costs of goods and services, changes in remediation technology, or changes in laws and regulations governing the
remediation effort.

The LVCVA is also subject to certain pending and threatened litigation arising in the ordinary course of operation of the LVCVA.
It is the opinion of LVCVA’s counsel that the pending or threatened litigation will not result in final judgments against the
LVCVA which would, individually or in the aggregate, materially adversely affect the LVCVA’s financial position.

As part of the FY 2021 acquisition of the Monorail, LVCVA began recording an asset retirement obligation. A liability and
deferred outflow of $15.3 million was recorded for the portions of the monorail system guideway and stations that are
required, by easements and a cooperative agreement with Clark County, to be decommissioned when the Monorail ceases
operation. This obligation calculation was completed utilizing a third-party construction specialist to estimate the current
value of the outlays expected to be incurred and then was updated for the effects of inflation. The deferred outflow will be
amortized over the estimated remaining life of the Monorail capital assets, which is 10 years. There are no legally required
funding assurance provisions or restricted assets related to this obligation.

NOTE 14. ROOM TAX REVENUE:

The LVCVA’s primary revenue source is a portion of the 10.5% - 14% room tax imposed on lodging establishments in Clark
County, Nevada. The rate of taxes can only be modified by action of the Nevada State Legislature.

The tax for transient lodging in the County is distributed as follows:

LVCVA General Fund & Las Vegas Clark County School Clark County Taxing State of

Total * LVCCD Capital Fund Stadium Authority District Transportation Entity Nevada

Resort Hotels 12% - 14% 41/2%-51/2% 0% - 7/8% 15/8% 1% 0% - 2% 33/8%
Other hotel and motels 10% - 13% 21/2% -4 1/2% 0% - 7/8% 15/8% 1% 0% - 2% 33/8%

* The individual components of room tax have distinct geographical regions, and, therefore, each property pays varying room tax rates.

The LVCCD Capital Fund’s dedicated portion was provided by a 0.5% increase to transient lodging tax, which is legislatively
restricted to support Phases Two and Three of the LVCCD project and will sunset in 2049 without additional legislative action.

As provided for by NRS 244A.645, up to 10% of the total room taxes and gaming fees received by the LVCVA may be distributed
to the County and incorporated cities, excluding revenues generated from SB1 as those revenues are wholly restricted to
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Phases Two and Three of the LVCCD project. Additionally, SB1 imposed a cap of $25.0 million on non-SB1 room tax and gaming
fees collection allocation. Any amount of the 10% exceeding the room tax and gaming fees collection allocation cap is
restricted to the LVCCD Capital Fund. The total collection allocation was $25.0 million in FY 2022, while $4.5 million was
transferred to the LVCCD Capital Fund, in compliance with SB1 requirements for the LVCCD project.

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The LVCVA issued taxable and non-taxable revenue bonds to support Phase Three of the LVCCD project. The bond sale
occurred on August 31, 2022, with a closing date of September 15, 2022. The par value of the non-taxable bonds was $136.8
million with a premium of $13.9 million. The par value of the taxable bonds was $13.2 million. The combined true interest
cost is 4.19%.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED
RATIOS

Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

Pensions

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO PERS PENSION PLAN

Pensions

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

General Fund
This fund is the primary operating fund, which accounts for the accumulation of
financial resources of the LVCVA, except for those required to be accounted for in a
separate fund.



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios'")
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and the Last Nine Fiscal Years?

2022 2021 2020

Primary Plan PEBP Primary Plan PEBP Primary Plan PEBP
Service cost $ 1,058,336 S - $ 1,319,039 S - $ 1,102,757 S -
Interest on total OPEB liability 689,151 58,437 1,019,430 129,222 988,506 136,815
Differences between expected and actual experience - - (7,408,429) (1,479,996) - -
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 261,100 32,886 8,095,690 431,417 1,758,458 169,621
Benefit payments (951,678) (115,158) (464,890) (141,776) (499,580) (157,535)
Net change in total OPEB liability 1,056,909 (23,835) 2,560,840 (1,061,133) 3,350,141 148,901
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 30,600,806 2,701,805 28,039,966 3,762,938 24,689,825 3,614,037
Total OPEB liability, end of year $ 31,657,715 $ 2,677,970 $ 30,600,806 $ 2,701,805 $ 28,039,966 $ 3,762,938
Covered-employee Payroll $ 14,563,787 N/A® $ 37,602,218 N/A®) $ 41,811,068 N/A®
Total OPEB liability, end of year as a percentage of covered payroll 217.37% N/A®) 81.38% N/AP! 67.06% N/A®

2019 2018

Primary Plan PEBP Primary Plan PEBP
Service cost $ 3,175,322 S - $ 3,310,122 S -
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,688,014 151,889 1,401,247 130,455
Differences between expected and actual experience (19,810,975) (934) (189,570) 11,185
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (4,105,043) (583,098) (5,870,369) (406,279)
Benefit payments (466,782) (171,691) (528,214) (183,295)
Net change in total OPEB liability (19,519,464) (603,834) (1,876,784) (447,934)
Total OPEB liability, beginning of year 44,209,289 4,217,871 46,086,073 4,665,805
Total OPEB liability, end of year $ 24,689,825 $ 3,614,037 $ 44,209,289 S 4,217,871
Covered-employee Payroll $ 40,956,955 N/A® $ 40,026,786 N/A®)
Total OPEB liability, end of year as a percentage of covered payroll 60.28% N/A®) 110.45% N/A®)

™ The LVCVA's OPEB is not administered through a trust.

@ Fiscal year 2022 is the fifth year of implementation of GASB 75; therefore, only five years are shown. As it becomes available, this schedule will ultimately present information for the ten
most recent fiscal years.

) pEBP is a closed plan; therefore, there are no current employees covered by the PEBP.
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2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
LVCVA proportion of net pension liability 0.54167% 0.55623% 0.56294% 0.55928% 0.56121% 0.53409% 0.44418% 0.16107%
LVCVA proportionate share of net pension liability $ 56,452,216 $ 63,740,412 $ 75,755,148 $ 74,382,943 $ 76,536,068 $ 72,828,495 $ 61,867,321 $ 14,688,717
LVCVA's covered payroll! $ 32,046,157 $ 33,468,391 $ 34,395,199 $ 36,192,769 $ 37,303,296 $ 36,762,152 $ 30,885,583 $ 12,824,930
LVCVA's proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
percentage of LVCVA's covered payroll 57% 53% 45% 49% 49% 50% 50% 87%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension
liability 76% 75% 72% 74% 75% 77% 77% 87%

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Schedule of Contributions to PERS Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and the Last Nine Fiscal Years®

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Statutorily required contribution S 8,204,187 $ 8618472 $ 9,617,946 S 10,088,792 S 10,444,920 S 10,293,401 S 9,008,626 S 3,751,275 $ 7,885,050
Contributions in relation to the statutorily-required contribution 8,204,187 8,618,472 9,617,946 10,088,792 10,444,920 10,293,401 9,008,626 3,751,275 7,885,050
Contribution deficiency S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
LVCVA's covered payroll! $ 32,046,157 $ 33,468,391 $ 34,395,199 $ 36,192,769 $ 37,303,296 $ 36,762,152 $ 30,885,583 $ 12,824,930 $ 26,540,803
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 26% 26% 28% 28% 28% 28% 29% 29% 30%

(ot administered through a trust. As required by implementation of GASB Statement No. 82, amounts were restated to reflect payroll on which contributions to the pension are based.
mOn\y eight years of historical data available since the first year of GASB Statement No. 68 implementation.

”’On\y nine years of historical data available since the first year of GASB Statement No. 68 implementation.
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues:
Room taxes and gaming fees S 204,364,300 S 285,000,000 §$ 295,400,981 S 10,400,981
Charges for services
Use of facilities 27,500,000 28,255,000 36,422,360 8,167,360
Ancillary 23,500,000 23,500,000 22,969,895 (530,105)
Other 3,450,000 3,450,000 2,236,044 (1,213,956)
Transportation services 14,500,000 16,263,600 20,130,733 3,867,133
Federal grant subsidy - 1,558,200 1,555,545 (2,655)
Interest and investment earnings 173,200 173,200 (1,309,308) (1,482,508)
Miscellaneous 290,000 290,000 338,547 48,547
Total revenues 273,777,500 358,490,000 377,744,797 19,254,797
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 17,169,300 17,169,300 15,658,529 1,510,771
Marketing:
Advertising 82,000,000 81,800,000 75,768,693 6,031,307
Marketing and sales 21,636,200 21,636,200 15,846,705 5,789,495
Special events grants 27,461,962 28,061,962 25,892,489 2,169,473
Operations:
Facility operations 42,957,000 42,501,300 37,352,645 5,148,655
Transportation services 21,500,000 21,955,700 20,601,964 1,353,736
Community support:
Other community support 20,436,430 25,000,000 25,000,000 -
Total expenditures 233,160,892 238,124,462 216,121,025 22,003,437
Excess of revenues over expenditures 40,616,608 120,365,538 161,623,772 41,258,234
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 140,500 140,500 90,061 (50,439)
Transfers out (47,014,181) (145,514,181) (146,051,476) (537,295)
Proceeds from the sale of assets 25,000 25,000 40,886 15,886
Total other financing sources (uses) (46,848,681) (145,348,681) (145,920,529) (571,848)
Net change in fund balance (6,232,073) (24,983,143) 15,703,243 40,686,386
Fund balance - beginning 68,303,959 68,303,959 68,303,959 -
Fund balance - ending S 62,071,886 S 43,320,816 S 84,007,202 S 40,686,386
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NOTE 1. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS:

On June 30, 2022, no assets were accumulated in a qualifying trust in which the assets contributed, and earnings thereon are
irrevocable, dedicated solely to pay postemployment benefits, and are legally protected from creditors.

Change of Assumptions:

The overall increase in the liability of $1,033,074, comprised of a $1,056,909 increase in the primary plan and $23,835
decrease in the PEBP plan, respectively, from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022, are primarily driven by the difference between
expected and actual experience that includes census data updates, new per capita claims experience, and the effect of the
changes in assumptions and other inputs. This included employing an allocation-by-entity method where service costs,
interest cost, and schedule of outflows and inflows are allocated proportionally to each entity as a share of the total OPEB
liability. Updates were also made to the assumed discount rate, which was 2.21% as of June 30, 2020 and 2.16% as of June
30, 2021. Changes to termination rates, marriage assumptions, and mortality rates are shown in Note 11 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements. Retirement rates, aging factors, and salary scales were the same as the prior year.

Additional information related to postemployment benefits other than pensions can be found in Note 11 to the financial
statements on pages 48 through 52 of this report.

NOTE 2: PERS PENSION PLAN:

For the year ended June 30, 2022, no significant events occurred that would have affected or changed the benefits provision,
size, or composition of those covered by the pension plan, or actuarial methods and assumptions used in the actuarial
valuation report dated June 30, 2021. Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results
of the experience study from the period of July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016.

Additional information related to pensions can be found in Note 10 to the financial statements on pages 44 through 48 of
this report.

NOTE 3. BUDGET INFORMATION:

The accompanying general fund schedule of revenues, expenditures, and change in fund balance presents the original
adopted budget, the final amended budget, and actual general fund data. The original budget was adopted on a basis
consistent with the LVCVA'’s financial accounting policies and with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States. All amendments made to the original budget were as prescribed by law and similarly consistent.

Additional budgetary information can be found in Note 3 to the financial statements on pages 32 through 33 of this report.
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INDIVIDUAL FUND INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Governmental Funds
LVCCD Capital Fund
This fund accounts for all project costs related to LVCCD Phases Two and Three of
the expansion and renovation project, as well as accounting for transfers from the
general fund and tax revenues enacted and restricted by the Nevada legislature.

LVCCD Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and principal and interest
payments for debt issued in conjunction with LVCCD Phases Two and Three.

Capital Projects Fund

This fund accounts for capital expenditures for furniture, equipment, intangibles,
and routine improvements or additions to land and buildings financed by general
government resources. It also accounts for capital grants to other governments, which
are for the express purpose of capital construction activities by the other government.

Debt Service Fund
This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and principal and interest
payments of the LVCVA’s long-term debt.

Proprietary Fund

Internal Service Fund

This fund is used to accumulate monies in reserve for future payment of other post-
employment benefits liabilities.
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
LVCCD Capital Fund
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Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Revenues:
Room taxes $ 20,857,500 $ 20,857,500 $ 30,359,686 S 9,502,186
Interest and investment earnings 122,200 122,200 (1,174,152) (1,296,352)
Miscellaneous - - 3,016,426 3,016,426
Total revenues 20,979,700 20,979,700 32,201,960 11,222,260
Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Land improvements - - 26,950 (26,950)
Buildings - - 100,961 (100,961)
Construction in progress 37,208,584 37,208,584 11,805,461 25,403,123
Noncapitalized assets - - 80,032 (80,032)
Total expenditures 37,208,584 37,208,584 12,013,404 25,195,180
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (16,228,884) (16,228,884) 20,188,556 36,417,440
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 49,600 49,600 99,575,923 99,526,323
Transfers out (38,729,053) (38,729,053) (38,729,053) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (38,679,453) (38,679,453) 60,846,870 99,526,323
Net change in fund balance (54,908,337) (54,908,337) 81,035,426 135,943,763
Fund balance - beginning 61,452,800 61,452,800 61,452,800 -
Fund balance - ending S 6,544,463 S 6,544,463 S 142,488,226 S 135,943,763
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Interest and investment earnings
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

LVCCD Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
49,600 S 49,600 S 35,735 S (13,865)
49,600 49,600 35,735 (13,865)
100,000 100,000 100,000 -
37,631,553 37,631,553 37,631,553 -
37,731,553 37,731,553 37,731,553 -
(37,581,953) (37,581,953) (37,695,818) (13,865)
38,729,053 38,729,053 38,729,053 -
(49,600) (49,600) (35,825) 13,775
38,679,453 38,679,453 38,693,228 13,775
1,097,500 1,097,500 997,410 (90)
18,917,027 18,917,027 18,917,027 -
20,014,527 S 20,014,527 $ 19,914,437 S (90)

63



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Interest and investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Capital outlay:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Transportation systems
Furniture and equipment
Construction in progress
Noncapitalized assets
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
S 231,800 $ 231,800 S (2,033,161) $ (2,264,961)
- - 1,169,356 1,169,356
231,800 231,800 (863,805) (1,095,605)
24,400,000 14,400,000 25,745 14,374,255
- - 436,589 (436,589)
- - 33,926 (33,926)
- - 745,671 (745,671)
11,271,194 11,271,194 3,086,263 8,184,931
29,400,000 39,400,000 8,742,198 30,657,802
- - 1,851,448 (1,851,448)
- - 127,399 (127,399)
- - 5,591 (5,591)
65,071,194 65,071,194 15,054,830 50,016,364
(64,839,394) (64,839,394) (15,918,635) 48,920,759
(64,839,394) (64,839,394) (15,918,635) 48,920,759
78,946,566 78,946,566 78,946,566 -
S 14,107,172 S 14,107,172 S 63,027,931 S 48,920,759
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Interest and investment earnings
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Debt issuance costs
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Refunding bonds issued
Premium on refunding bonds
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning
Fund balance - ending

Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
S 140,500 S 140,500 S 62,169 S (78,331)
140,500 140,500 62,169 (78,331)
18,110,000 18,110,000 18,110,000 -
32,073,120 32,325,720 31,997,366 328,354
- 360,312 418,162 (57,850)
50,183,120 50,796,032 50,525,528 270,504
(50,042,620) (50,655,532) (50,463,359) 192,173
47,014,181 47,014,181 46,511,378 (502,803)
(140,500) (140,500) (90,061) 50,439
- 42,575,000 38,970,000 (3,605,000)
- 2,780,000 2,779,284 (716)
- (45,956,146) (44,655,607) 1,300,539
46,873,681 46,272,535 43,514,994 (2,757,541)
(3,168,939) (4,382,997) (6,948,365) (2,565,368)
46,773,979 46,773,979 46,773,979 -
S 43,605,040 S 42,390,982 S 39,825,614 S (2,565,368)
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position - Budget and Actual
Internal Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
Non-operating revenues:
Interest and investment earnings S 11,600 S 11,600 S (146,651) (158,251)
Change in net position 11,600 11,600 (146,651) (158,251)
Net position - beginning 2,314,507 2,314,507 2,314,507 -
Net position - ending S 2,326,107 S 2,326,107 S 2,167,856 (158,251)
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Statistical Section
(unaudited)

Statistical schedules differ from financial statements because they usually cover several fiscal years and
may present non-accounting data. The statistical tables presented in this section reflect social and
economic data along with financial trends of the LVCVA. Certain tables recommended by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) are not included because property taxes are not a
source of revenue.

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the LVCVA’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the LVCVA’s most significant local
revenue source, room tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the LVCVA’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the LVCVA's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the LVCVA's financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the LVCVA’s financial report relates to services the LVCVA provides and the activities
it measures.



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands )
(unaudited)

2013 201 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Primary government
Net investment in capital assets $ 163,258 $ 170538 S 177,524 S 189,376 S 209,842 S 226,057 $ 231,567 $261669 S 297,678 S 303,145
Restricted:
Debt service 44,555 46,900 49,605 51,144 51,199 184,348 188,249 173,846 33,992 34,665
LVCCD capital project 13,716 46,026 62,866 44,797
Community support 4,538 4,310 4,112 - - -
LVCCD debt service 1,935 38,040 21,826 18,917 19,914
Other purposes - - - - 579 36 9 165 755
Capital grants to other governments 19,612 19,244 18,487 17,882 - - - - - -
Unrestricted: (238,408) (284,541) (263,118) (231,870) (204,412) (319,127) (299,990) (263,438) (168,156) (71,415)
Total primary government net position ™ ?® "¢ (10,983) § (47,859) $ (17,502) $ 265533 $ 75462 $ 143585 $ 224,853 $238864 S 183,187 $ 286310
™ Retroactive restatement of balances forimplementation of GASB No. 65and GASB No. 68 in FY 2014.
@ Restatement related to implementation of GASB No. 82 in FY 2017.
® Amounts expressed in thousands may not foot due to rounding.
LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands (2)
(unaudited)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
General Fund
Nonspendable S 33 § 50 $ 48 S 66 S 51 §$ 53 §$ 40 S 24 S 62 S 3.8
Restricted 5.8 6.7 6.9 7.0 49 4.4 4.1 0.2 0.8 -
Committed 2.9 3.1 1.0 - 12.0 10.7 - 60.9 6.2 -
Assigned 6.9 18.0 15.9 25.0 134 8.0 7.0 - 25.0 24.0
Unassigned 2.4 1.9 5.0 14.3 20.3 10.6 26.2 35.2 30.1 56.2
Total general fund 21.3 34.7 33.6 53.0 55.8 39.0 41.3 98.6 68.3 84.0
All other governmental funds
Nonspendable - 0.3 0.1 0.8 - 03 0.8 1.8 0.3 0.2
Restricted 64.2 96.3 97.5 68.3 65.1 414.8 690.8 378.0 65.8 55.6
Committed 439 421 57.3 65.2 74.4 1323 1719 167.8 128.0 191.4
Assigned 2.9 1.8 1.9 - 5.2 4.6 6.1 6.5 12.0 18.1
Total all other governmental funds 111.0 140.5 156.8 134.3 144.7 552.0 869.6 554.2 206.1 265.3
Total governmental funds $ 1323 $ 1752 $ 1904 S 1872 $ 200.6 $ 591.0 $ 9109 $ 6528 S 2744 S 3493

W This schedule uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.

@ Amounts expressed in thousands may not foot due to rounding.

67



LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands ©))
(unaudited)

Program Revenues 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Charges for Services
Marketing $ 1587 $ 2203 $ 1,348 $ 1507 $ 6302 $ 5433 $ 2350 $ 2239 $ 1,095 $ 1,575
Operations / Transportation o 46,164 58,618 51,055 59,537 61,624 60,913 58,828 50,846 8,280 82,874
Capital Grants and Contributions:
General government 4,898 4,752 4,746 4,774 4,711 4,664 4,615 4,552 1,558 1,556
Operations 756 358 86 - - - - - - -
Total governmental activities program revenues 53,405 65,931 57,235 65,817 72,637 71,010 65,793 57,637 10,933 86,005
Expenses
Governmental activities:®
General governmentm 14,032 15,016 15,075 16,704 20,895 21,535 20,376 17,296 11,488 12,703
Marketing:
Advertising 90,587 92,471 93,149 95,012 95,905 106,726 100,316 81,184 52,041 75,769
Marketing and sales 31,456 29,015 35,909 37,769 46,561 40,857 38,677 28,882 8,420 13,236
Special events/grants ¢ 8,234 8,571 8,766 11,665 12,196 12,552 15,316 15,771 9,679 25,892
Operations @)
Facility operations 58,828 65,679 60,244 62,433 60,313 59,032 60,314 61,294 43,272 69,573
Transportation services n - - - - - - - - 7,907 26,615
Community support and grants:
Capital grants to other governments 10,605 402 785 671 17,754 192 4,595 4,905 - -
Other community support 20,536 22,538 24,185 26,484 25,005 24,910 25,128 21,636 12,790 25,703
Interest and fiscal charges 32,218 32,894 31,924 33,127 34,139 37,515 61,720 74,983 64,636 63,850
Total governmental activities expenses 266,495 266,586 270,038 283,866 312,769 303,319 326,441 305,951 210,234 313,341
Net Expenses (213,090)  (200,655)  (212,803)  (218,049)  (240,132) (232,309) (260,648) (248,314) (199,301) (227,336)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Room taxes and gaming fees 205,355 225,382 241,854 264,844 296,626 313,294 318,992 238,537 141,108 333,500
Interest and investment earnings 305 624 630 1,201 1,014 3,736 21,397 22,546 2,011 (4,565)
Miscellaneous 1,005 796 677 855 1,329 2,022 1,528 1,242 506 1,524
Total general revenues 206,665 226,801 243,161 266,901 298,969 319,052 341,916 262,324 143,625 330,459
Special item - - - - (9,907) - - - - -
Total general revenues and special items 206,665 226,801 243,161 266,901 289,062 319,052 341,916 262,324 143,625 330,459
Change in net position (6,425) 26,146 30,358 48,852 48,930 86,743 81,268 14,011 (55,677) 103,123
Net position - beginning (as previously reported) 3,903 (2,522) (47,859) (17,502) 26,533 75,462 143,585 224,853 238,864 183,187
Adjustments 4 - (71,484) - (4,817) - (18,620) - - - -
Net position - beginning (as adjusted) 3,903 (74,006) (47,859) (22,319) 26,533 56,842 143,585 224,853 238,864 183,187
Net position - ending S (2522) S (47,859) $ (17,502) S 26,533 S 75,462 $143585 $224,853 $238,864 $183,187 $286,309

(1) This schedule uses the accrual basis of accounting under GASB 34.

(2) In FY 2017, the Information Technology department moved from Operations to General Government Division. In FY 2021, the Transportation Services section was established.
(3) Gains or losses on the sale of capital assets have been recorded as an expense of the Operations, Marketing, or General Government function, as appropriate.

(4) Adjustments to beginning fund balance were the result of implementation of various GASB standards.

(5) In FY 2017, Cashman Center property and land was transferred to the City of Las Vegas.

(6) Special events/grants was moved under Marketing beginning FY 2015, and prior years were adjusted for conformity.

(7) In FY 2021, the Transportation Services section was established for both expenditures and revenues

(8) Amounts expressed in thousands may not foot due to rounding.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(amounts expressed in thousands %))

(unaudited)

Revenues

Room taxes and gaming fees

Charges for services

Interest and investment earnings
Transportation “
Federal grant subsidy
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government @
Marketing:
Advertising
Marketing and sales
Special events/grants

Operations: @

(3)

Facility operations

Transportation services
Community support and grants:

Capital grants to other governments

(4)

Other community support

Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Principal retirement
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent
Debt issuance costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Proceeds from the sale of assets
Issuance of capital lease obligation
Issuance of debt
Premium on debtissuance
Discount on debtissuance
Payment to refunded debt escrow agent
Total other financing sources (uses)
Special item
Acquisition of monorail
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$ 205028 $ 224,492 $ 241,046 $ 261,614 $ 294229 $ 314284 $ 317,569 $ 258872 $ 124295 $ 325761
47,347 60,786 51,968 60,836 68,007 65,829 58,983 52,808 7,362 61,628
331 602 540 940 948 3,522 19,958 22,400 2,008 (4,419)

- - - - - - - - 2,266 20,131
4,898 4,752 4,746 4,774 4,711 4,664 4,615 4,552 1,558 1,556
1,005 796 677 855 1,329 2,022 1,528 1,242 506 4,524
259,109 291,428 298,977 329,018 369,224 390,321 402,653 339,874 137,995 409,181
13,246 14,209 14,322 16,147 19,533 20,030 19,536 16,557 11,064 15,659
90,587 92,471 93,149 95,012 95,905 106,726 100,316 81,184 52,041 75,769
30,302 28,243 34,725 36,537 45,095 39,814 38,221 28,463 8,196 15,847
8,234 8,571 8,766 11,665 12,196 12,552 15,316 15,771 9,679 25,892
36,691 44,965 39,454 41,416 39,290 39,398 38,730 40,313 14,398 37,353
- - - - - - - - 5,362 20,602
10,605 402 785 671 17,754 192 4,595 4,905 - -
20,509 22,449 24,105 26,161 25,000 25,000 25,000 23,480 11,267 25,000
36,202 29,384 193,820 37,977 26,978 25,223 366,854 585,506 184,132 26,935
21,689 22,770 24,909 27,779 27,893 27,991 27,340 25314 16,977 18,337
32,360 31,744 32,766 34,317 35,383 33,117 49,652 72,878 74,560 69,635
- - 116,800 - 70,200 - 61,500 - - -

- - 66,009 - 69,200 - - - - -

724 1,455 1,205 - 1,014 2,695 2,373 1,843 137 418
301,149 296,663 650,815 327,682 485,441 333,238 749,433 896,213 387,813 331,446
(42,040) (5,235)  (351,838) 1,336 (116,217) 57,084 (346,780)  (556,339)  (249,818) 77,735
69,848 59,354 76,622 72,131 104,716 124,297 118,543 99,660 102,382 184,906
(72,848) (62,354) (80,122) (76,631)  (115216)  (126,797)  (118,643) (72,660)  (102,382)  (184,906)
57 80 636 46 24 105 168 75 20 a1

15 335 - - 379 - - 382 - -
24,990 50,000 368,305 - 192,080 397,860 673,360 245,230 21,500 38,970
756 745 16,018 - 13,870 22,424 29,497 25,716 - 2,779

- - - - - - - (142) - -

- - (14,931) - (66,316) (84,533) (36,281) - (132,445) (44,656)
22,818 48,160 367,028 (4,454) 129,537 333,357 666,644 298,261 (110,925) (2,865)
- - - - - - - - (17,648) -
(19,222) 42,925 15,190 (3,118) 13,320 390,441 319,864  (258,078)  (378,391) 74,869
151,462 132,240 175,165 190,356 187,237 200,557 590,998 910,862 652,784 274,393
$ 132240 $ 175,165 $ 190,356 $ 187,237 $ 200,557 590,998 $ 910,862 $ 652,784 $ 274,393 $ 349,262
18.2% 18.5% 8.9% 19.1% 13.1% 185% 10.3% 11.0% 23.7% 27.7%

(1) This schedule uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.
(2) In FY 2017, the Information Technology department moved from Operations to General Government division.
(3) Special events/grants was moved under Marketing beginning FY 2015, and prior years were adjusted for conformity.

(4) In FY 2021, the Transportation Services section was established for both expenditures and revenues

(5) Amounts expressed in thousands may not foot due to rounding.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
GENERAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURES
FOR ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

The schedule below details expenditures recorded in the General, Debt Service, LVCCD Debt Service, LVCCD Capital, and
Capital Projects funds, except nonrecurring expenditures. Nonrecurring expenditures include capital grants to other
governments, non-capitalized assets, debt issuance costs, payment to refunded debt escrow agent, principal retirements,
and other. Additionally, expenditures from any internal service funds are excluded.

\F(l:::al Total Expenditures General Government @ Marketing Ad\ertising
2013 286,504,452 13,246,144 5% 30,301,848 10% 90,587,216 32%

2014 293,544,284 14,208,721 5% 28,242,821 9% 92,470,992 31%
2015 464,710,847 14,322,106 3% 34,725,317 8% 93,148,972 20%
2016 324,410,023 16,146,746 5% 36,537,160 11% 95,012,365 29%
2017 326,226,408 19,532,835 6% 45,094,547 14% 95,905,154 29%
2018 328,977,140 20,029,693 6% 39,813,998 12% 106,726,431 32%
2019 678,861,051 19,536,345 3% 38,220,616 6% 100,315,540 15%
2020 883,926,667 16,556,545 2% 28,462,981 3% 81,183,541 9%
2021 385,898,950 11,064,160 3% 8,195,538 2% 52,041,490 13%
2022 310,759,299 15,658,529 5% 15,846,705 5% 75,768,693 25%

Fiscal |Operations & Transportation Special Events Other Communit . .

Year i Senvices <2)(‘5)> i Grants Grants ¥ Y Capital Outlay Debt Senice
2013 36,690,902 13% 8,233,771 3% 20,509,181 7% 32,886,283 11% 54,049,107 19%
2014 44,964,997 15% 8,570,890 3% 22,449,149 8% 28,122,603 10% 54,514,110 19%
2015 39,453,977 9% 8,765,599 2% 24,104,565 5% 192,515,195 41% 57,675,117 12%
2016 41,415,858 13% 11,665,284 4% 26,161,392 8% 35,375,192 11% 62,096,026 19%
2017 39,289,787 12% 12,196,297 4% 25,000,000 8% 25,932,125 8% 63,275,663 19%
2018 39,898,070 12% 12,551,768 4% 25,000,000 8% 23,848,709 7% 61,108,471 19%
2019 38,729,965 6% 15,315,686 2% 25,000,000 4% 364,750,899 54% 76,992,000 10%
2020 40,313,033 5% 15,770,524 2% 23,480,411 3% 579,968,035 66% 98,191,597 11%
2021 19,759,533 5% 9,679,335 3% 11,266,867 3% 182,354,942 47% 91,537,086 24%
2022 57,954,609 19% 25,892,489 8% 25,000,000 8% 25,003,764 8% 69,634,510 22%

(1) This schedule uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.

(2) In FY 2017, the Information Technology department moved from Operations to General Government division. In FY 2021, Transportation
Senices section was added.

(3) Includes debt senice from capital project fund, debt senice fund, and LVCCD debt senvice fund.

(4) In FY 2013, other miscellaneous expense was included in Other Community Grants, in FY 2014 it was included in Operations, and,
beginning in FY 2015, it is included in General Government.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE ¥

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

The schedule below includes revenues recorded in the General, LVCCD Capital, LVCCD Debt Service, Capital Projects, and
Debt Service funds, with the exception of nonrecurring items. Nonrecurring revenues include miscellaneous revenues,

revenues from any internal service fund, and federal grant subsidies.

Unrestricted Restricted .
. @ Charges for Services & .
Fiscal Total Revenues Total Room Tax Room Tax Room Tax . A Gaming Fees Interest
Transportation Services
Year SB1
2013 253,206,343 203,196,429 80%| $203,196,429 | $ - S 47,846,895 19%|S$ 1,831,589 <1% 331,430 <1%
2014 285,879,682 222,781,385 78%| 222,781,385 - 60,786,406 21% 1,710,108 <1% 601,783 <1%
2015 293,554,369 239,318,802 82%| 239,318,802 - 51,968,374 18% 1,726,843 <1% 540,350 <1%
2016 323,389,672 259,967,636 80%| 259,967,636 - 60,835,567 19% 1,646,281 <1% 940,188 <1%
2017 363,184,487 292,635,690 81%| 281,389,017 | 11,246,673 68,007,099 19% 1,593,600 <1% 948,098 <1%
2018 383,635,210 312,702,599 82%| 283,540,300 | 29,162,299 65,829,400 17% 1,581,702 <1% 3,521,509 <1%
2019 396,510,218 315,948,898 80%| 286,428,607 | 29,520,291 58,983,002 15% 1,620,485 <1% 19,957,833 5%
2020 334,079,685 257,462,003 77%| 233,394,445 | 24,067,558 52,807,527 16% 1,409,666 <1% 22,400,489 7%
2021 135,932,006 122,867,541 90%| 111,240,941 | 11,626,600 9,628,312 7% 1,427,732 <1% 2,008,421 1%
2022 403,100,982 324,383,975 80%| 294,024,289 | 30,359,686 81,759,032 20% 1,376,692 <1% (4,418,717) -1%
4
Total Governmental Revenues
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(1) This schedule uses the modified accrual basis of accounting.

(2) This includes both Restricted and Unrestricted room tax.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)
. Unamortized . . Amount of
Fiscal General . Capital Lease Total Primary
o Revenue Bonds Premiums & L Debt per
Year Obligation Bonds . Obligations Government T
Discounts Visitor
2013 S 364,375,000 $ 232,000,000 $ 8,610,312 S 14,287 604,999,599 § 15.25
2014 405,445,000 218,280,000 7,636,790 228,907 631,590,697 15.36
2015 563,160,000 209,785,000 17,629,698 120,137 790,694,835 18.69
2016 552,365,000 192,915,000 14,362,280 5,698 759,647,978 17.69
2017 527,450,000 180,235,000 24,594,782 312,299 732,592,081 17.35
2018 828,245,000 172,710,000 43,863,396 185,998 1,045,004,394 24.81
2019 765,965,000 784,570,000 67,153,932 56,041 1,617,744,973 38.04
2020 940,840,000 829,800,000 88,006,941 249,442 1,858,896,383 97.68
2021 795,370,000 847,470,000 82,361,092 127,399 1,725,328,491 53.53
2022 783,040,000 836,330,000 78,246,735 812,646 1,698,429,381 n/a

(1) These ratios are calculated using the total number of visitors to Las Vegas on a calendar year basis.

(2) Information was not available as of the report issuance date.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
BOND COVERAGE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Nine of the LVCVA's sixteen outstanding bonds are general obligation bonds of Clark County, acting by and through the LVCVA.
They are primarily secured by ad valorem taxes and are additionally secured by net pledged revenues of the LVCVA,
represented basically by room taxes. The LVCVA has never resorted to the use of ad valorem taxes for debt service, using
only net pledged revenues derived from operations. In fact, as of June 30, 2022, no ad valorem property tax revenues are
allocated to the LVCVA for any purpose. No change in this practice is contemplated. There is one medium term bond, and the
six remaining bonds are LVCVA revenue bonds.

Although the LVCVA's operations are not considered to be a business-type activity, its bond issues and related debt service
have characteristics similar to traditional revenue bonds, making this schedule relevant.

Gross revenues include interest income and miscellaneous fees and charges in the General, Debt Service, and LVCCD Debt
Service funds. Revenues from the Capital Projects and Internal Service funds have been excluded since these are not a
constant source of income. Revenues from LVCCD Capital Fund are excluded from Gross Revenue, but are included in
Expansion Tax Revenue, as those resources are restricted for Phases Two and Three of the LVCCD project and can only be
used to repay principal and interest on LVCCD bonds and are only included in the Debt Coverage with Expansion Tax ratio.
Maintenance expenditures are comprised of all expenditures except certain marketing, advertising, bond issuance costs,
capital improvement, and debt service. Principal and interest contain expenditures for debt service and LVCCD debt service.

FISCAL GROSS MAINTENANCE AVAILABLE FOR PRINCIPAL EXPANSION TAX SERVICE DEBT COVERAGE w/
YEAR REVENUES EXPENDITURES DEBT SERVICE AND INTEREST REVENUE COVERAGE EXPANSION TAX
2013 $ 253,121,291 S 74,631,057 $ 178,490,234 $ 53,951,716 3 R 33 33
2014 285,749,837 77,050,163 208,699,674 55,149,034 - 38 3.8
2015 293,340,228 78,998,994 214,341,234 57,554,480 - 37 3.7
2016 322,769,973 85,126,980 237,642,993 61,252,680 - 3.9 3.9
2017 351,597,011 88,906,226 262,690,785 62,892,859 14,625,224 42 4.4
2018 351,695,085 89,722,271 261,972,814 60,726,872 30,858,424 43 4.8
2019 348,678,491 88,534,195 260,144,296 66,201,008 47,923,879 3.9 4.7
2020 291,152,237 78,317,538 212,834,699 66,102,939 38,286,185 3.2 38
2021 120,392,051 36,874,492 83,517,559 71,907,150 12,937,981 1.2 13
2022 353,504,800 87,609,057 265,895,743 83,383,623 33,711,271 3.2 36
e a\

Revenues Available and Debt Service
Millions
300
|
- ————————————————————_ N —————————————
|
200 T — — —xxuu A — — — — — — — — —
2150 -4 — — — — —
100 Net Revenues Available
50
Debt Service
0
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
& 4

Dincludes principal and interest payments on senior lien bonds. Excludes interest payments due on the Subordinate Revenue Bonds of $371,334,$722,942, $299,970, $242,893, and
$402,899in FY 2015, FY2016, FY 2017, FY2018, and FY 2019, respectively.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

APPROXIMATE TOTAL LVCVA DEBT LEGAL LEGAL DEBT
FISCAL ASSESSED BONDED APPLICABLE TO DEBT MARGIN TO THE
YEAR VALUATION™ DEBT LIMIT @ DEBT LIMIT © MARGIN BONDED DEBT LIMIT
2013 $  53,267,069,961 S 2,663,353,498 S 364,375,000 $ 2,298,978,498 86%
2014 54,715,695,579 2,735,784,779 405,445,000 2,330,339,779 85%
2015 62,901,949,671 3,145,097,484 563,160,000 2,581,937,484 82%
2016 70,522,285,405 3,526,114,270 552,365,000 2,973,749,270 84%
2017 77,201,273,046 3,860,063,652 527,450,000 3,332,613,652 86%
2018 82,657,420,456 4,132,871,023 828,245,000 3,304,626,023 80%
2019 88,652,518,662 4,432,625,933 765,965,000 3,666,660,933 83%
2020 97,788,043,990 4,889,402,200 940,840,000 3,948,562,200 81%
2021 104,932,420,502 5,246,621,025 795,370,000 4,451,251,025 85%
2022 109,558,221,371 5,477,911,069 783,040,000 4,694,871,069 86%

(W This is the net total assessed value for the secured and estimated unsecured property for Clark County, Nevada
(the County). It includes the assessed valuation of the redevelopment agencies. These values are included for
purposes of calculating the debt limit but are not subject to County taxation for the retirement of general
obligation bonded indebtedness. This valuation is used to determine the LVCVA’s debt margin since our debt is
issued in the name of the County as described below.

(2) State statute allows debt issued by the LVCVA to be issued in the name of the County. The LVCVA’s Board of
Directors is empowered to issue general obligation bonds, which are secured by the full faith and credit of the
County and are additionally secured by a pledge of revenues derived by the LVCVA. NRS 244A.653 states that the
County may not become indebted in excess of 5% of the total last assessed valuation of taxable County property
for the issuance of general obligation bonds designated for County recreational purposes. This requirement applies
to the LVCVA.

NRS 244A.059 limits the aggregate principal amount of the County’s general obligation debt to 10% of the County’s
total reported assessed valuation.

3)The LVCVA’s outstanding general obligation indebtedness includes general obligation bonds and medium-term
obligations, as applicable.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT — CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
JUNE 30, 2022

(unaudited)
ESTIMATED ESTIMATED SHARE
OUTSTANDING
DEBT PERCENTAGE OF OVER-LAPPING
APPLICABLE DEBT
Direct Debt:
Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority ™ $ 1,698,429,381 100% $  1,698,429,381
Overlapping Debt:
Clark County © 5,392,914,660 100% 5,392,914,660

Total $ 7,091,344,041

(1) Advalorem taxes have never been used to repay these debts.

(2) The LVCVA's gross debt includes general obligation bonds, issued by the County on behalf of the LVCVA, revenue bonds, unamortized
premiums and discounts on bonds, and capital lease obligations.

(3) Source: Clark County Comptroller's Office.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS — CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JUNE 30, 2022
(unaudited)

Even though Clark County combines the exciting gaming and entertainment mecca of Las Vegas alongside rural living, it is not
much different from other counties of its size. There are parks, museums, libraries, and religious centers.

Clark County is the 14t largest county in the United States and provides
extensive regional services to more than 2 million citizens. The population - Meiguite
is basically unchanged in FY 2021 compared to FY 2020. Moapa n“"‘""&
Clend ale
The cities of Las Vegas, North Las Vegas, and Henderson total aggregate Ind fan Sp rings
population is 1,271,254, which makes up 55% of the total Clark County e Sy
population of 2,320,551. Labor force stands at 1,122,300, a slight decline
. th L as Vegas
compared to FY 2021. The unemployment rate has improved from 9.6% at ML M“M :
June 30, 2021 to 5.6% at June 30, 2022. s {
4
Entity Incorporation 2021. S“C:Il:laeze Sardy Valley i~ ?&Y
Date Population ]
(approx.)
Unincorporated Clark County 1909 1,011,127 7,441
Las Vegas 1911 664,960 134 Searchligh
North Las Vegas 1946 275,733 100
Henderson 1953 330,561 105
Boulder City 1958 15,189 208 e
Mesquite 1984 22,981 32
Source: http://gisgate.co.clark.nv.us/gismo/gismo.htm
Further statistics that reflect the local economy are shown below:
AS OF POPULATION LABOR UNEMPLOYMENT AS OF PER CAPITA | MEDIAN MEDIAN CCSD SCHOOL
JUNE 30 ) FORCE RATE DEC 31 INCOME AGE HOUSEHOLD | ENROLLMENT
(B) (B) (C) (D) INCOME (D) (D)
2012 1,988,195 1,000,478 11.40% 2011 S 38,740 345 S 54,255 308,373
2013 2,031,723 1,006,971 10.00% 2012 39,840 36.2 50,962 311,238
2014 2,069,450 1,013,962 8.10% 2013 39,565 36.4 50,454 314,643
2015 2,118,353 1,034,657 7.00% 2014 41,637 36.8 50,274 318,040
2016 2,166,181 1,044,827 6.10% 2015 44314 37.2 52,865 319,713
2017 2,193,818 1,067,289 5.60% 2016 45,232 375 54,307 320,559
2018 2,251,175 1,095,479 5.00% 2017 47,279 37.7 55,034 321,648
2019 2,293,391 1,123,100 4.80% 2018 49,424 379 57,946 319,917
2020 2,320,107 1,088,500 18.00% 2019 51,419 38.1 61,835 318,233
2021 2,320,551 1,135,700 9.60% 2020 53,720 383 61,943 305,109
2022 n/a 1,122,300 5.70% 2021 n/a 38.5 67,396 304,782
Sources:

(A) Nevada Demographer - 2022 information is not available from NV Taxation Dept./ State Demographer at the time of printing.

(B) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.

(C) U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis SAINC4 NV. New statistics for 2020; revised stats for 2012-2018 updated on September 23, 2021.
(D) Median age calculation includes entire population. All other statistics as of December 31 are from the Las Vegas Perspective.

n/a - Not available attime of printing

76




ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUE, CONSTRUCTION, AND DEPOSITS — CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

LAST TEN YEARS
(unaudited)

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (IN THOUSANDS)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

REAL PROPERTY PERSONAL PROPERTY ToTaL®
NET ESTIMATED NET ESTIMATED NET ESTIMATED

FISCAL ASSESSED ACTUAL ASSESSED ACTUAL ASSESSED ACTUAL

YEAR VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE

2013 $ 48,963,146 S 139894703 | |$ 4303924 $ 12,296,926 | | $ 53,267,070  $ 152,191,629
2014 49,809,243 143,312,124 4,906,452 14,018,435 54,715,695 157,330,559
2015 57,491,891 164,262,546 5,410,058 15,457,310 62,901,949 179,719,856
2016 65,063,984 185,897,097 5,458,301 15,595,147 70,522,285 201,492,244
2017 70,542,810 201,550,884 6,658,464 19,024,181 77,201,274 220,575,065
2018 75,393,978 215,411,367 7,263,442 20,752,692 82,657,420 236,164,059
2019 81,419,209 232,626,313 7,233,309 20,666,598 88,652,519 253,292,911
2020 89,852,896 256,722,561 7,935,148 22,671,850 97,788,044 279,394,411
2021 96,977,318 277,078,052 7,955,102 22,728,863 104,932,421 299,806,916
2022 101,114,085 288,897,384 8,444,137 24,126,105 109,558,221 313,023,490

Source: Real & Personal Property - Clark County Assessor

W Totals may not foot due to rounding.

The total net assessed value for FY 2022 represented 35% of the total estimated actual value. Residential Construction
includes only single family and multi-family units, not additions, upgrades, guest homes, or mobile homes.

NEW CONSTRUCTION (IN THOUSANDS) !

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
HOTEL/MOTEL COMMERCIAL/PUBLIC RESIDENTAL
CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION
CALENDAR NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER TOTALNEW
YEAR OF PERMITS VALUE OF PERMITS VALUE OF PERMITS VALUE CONSTRUCTION @
2012 3 S 98,830 134 S 409,084 6,225 S 882,433 S 1,390,347
2013 - - 225 457,887 7,334 1,031,419 1,489,306
2014 - - 951 773,014 7,330 936,763 1,709,777
2015 - - 930 916,186 8,250 1,060,250 1,976,436
2016 5 31,305 296 598,732 9,067 1,482,868 2,112,905
2017 7 125,076 345 644,425 10,024 1,548,930 2,318,431
2018 9 434,139 942 2,755,163 10,847 1,874,903 5,064,205
2019 6 37,602 420 1,696,253 10,356 2,031,481 3,765,336
2020 2 8,120 337 1,702,809 11,846 2,198,141 3,909,070
2021 4 26,739 398 1,117,150 14,640 3,161,358 4,305,247

Source: New Construction - Las Vegas Perspective

1 . . . . . .
“ New construction information is only available on a calendar year basis.

@ Totals may not foot due to rounding.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
VISITOR ANALYSIS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
(unaudited)

In its role of promoting Las Vegas as a travel destination, the LVCVA contributes to the growth of the entire local economy.
The Las Vegas economy is heavily dependent on the tourism industry which collapsed in the early months of the COVID-19
pandemic in 2020. 2021 was a year of recovery for our tourism industry, total visitators to Las Vegas rebounded to 32.2
million, a 69.4% increase from 2020 but 24.2% below 2019. Overall visitor counts were impacted by convention activity with
lower attendance levels and the absence of international guests, whose travel was restricted for most of the year. Like total
visitors, convention delegates climbed in 2021 to 2.2 million, despite the pandemic still having an impact on large group
gatherings. 2021 was just a third of the record 6.6 million convention attendees in 2019.

CALENDAR CONVENTION % OF TOTAL TOURISTS % OF TOTAL TOTAL VISITORS CHANGE
YEAR DELEGATES VISITORS VISITORS
2012 4,944,014 12.4% 34,783,008 87.6% 39,727,022 2.1%
2013 5,107,416 12.9% 34,560,805 87.1% 39,668,221 -0.1%
2014 5,194,580 12.6% 35,931,932 87.4% 41,126,512 3.7%
2015 5,891,151 13.9% 36,421,065 86.1% 42,312,216 2.9%
2016 6,310,616 14.7% 36,625,484 85.3% 42,936,100 1.5%
2017 6,646,200 15.7% 35,568,000 84.3% 42,214,200 -1.7%
2018 6,501,800 15.4% 35,615,000 84.6% 42,116,800 -0.2%
2019 6,649,100 15.6% 35,874,600 84.4% 42,523,700 1.0%
2020 1,727,200 9.1% 17,303,900 90.9% 19,031,100 -55.2%
2021 2,206,400 6.8% 30,024,200 93.2% 32,230,600 69.4%

Source: LVCVA - Research Center

Las Vegas tourism industry are driven by visitor spending on rooms, dining, shopping, local transportation, and other activities
and amenities during their stays. Indicators of the economic impact include total gaming revenues in Clark County and room
taxes collected on behalf of the LVCVA. In 2021, Clark County gaming revenues achieved a record year at $11.5 billion, a
75.1% increase over 2020 and a 10.6% growth compared to 2019.

GAMING ROOM TAX
3) GROSS LVCVA )
CALENDAR YEAR |  REVENUES CHANGE | | FISCALYEAR w | CHANGE || coLecTeD® | CHANGE
ROOM TAXES
(In Thousands) (sans LVCVA)
2012 S 9,399,845 1.9% 2013 S 203,196,429 1.8% $ 310,735,483 1.9%
2013 9,674,404 | 2.9% 2014 222,781,385 | 9.6% 341,216,176 | 9.8%
2014 9,553,864 -1.2% 2015 239,318,802 7.4% 366,546,705 7.4%
2015 9,617,671 0.7% 2016 259,967,636 8.6% 398,294,720 8.7%
2016 9,713,930 1.0% 2017 292,635,690 12.6% 445,138,728 11.8%
2017 9,978,503 2.7% 2018 312,702,599 6.9% 490,170,969 10.1%
2018 10,250,555 2.7% 2019 315,948,898 1.0% 532,817,513 8.7%
2019 10,355,663 1.0% 2020 257,462,003 -18.5% 399,905,136 -24.9%
2020 6,540,595 -36.8% 2021 122,867,541 -52.3% 211,788,136 -47.0%
2021 11,452,004 75.1% 2022 324,383,975 164.0% n/a n/a

Source: LVCVA-Research Center

@ Prepared on modified accrual basis. This represents only the LVCVA portion of the county-wide room tax revenues.

@ From Nevada Department of Taxation's Transient Lodging Report.

& Gaming Revenue for 2021 is from LVCVAResearch website as of 10/11/2022.

n/a -Not available at time of printing.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
USE OF FACILITIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION CENTER BUILDING UTILIZATION

PUBLIC FACILITIES
SPECIAL  INVITED TOTAL USAGE

FY CONVENTIONS ~ EVENTS  EVENTS  MEETINGS  ACTIVITIES REVENUE
2013 47 9 7 1 64 $36,854,055
2014 47 12 1 3 63 47,067,894
2015 50 11 6 3 70 40,605,461
2016 51 9 10 1 71 46,954,668
2017 50 12 7 4 73 50,282,592
2018 54 11 12 2 79 49,669,504
2019 56 13 19 5 93 47,217,503
2020 32 6 20 5 63 41,823,288
2021 6 2 2 2 12 4,692,657
2022 61 13 7 90 52,994,393

CASHMAN CENTER BUILDING UTILIZATION
PUBLIC FACILITIES
SPECIAL  INVITED TOTAL USAGE

FY CONVENTIONS  EVENTS  EVENTS  MEETINGS  ACTIVITIES REVENUE
2013 2 3 149 35 189 $ 1,760,894
2014 1 5 164 35 205 1,708,593
2015 1 3 152 47 203 1,815,341
2016 1 8 165 62 236 1,997,769
2017 1 11 143 49 204 1,844,901
2018 - 3 128 29 160 1,270,436
20199 - - 44 - 44 346,109

Source: LVCVA - Research Center

@ May 2019, the LVCVA's operating agreement with the City of Las Vegas related to Cashman Center ended.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
SUMMARY OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

@) @)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Executive 14 16 16 16 17 13 13 9 9 10
Finance ™ 35 36 37 39 61 64 64 40 37 43
Human Resources 8 8 8 10 11 11 11 6 7 4
Public Affairs 20 20 20 18 18 18 18 7 7 8

77 80 81 83 107 106 106 62 I 60 65
MARKETING
Advertising® 1 - - - - - -- - - --
Convention Center Sales 13 - - -- - - -- - - --
Convention Sales 24 - - -- - - -- - - --
sales - 38 33 35 37 37 38 18 15 15
Convention Services 14 - 15 15 15 15 14 - - -
Destination Services 3 - -- - - - - - -- -
Marketing Systems / Digital Marketing 9 7 7 7 7 7 7 4 3 4
Diversity Marketing 1 -- -- - - -- - - -- -
Global sales / Intl PR 8 11 9 9 16 16 14 11 6 9
Leisure Sales 11 10 10 11 10 10 10 8 6 6
Registration @6 6 - 4 4 4 4 4 - -- -
Research Center 3 6 7 7 7 7 7 4 4 5
Sports Marketing 2 2 1 1
Industry Relations /Event Design 7 4 7 8 8 8 8 4 2 2
Visitor Information 23 - 17 17 17 17 17 - - -
Brand Strategy - 5 11 12 7 11 11 12 9 13
Customer Experience © . = 4 4 5 5 5 - - -

125 83 125 130 134 138 138 64 I 48 57
OPERATIONS
Client Services /Facility Services 112 112 112 112 112 108 108 88 87 91
Customer Experience / Guest Experience ) 2 4 - -- - - -- - - 3
Convention Services © -- 15 - -- - - -- 8 8 9
Registration ©® - 5 - - - - - 3 3 3
Visitor Information ®® - 19 - - - - - 2 2 -
Engineering / Maintenance 100 100 92 94 96 92 92 54 51 69
Engineering Projects 5 4 4 3 2 4 4 5 5 4
Information Technology @ 14 13 21 21 - - -- - - -
Fire Prevention 17 5 5 5 5 5 5 3 2 5
Customer Safety 36 47 47 62 64 64 64 52 50 68
Traffic 17 23 28 19 21 21 21 17 16 2
Transportation - - - - - -- - - 1 2

303 347 309 316 300 294 294 232 225 256
Unfilled / Pooled Positions - - -- - - -- - 54 79 34
TOTAL LVCVA 505 510 515 529 541 538 538 358 333 378

mln FY 2017, Information Technology was moved into the Finance department under General Government division.

@0 Fy 2013, Registration and Housing was renamed Registration.

®n Fy 2014, Brand Strategy was created within Marketing, and the Advertising personnel function was moved into the department.

“nFy 2014, Convention Center Sales and Convention Sales were merged into Sales.

®nFy 2014, Convention Services, Registration, and Visitor Information were moved to Operations but moved back to Marketing in FY 2015. They were moved back to Operatio

© I Fy 2015, Customer Experience was moved to the Marketing Division. In FY 2020, it was moved back to Operations.

o Methodology changed in FY 2020 forward, using a pooled list of authorized but unfilled positiions not assigned to any particlar department. Totals by departmentincludec
and furloughed employees for FY 2020 and FY 2021.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

ACTIVITY MEASURES ©)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

Human Resources

#ofactive employees

#of new full-time employees processed
Public Affairs®’

Media inquiries received

Press releases distributed

Video and photo placements
Public Relations - International / MICE @)

Media inquiries received

Press releases distributed

Domestic media placements

Impressions from domestic media placements

Finance
Payroll checks/deposit advises issued

1
#of Invoices associated w/AP disbursements {

Purchasing and Contracts

Contracts administered

Purchase orders issued
Materials

Packages shipped

Copies produced
Information Technology ®

Computer training hours

Call resolution time (average hours)

Total help desk calls fielded

Network devices supported

Computers supported at year-end
Research Center

Statistical Reports and Publications produced
Digital Marketing

Web site visits -combined LVCVAsites

Web site referrals - combined LVCVAsites !
Marketing‘s)

Total leads distributed

Converted leads

In-person out of market sales calls

Travel industry events attended
Registration Services e

Meetings and conventions supported
Call Center ™

Total calls managed
Visitor Information '

Total visitor volume
Client Services

Show support (man-hours)

Set/strike meeting rooms/halls (man-hours)
Facilities

Leased net square foot serviced (LVCC)

Building attendees supported (LVCC)
Security

Special events hours worked s}

Percentage of lostitems returned to owner®
Patients treated in First Aid !

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
485 500 505 510 530 517 473 358 333 348

22 48 47 60 55 21 22 7 11 50
1,091 642 760 704 797 880 n/a n/a n/a n/a
98 37 28 33 40 23 n/a n/a n/a n/a
5,484 7,920 7,170 6,646 11,590 11,095 n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a 249 187 n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a 15 9 n/a n/a n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 2,061 3,843 n/a n/a
n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 4,558 6,648 n/a n/a
20,268 21,671 21,222 21,197 20,998 20,912 19,692 15,018 3,748 11,467
19,414 20,705 19,319 20,400 19,359 18,850 17,724 13,853 4,513 7,924
439 419 363 363 269 265 211 208 69 196
783 790 783 916 870 826 670 430 305 401
50,538 43,449 37,572 35,208 30,117 28,052 23,621 12,684 4,947 435
0.6M 0.8M 0.8M 0.7M 0.7M 0.5M 0.5M 0.1M N/A 37K
224 132 109 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
6.7 6.8 7.1 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 27 26

n/a n/a 3,956 4,827 5,068 4,465 4,932 1,760 1,519 3,682
n/a n/a 85 95 101 615 618 976 3,164 3,351
n/a n/a 450 469 451 519 509 104 255 291

31 33 31 33 31 32 29 n/a n/a n/a
14.1M 18.5M 20.1M 17.3M 13.6M 9.1M 10.4M 8.7M n/a n/a
2.5M 2.4M 2.0M 1.4M 1.2M 744,000 2.4M 2.1M n/a n/a
4,067 3,636 3,977 4,625 4,625 4,142 4,697 3,430 1,634 2,634
1,928 1,411 1,421 1,499 1,506 1,392 1,752 1,438 348 818
2,874 2,906 2,649 2,477 2,920 2,594 n/a n/a n/a n/a
885 876 866 851 882 849 n/a n/a n/a n/a
256 284 265 252 263 249 183 n/a n/a n/a
85,922 82,251 79,552 76,985 68,569 59,342 49,752 n/a n/a n/a
198,336 185,965 164,182 143,002 136,017 118,411 78,088 n/a n/a n/a
10,877 15,777 14,376 14,220 13,902 13,120 14,465 10,620 1,356 11,716
18,617 19,383 21,138 22,237 22,012 26,457 27,443 18,084 3,164 25,940
13,877,643 17,390,712 14,440,519 16,933,777 18,880,449 19,314,340 16,799,911 12,230,475 1,231,993 14,591,070
1,486,545 1,621,450 1,491,098 1,613,859 1,769,353 1,672,534 1,690,389 1,329,087 94,664 1,215,984
334 447 261 1,588 1,048 1,418 1,142 n/a n/a n/a
48% 49% 49% 50% 49% 52% 61% 67% 54% 67%
2,216 2,378 1,848 1,577 1,850 1,796 1,846 585 112 1,853

(1) In FY 2013, Accounts Payable changed from the total of disbursements to the total number of invoices associated with the disbursements.
(2) In FY 2015, Information Technology revised the methodology for activity measures.
(3)In FY2018, Public Relations - Leisure is now rolled into PA, and PR Business is included in what is now known as Public Relations - International / MICE.
(4)In FY 2019, Digital Marketing transitioned web analytics platforms from Adobe Analytics to Google Analytics. Data prior to FY 2019 is not comparable due to a change in measurement methodology.

(5) N/A as these measures are no longer tracked.
(6) FY 2020 data through October 2019.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
CAPITAL ASSETS BY FUNCTION (@
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)
Fiscal Year General Marketing Operations Total
Government
2013 67,572 29,558 474,855,922 474,953,052
2014 76,624 569,329 485,560,723 486,206,676
2015 58,060 488,114 660,648,229 661,194,403
2016 27,523 449,187 678,601,011 679,077,721
2017 @ 1,427,363 652,766 675,285,497 677,365,626
2018 1,099,975 487,752 682,485,449 684,073,176
2019 870,531 322,421 1,030,481,328 1,031,674,280
2020 917,031 220,831 1,594,724,159 1,595,862,021
2021 417,396 140,723 1,766,181,126 1,766,739,245
2022 182,040 873,122 1,747,884,564 1,748,939,726

(1) Totals are net of accumulated depreciation and amortization.

(2)In FY2017, the Information Technology department moved from Operations to General Government division.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
CLARK COUNTY’S TEN LARGEST EMPLOYERS
MOST CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS PRIOR

(unaudited)
Industry ) Employees Percentage of County Employment
Leisure and Hospitality 274,800 26.03%
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 208,100 19.71%
Professional and Business Services 157,800 14.94%
Education and Health Services 113,100 10.71%
Government 99,800 9.45%
Construction 74,800 7.08%
Financial Activities 57,800 5.47%
Other Services 29,100 2.76%
Manufacturing 28,700 2.72%
Information 11,500 1.09%
Mining and Logging 400 0.04%
1,055,900 100.00%
|Clark County Employment as of June 30, 2022 |
|Industry M Employees Percentage of County Employmentl
Leisure and Hospitality 271,200 31.87%
Trade, Transportation and Utilities 155,400 18.26%
Professional and Business Services 111,600 13.11%
Government 92,700 10.89%
Education and Health Services 79,000 9.28%
Financial Activities 43,500 5.11%
Construction 40,700 4.78%
Other Services 24,900 2.93%
Manufacturing 20,900 2.46%
Information 10,800 1.27%
Mining and Logging 300 0.04%
851,000 100.00%

Clark County Employment as of June 30, 2013

= Industry statistics from United States Bureau of Labor Statistics for the metropolitan statistical area of Las Vegas-Henderson-
Paradise, Nevada. In the past, the Nevada Department of Employment, Training, and Rehabilitation (DETR) compiled a list of
the top employers in Clark County. In fiscal year 2019, DETR stopped providing the information, and the top employers listis
not available from another reliable source. Therefore, the information above is intended to provide the reader with alternate

data to consider customer concentration risk.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
PRINCIPAL ROOM TAXPAYERS

JUNE 30, 2022
(unaudited)

The primary source of revenue for the LVCVA is from room taxes imposed on hotels and motels in Clark County. The hotels
listed below represent the ten largest hotel properties in Clark County and generate the greatest volume of room taxes for
the LVCVA.

Approximate

Rooms at % of

Dec 31,2021 total rooms !

MGM Grand 4,997 3.1%
Luxor 4,400 2.7%
Venetian 4,029 2.5%
Aria 4,002 2.5%
Excalibur 3,981 2.5%
Bellagio 3,933 2.4%
Caesars Palace 3,794 2.4%
Circus Circus 3,763 2.3%
Resorts World 3,506 2.2%
Flamingo Las Vegas 3,446 2.1%
Total Top 10 Hotels 39,851 24.8%

Total Jean/Primm 1,403 0.9%
Other Hotels and motels 109,233 68.0%
Total Las Vegas metropolitan area 150,487 93.6%
Total Laughlin 8,635 5.4%
Total Mesquite 1,630 1.0%
Total inventory of rooms 160,752 100.0%

Note: Other Hotels and motels does not include timeshare properties.

W Percentage figures may not add due to rounding.

In 2021, there were 5,179 more available rooms than 2020, primarily due to the opening of Resorts World. The occupancy
rate for the Las Vegas metropolitan area rebounded from the decline that it saw in 2020. In 2021, compared to the national
average, occupancy rate for Las Vegas is 9.2% higher.

Average Number National

Total Rooms Occupancy of Rooms Average Occupancy

Calendar Year Visitor Volume Inventory @ Ppercentage Occupied Daily Daily Rate Percentage
2012 39,727,022 150,481 84.4% 127,006 108.08 61.3%
2013 39,668,221 150,593 84.3% 126,950 110.72 62.2%
2014 41,126,512 150,544 86.8% 130,672 116.26 64.4%
2015 42,312,216 149,213 87.7% 130,860 120.67 65.6%
2016 42,936,100 149,339 89.1% 133,061 125.97 65.5%
2017 42,214,200 148,896 88.7% 132,071 127.35 65.9%
2018 42,116,800 149,158 88.2% 131,557 128.85 66.2%
2019 42,523,700 150,259 88.9% 133,580 132.62 66.1%
2020 19,031,100 145,308 42.1% 61,175 120.31 44.0%
2021 32,230,600 150,487 66.8% 100,525 137.37 57.6%

W Total Las Vegas metropolitan area including Jean/Primm properties.
Source: LVCVA Research Center
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

JUNE 30, 2022

(unaudited)
NAME OF POLICY EXPIRATION
Type INSURER NUMBER LIMIT DATE ™
Commercial Crime Great American Insurance Co. GVT379271416 Various 8/1/2022
General Liability & Automobile Everest National Insurance Co. SI8ML02292211 Various 8/1/2022
Workers Compensation (DC, IL & WI) (Tl_‘?’;:tg:z)ﬁre Insurance Co. 53WECAB1321  $ 1,000,000  8/1/2022
Excess Workers Compensation Safety National Casualty Corp. SP4065465 S 1,000,000 8/1/2022
Lead Excess Liability StarStone National Insurance Co. R71631212ALI $ 5,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $5 million HDI Global Specialty 18HX1527 $10,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $15 million Everest National Insurance Co. SIBEX01397211 $10,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $25 million Landmark American Insurance Co. LHA252197 $10,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $35 million CM Vantage Specialty Insurance Co. CMV-EXL-0015075-03 S 5,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $40 million Navigators Insurance Co. LA21EXC878766IV $15,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $55 million Endurance American Insurance Co. EXC10007458806 $15,000,000 8/1/2022
Excess over $70 million Federal Insurance Co. 79736487 S 5,000,000 8/1/2022
Public Officials Liability ACE American Insurance Co. G21656586018 $10,000,000 8/1/2022
Global Medical Insurance ACE American Insurance Co. ADDNO04986210 Various 8/1/2022
International Protection Liability Hartford Fire Insurance Co. 57HIPBB3901 Various 8/1/2022
Property Insurance & Terrorism Factory Mutual Insurance Co. 1081084 Various 8/1/2022
Cyber Liability Coalition, Inc. C-4LRE-120854- $ 3,000,000 3/17/2023
CYBER-2022

Property Insurance (Monorail) American Internation Group (AIG) 018258113 Various 1/1/2023
(T:Z:Or:::?:\fsﬁzzit;ab"ity & Mercer Insurance Co. 20000000135 $ 2,000,000  8/1/2022
Accidental Death & Dismemberment ol Insurance Co. 9912-02-43 Various  4/15/2023

(Volunteers)

(1) Insurance policies have been renewed, as appropriate, for the next year.
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Las Vegas Convention and
Visitors Authority (the “LVCVA”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the LVCVA's basic financial statements and have
issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the LVCVA 's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the LVCVA’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the LVCVA’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
9139 W. Russell Rd., Ste. 200 | Las Vegas, NV 89148-1250 | T702.304.0405 | F702.304.0415 | EOE
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the LVCVA 's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

&M LiHE

Las Vegas, Nevada
October 26, 2022
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Accountant’s Report

Board of Directors
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
Las Vegas, Nevada

Senate Bill 1 of the 30™" (2016) Special Session of the Nevada Legislature (the “Bill”), requires the Las
Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority (“LVCVA”) to provide the Oversight Panel established by the Bill
with an annual third—party examination. Sections 59 and 60 of the Bill require distribution to the LVCVA
of the resultant financing proceeds to be used by the LVCVA solely for the expansion and renovation of
the Convention Center and to pay the principal and interest on securities issued to fund the costs of
such project.

We have examined management’s assertion that LVCVA has complied with the applicable criteria stated
in Sections 56—60 of the Act (the “Criteria”), in all material respects, for the year ended June 30, 2022
(the “Assertion”). The LVCVA’s management is responsible for its assertion. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assertion, based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the AICPA.
Those standards require that we plan and perform procedures to obtain evidence about management’s
assertion. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including
an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of management’s assertion whether due to fraud or
error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to the engagement.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that LVCVA has complied with the applicable criteria stated in
sections 56-60 of the Act, in all material respects, for the year ended June 30, 2022, is fairly stated in all
material respects.

éfa,éf’u@uf’

Las Vegas, Nevada
October 26, 2022

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
9139 W. Russell Rd., Ste. 200 | Las Vegas, NV 89148-1250 | T702.304.0405 | F702.304.0415 | EOE
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EideBailly

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

October 26, 2022

To the Board of Directors
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority
Las Vegas, Nevada

We have audited the financial statements of Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2022. Professional standards
require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit under Generally Accepted Auditing
Standards and Government Auditing Standards

As communicated in our letter dated September 27, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared
by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Las Vegas Convention and Visitors
Authority solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.

We have provided our comments regarding internal controls during our audit in our Independent Auditor’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards dated October 26, 2022.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com
9139 W. Russell Rd., Ste. 200 | Las Vegas, NV 89148-1250 | T702.304.0405 | F702.304.0415 | EOE



Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and other firms utilized in the engagement,
if applicable, have complied with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Significant Risks Identified

As stated in our auditor’s report, professional standards require us to design our audit to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error. In
designing our audit procedures, professional standards require us to evaluate the financial statements and
assess the risk that a material misstatement could occur. Areas that are potentially more susceptible to
misstatements, and thereby require special audit considerations, are designated as “significant risks”. We have
identified the following as significant risks.

e Management override risk — management override of internal controls
e Revenue risk — presumed risk that revenue may be improperly recognized
e GASB 87 implementation

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices
Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority is included in Note 1 to
the financial statements. As described in Note 1, the Authority changed accounting policies related to
accounting for leases to adopt the provision of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Accordingly, the accounting
change has been retrospectively applied to the financial statements beginning July 1, 2021. No matters have
come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods
used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in
controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about
past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future
events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are:

e Other postemployment benefit plans’ actuarial accrued liabilities
e Pension plans’ actuarial accrued liabilities

Management’s estimate of the other postemployment benefit plan and pension plan liabilities is based on an
actuarial estimate. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above mentioned
estimates and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.



Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Las Vegas Convention
and Visitors Authority’s financial statements relate to:

The disclosures associated with the defined benefit pension plan and the other post-employment
benefits. These are sensitive because they represent a significant percentage of the liabilities presented
on the statement of net position.

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit.
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the
effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account
balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole. Uncorrected misstatements or matters
underlying those uncorrected misstatements could potentially cause future-period financial statements to be
materially misstated, even though the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial statements
currently under audit. There were no uncorrected or corrected missstatements identified as a result of our audit
procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
which could be significant to the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority financial statements or the
auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

For purposes of this letter, professional standards require that we communicate any circumstances that affect
the form and content of our auditor’s report. As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, the Authority restated opening balances as of July 1, 2021. We
have included an emphasis of matter in our report regarding this restatement.

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management which are included in the management
representation letter dated October 26, 2022.



Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other
accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

In the normal course of our professional association with Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority, we
generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
significant events or transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions affecting
the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority’s
auditors.

Other Information Included in Annual Reports

Pursuant to professional standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information, whether financial or
nonfinancial, included in Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority’s annual reports, does not extend beyond
the financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to
corroborate such other information.

However, in accordance with such standards, we have read through the introductory and statistical sections
and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation was materially inconsistent with
its presentation in the financial statements.

Our responsibility also includes communicating to you any information which we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of Las

Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

ia,zﬁlzzg LiHE

Las Vegas, Nevada
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITEE MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2022 ITEMB
TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE
FROM: ED FINGER l——DocuSigned by:

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

~——03337CA3F6364CO0...

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT FISCAL YEAR 2023 BUDGET

RECOMMENDATION

That the Audit Committee consider recommending to the Board of Directors the approval of
the proposed budget augmentation and the adoption of the associated Resolution 2022-05
to augment the fiscal year (FY) 2023 General Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Las Vegas
Convention Center District (LVCCD) Capital Fund budgets.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT
FY 2023 - General Fund:
Increase in budgeted resources:

Beginning General Fund fund balance $40,000,000
Increase in transfers out:
Transfers Out (Capital Projects Fund) $30,000,000
Transfers Out (LVCCD Capital Fund) $10,000,000
FY 2023 — Capital Projects Fund:
Increase in budgeted resources:
Transfers In (General Fund) $30,000,000
Increase in budgeted appropriations:
Capital Outlay $30,000,000
FY 2023 — LVCCD Capital Fund:
Increase in budgeted resources:
Transfers In (General Fund) $10,000,000
Increase in budgeted appropriations:
Capital Outlay $10,000,000
Stowe Hill,
STEVE HILL

COMMITTEE
ACTION:

CEO/PRESIDENT




DocuSign Envelope ID: 06FC937C-CFAF-4631-A014-4B71C3C2347D

Page 2
Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority Audit Committee Meeting
Agenda Documentation
Meeting Date: November 7, 2022
Subject: Resolution to Augment Fiscal Year 2023 Budget

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 354.598005 identifies the procedures and requirements for
augmenting or amending a local government’s budget. Two sources of funds that may be
considered for augmentation are either a beginning fund balance that is larger than
budgeted, or revenues that are larger than originally budgeted. Both beginning fund balance
and revenues larger than originally budgeted are being used for this augmentation.

General Fund: FY 2023 actual beginning fund balance exceeded budget by $40.7 million.
Staff recommends allocating $40 million of the available funds to supplement the Capital
Projects Fund for construction of the administration offices in the South Hall and the LVCCD
“pay-as-you-go” transfers for construction of Phase Three of the renovation project.

FY 2023 budgeted expenditures and other uses are $398.1 million. If the augmentation
resolution is approved budgeted expenditures and other uses will be $438.1 million, and the
budgeted General Fund ending fund balance would increase to $45.8 million, representing
16.8% of budgeted operating expenditures.

Capital Projects Fund: FY 2023 budgeted revenue and other sources is $9.8 million. After
the approval of the augmentation resolution, the increase to other sources, specifically
transfers in from the General fund, will bring budgeted revenue and other sources to $39.8
million. Appropriations were budgeted at $74.9 million and if the augmentation is approved
augmentation will be budgeted at $104.9 million. Budgeted Ending fund balance will remain
at $0.

LVCCD Capital Fund: FY 2023 budgeted revenue and other sources is $363.6 million. After
the approval of the augmentation resolution, the increase to other sources, specifically
transfers in from the General fund, will bring budgeted revenue and other sources to $373.6
million. Appropriations were budgeted at $192.9 million and if the augmentation is approved
will be budgeted at $202.9 million. Budgeted ending fund balance will remain at $287.2
million. This ending fund balance is restricted for future year LVCCD projects.




RESOLUTION No. 2022-05

RESOLUTION TO AUGMENT BUDGET OF THE
LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
FOR THE 2023 FISCAL YEAR

WHEREAS, the resources of certain funds of the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors Authority have
now been determined to be higher than budgeted on July 1, 2022,

WHEREAS, the opening fund balance in the General Fund was budgeted to be $43,320,816 and is
now determined to be $84,007,202, and

WHEREAS, there is a need to increase appropriations for the purpose of establishing funding for
expenditures and other uses in the current year as follows:

Revenues and Expenditures and
Other Sources Other Uses
GENERAL FUND:
Beginning fund balance in excess of budget $ 40,000,000 $ -
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund - 30,000,000
Transfer to LVCCD Capital Fund - 10,000,000
TOTAL GENERAL FUND $ 40,000,000 $ 40,000,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:
Transfers in from General Fund $ 30,000,000 $ -
Capital Outlay - 30,000,000
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND $ 30,000,000 $ 30,000,000
LVCCD CAPITAL FUND:
Transfers in from General Fund $ 10,000,000 $ -
Capital Outlay - 10,000,000
TOTAL LVCCD CAPITAL FUND $ 10,000,000 $ 10,000,000

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the LVCVA shall amend
its FY 2023 budget as follows,

by appropriating $40,000,000 for use in the General Fund, thereby increasing appropriations from
$398,055,153 to $438,055,153; and

by increasing revenues and other sources from $9,750,000 to $39,750,000 in the Capital Projects Fund,
and

by increasing revenues and other sources from $363,575,000 to $373,575,000 in the LVCCD Capital
Fund, and

by appropriating $30,000,000 for use in the Capital Projects Fund, thereby increasing appropriations from
$74,928,366 to $104,928,366; and



by appropriating $10,000,000 for use in the LVCCD Capital Fund, thereby increasing appropriations from
$192,874,053 to $202,874,053; and

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8" day of November, 2022, by the following vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Abstaining:

Those Absent:

LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY

By
JOHN MARZ
CHAIR

ATTEST:

SCOTT DEANGELO
TREASURER
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITEE MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2022 ITEMC
TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE
] ED FINGER L——DocusSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —

SUBJECT: INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

RECOMMENDATION
That the Audit Committee receive a report on the LVCVA'’s internal audit program.

This is an information item and does not require Committee action.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.
DocuSigned by:
Stowe #ill
COMMITTEE CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

Staff and BDO USA, LLC, the LVCVA’s appointed internal audit firm, will provide a report on
completed and in-progress internal audits.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2022 ITEM D
TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE
) ED FINGER l,——DocuSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —

333 7CAIFE364C0—

SUBJECT: PROPOSED 2023 AUDIT PLAN

RECOMMENDATION
That the Audit Committee consider recommending to the Board of Directors approval of the
calendar year 2023 audit plan.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT

None.
ﬁm Kl
STEVEHILL
COMMITTEE CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee Charter directs the Audit Committee’s review and approval of audit
plans. Staff and BDO USA, LLC, the LVCVA'’s appointed internal audit firm, will present the
recommended audit plan for the 2023 calendar year , and the risk assessment methodology
used to develop the audit plan.
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LAS VEGAS CONVENTION AND VISITORS AUTHORITY
AUDIT COMMITEE MEETING

AGENDA DOCUMENTATION
MEETING
DATE: NOVEMBER 7, 2022 ITEME
TO: AUDIT COMMITTEE
. ED FINGER L——DocusSigned by:
FROM: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER —

I333/CAIFG364C U™

SUBJECT: REAPPOINTMENT OF INTERNAL AUDIT FIRM

RECOMMENDATION

That the Audit Committee consider recommending to the Board of Directors: 1)
Reappointment of BDO USA, LLP as the internal audit firm for the period from January 1,
2023, through December 31, 2023, in the amount of $225,000; 2) Authorizing the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) to exercise two optional one-year extensions with BDO in the amount
of $225,000 per year; and 3) Authorizing the CFO to execute the agreements.

For possible action.

FISCAL IMPACT

FY 2023: $112,500 Expenditure
FY 2024: $225,000 Expenditure
FY 2025: $225,500 Expenditure
FY 2026: $112,500 Expenditure

DocuSigned by:

[Em Wil

STEVE HILL
BOARD CEO/PRESIDENT
ACTION:

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee Charter gives the Audit Committee primary oversight over the Internal
Audit function, and also allows the Committee, subject to approval by the Board of related
expenditures, to retain accountants and other professionals.

Staff recommends the BDO USA, LLP to continue as the vendor to provided agreed-upon
procedures in lieu of the LVCVA employing an internal audit department for a period of one
year. BDO USA, LLP has been providing these services since October of 2020.
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Regular meetings of the Las Vegas Convention and Visitors
Authority (LVCVA) Board of Directors (Board) are scheduled for
the second Tuesday of each month at 9 a.m., or at the call

of the chair.

All Board meetings of the LVCVA are open to the general public.

Per NRS 354.596(4): The public hearing on the tentative budget
must be held by the governing body not sooner than the third
Monday in May and not later than the last day in May.

Agendas and approved minutes of the Board meetings are posted
on the LVCVA website at: www.lvcva.com/agenda.

Most meetings are held at the Las Vegas Convention Center in
the Board Room at 3150 Paradise Road, Las Vegas, Nevada
89109. Locations of meetings are subject to change.
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10 September 13
14 October 11
12 November 8
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D COMMITTEE MEETINGS/OTHER

Marketing Committee Meeting — January 24
Audit Committee Meeting — May 9

Joint Meeting of the LVCCD Committee & Oversight Panel - May 11

Public Hearing on the Budget — May 23

Compensation Committee Meeting — June 13
Compensation Committee Meeting — July 11

Meeting of the Oversight Panel for Convention Facilities

in Clark County — October 12

Audit Committee Meeting — November 7
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